Public Document Pack
Public Document Pack
Please Contact: Christine Phillipson
Extension : 43447
E- Mail: christine.phillipson@ryedale.gov.uk
Date of Publication: 9 February 2022

COUNCIL
IMPORTANT: The Council fully recognises and respects the role and importance of democratic
meetings and is committed to protecting the health and safety of Elected Members and Officers who
participate. Risk assessments are undertaken in advance of each meeting, and are reviewed on an
ongoing basis.
Social distancing measures will be in place throughout the meeting, however it is important that you
do not attend the meeting if you or anyone in your household are required to self-isolate due to
receiving a positive COVID-19 test result, having symptoms of COVID-19, or having been told that
you have been in contact with someone who has tested positive for COVID-19.
For the purpose of public transparency and accountability, the meeting will be live streamed online.
The livestream can be accessed here: https://event.sparq.me.uk/ryedale-district-council-17thfebruary/
For health and safety reasons and in accordance with our risk assessment, members of the public
are asked to follow the meeting via this method rather than attending in person. If you are unable to
access the meeting this way, please contact us so that we can explore whether any safe alternative
option is possible. The media will be able to report on proceedings from the live stream.

Council Summons and Agenda
You are hereby summoned to attend an Ordinary Meeting of Ryedale District Council to
be held in the Main Hall, Milton Rooms, Malton on Thursday, 17 February 2022 on the
conclusion of the ordinary meeting of Council adjourned from 2 December 2021 which starts
at 6.30pm in the evening for the transaction of the following business.
Agenda

1

Emergency Evacuation Procedure
The Chair to inform members of the public of the emergency evacuation procedure.

2

Apologies for absence

3

Public Question Time

4

Urgent Business
To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chair considers should be dealt with
at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1972.

5

Declarations of Interest

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk

Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of
Conduct.
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council are
required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is not
discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

6

Announcements
To receive any announcements from the Chair and/or the Head of Paid Service.

7

To Receive any Questions submitted by Members Pursuant to Council Procedure
Rule 10.2 (Questions on Notice at Full Council)

a

To Councillor Frank, Chair of Council, from Councillor Duncan
“In relation to the 2 December Council meeting, can you please:
(a) explain why you decided to act contrary to advice from the Council's own health and
safety advisors that the meeting could proceed safely;
(b) explain why you stated the meeting had been "cancelled", when legal advice has
confirmed the Chairman has no power to cancel a meeting of Council;
(c) state which members you consulted, and explain your reasoning for including these
members but excluding the majority;
(d) provide copies of any emails sent and received by you in your capacity as chairman
of the council, be they from members or officers (copies to be appended to the
minutes);
(e) confirm how much your decision to "cancel" the meeting cost the taxpayers of
Ryedale.”

b

To Councillor Keal, Chair of Policy and Resources Committee, from Councillor
Potter
“In view of questions raised about the circa £3,500 cost to RDC of technical backup and
live-streaming of council meetings to comply with COVID-19 regulations, could the
Chair of Policy and Resources Committee please
1. Provide a precise itemised breakdown of these costs.
2. Inform members which costs are mandatory and under what conditions,
and which are voluntary.”

c

To Councillor Keal, Chair of Policy and Resources Committee, from Councillor
Potter
“In view of the impending elections for members of the new shadow North Yorkshire
Council, the fast approaching implementation of local government reorganisation and
the inevitable concern of staff about their future employment, could the Chair of Policy
and Resources Committee please inform members what progress has been made to
convene the first of quarterly Joint Works Group (JWG) meetings, as agreed by full
council in February 2021. This to preferably include proposed meeting dates and how
participants will be decided – Staff, Unions and Members. With the fourth meeting of
the JWG due soon, why is this group still to meet?”

8

Revenue and Capital Budgets and Setting of Council Tax 2022/23 (Pages 7 - 120)
Annex A and Annex B are attached. Annex C is to follow.
With reference to Minute No. 98 (Financial Strategy 2022/2023) of the Policy and
Resources Committee held on 3 February 2022 (copy attached), Councillor Keal, Chair
of the Policy and Resources Committee, will move:I

Budget 2022/2023
That the Revenue Estimates and Budget for 2022/2023 be approved (copy
enclosed).

II

Council Tax Base
That it be noted that, in accordance with Minute No. 363(d)/2005 of the Policy
and Resources Committee held on 8 December 2005, which was subsequently
approved by Council at its meeting on 12 January 2006, Ryedale District Council
has (pursuant to Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972) delegated
responsibility to adopt the Council Tax base to the Chief Executive and Chief
Finance Officer in consultation with the Chairman of the Policy and Resources
Committee. The Council calculated the amounts for the year 2022/23, in
accordance with regulations made under Section 31B of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992, as amended, as set out in Annex A.

III

District/Parish Council Tax Rates
That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the year
2022/23, in accordance with Sections 31A, 31B and 34 to 36 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the Act):
(a)

District/Parish Gross Expenditure
£30,126,070.00 being the aggregate of the amounts, which the Council
estimates for the items, set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act.

(b)

Income (including Government Grants and Collection Fund
Surpluses)
£24,254,374.00 being the aggregate of the amounts, which the Council
estimates for the items, set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act.

(c)

District/Parish Council Tax Requirement
£5,871,696.00 being the amount by which the aggregate at Part III(a)
above exceeds the aggregate at Part III(b) above, calculated by the
Council, in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act, as its Council Tax
requirement for the year.

(d)

Basic Amount of Tax (including Parish Precepts)
£264.17 being the amount at Part III(c) above, all divided by the amount
at Part II above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section
31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year.

(e)

Parish Precept and Special Expenses
£1,192,277.00 being the aggregate amount of all special items referred
to in Section 34(1) of the Act.

(f)

Basic Amount of Tax (excluding Parish Precepts)
£210.53 being the amount at Part III(d) above less the results given by
dividing the amount at Part III(e) above by the amount given at Part II
above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) of the
Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in
those parts of its area to which no special item relates.

(g)

Basic Amount of Tax in Parishes/Towns
The details for each Parish as shown in Annex B, column headed
“Aggregate amount at Band D”, being the amounts given by adding to
the amount at Part III(f) above the amounts of the special item or items
relating to dwellings in those parts of the Council’s area mentioned
above, divided in each case by the amount at Part II above, calculated
by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(3) of the Act, as the basic
amounts of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of its
area to which one or more special items relate.

(h)

District/Parish Council Tax Rates
The details as shown in columns “A” to “H” of Annex B, being the
amounts given by multiplying the amounts at Part III(f) and Part III(g)
above by the number which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of
the Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in a particular valuation band
divided by the number which in that proportion is applicable to dwellings
listed in Valuation Band D, calculated by the Council, in accordance with
Section 36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for the
year in respect of categories of dwellings listed in different valuation
bands.

IV

County Council, Police & Crime Commissioner and Fire & Rescue
Authority Tax Rates (Provisional)
That it be noted that for the year 2022/23 precepting Authorities have stated the
following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section
40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended, for each of the
categories of dwellings shown below:-

BAND

£
A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H
V

NORTH
YORKSHIRE
COUNTY
COUNCIL
£
Subject to
confirmation
on
16 February
2022.

NYCC
ADULT
SOCIAL
CARE
£
Subject to
confirmation
on
16 February
2022.

NORTH
YORKSHIRE
POLICE & CRIME
COMMISSIONER
£

NORTH
YORKSHIRE
FIRE & RESCUE
AUTHORITY
£

Subject to
confirmation
on
7 February
2022.

Subject to
confirmation
on
7 February
2022.

Total Council Tax Rates
That having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at Part III(h)

and Part IV above, the Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, as amended, hereby sets the amounts set out in
Annex C as the amounts of Council Tax for 2022/23 for each of the categories
of dwellings shown.

9

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy 2022/23
(Pages 121 - 160)

10

To consider for Approval the Recommendations in respect of the following Part
'B' Committee Items:

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 20 January 2022

a

Minute 74 - Model Code of Conduct

(Pages 161 - 194)

b

Minute 75 - Appointment of External Auditors

(Pages 195 - 204)

Policy and Resources Committee 3 February 2022

c

Minute 97 - Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring Q3 2021/22 (Pages 205 - 216)

11

Motions on Notice Submitted Pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 11

Referred by Full Council on 13 July 2021 and considered by Policy and Resources
Committee on 3 February 2022

a

Proposed by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Delaney(Pages 217 232)
“In order to boost Ryedale’s recycling rate, this Council calls on Policy and Resources
Committee to explore:
 scrapping the annual fee for green waste recycling, instead providing this
service to all homes in Ryedale for free;
 extending the time period that green waste is collected from homes each year;
and report its recommendations back to Full Council as soon as possible.”

Referred by Full Council on 18 February 2021 and considered by Policy and Resources
Committee on 3 February 2022

b

Proposed by Councillor Keal and seconded by Councillor Mason(Pages 233 - 238)
“Major flood defences in Malton, Norton and Old Malton protect hundreds of properties
adjacent to the River Derwent, but in January 2021 Norton-on-Derwent has yet again
been affected by serious and significant flooding
In 2000 this Council agreed to abandon badly needed major improvements to
permanent flood protection for Norton when agreeing to NYCC plans to protect Malton
and Old Malton. Recent events illustrate that this was an unsound decision.
We call on council to commit up to £2.5 million of reserves to contribute to partnership
funding a permanent pumping solution for Norton to prevent surface water and sewer
flooding occurring when water levels in the River Derwent are high.
The ARUP report of 2015 identified and costed the work required to protect homes and
businesses in Norton and must now need to be acted on.
We further call on council to request that officers enter into immediate talks with

Yorkshire Water, the Environment Agency and NYCC to seek funding contributions
towards the scheme that will be required to build a permanent pumping solution.
Following recent events in Norton, when flood waters were only kept out of homes and
businesses by 24/7 pumping, and property was yet again surrounded by raw sewage –
this matter to be considered urgent and requiring immediate action.”

13

Covid-19 Additional Relief Funding (CARF) Scheme

14

Appointments to Outside Bodies

a

To Appoint a Representative to the Milton Rooms Management Committee.

(Pages 239 - 288)

The vacancy has arisen following Councillor Garbutt Moore’s decision to step down
from this role.

b

To Appoint a Substitute to the North Yorkshire and York Spatial Planning and
Transport Board.
The vacancy has arisen following the resignation of Councillor Raper.

c

To Appoint a Substitute to the Safer Ryedale Delivery Team
The vacancy has arisen following the resignation of Councillor Raper.

d

To Appoint a Substitute to the Community and Police Consultation Group for
Malton Rural East
The vacancy has arisen following the resignation of Councillor Raper.

15

To Agree a Change of Date of April Full Council Meeting

16

TO RECEIVE A COMMITTEE LEVEL DECISION MADE UNDER URGENCY
POWERS, AS REQUIRED UNDER THE CONSTITUTION

The following decision has already been made.

a

Designation of Interim Monitoring Officer

17

Any other business that the Chair decides is urgent

Stacey Burlet
Chief Executive

(Pages 289 - 292)

Agenda Item 8

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

17 FEBRUARY 2022

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 03 FEBRUARY 2022

98

Revenue and Capital Budgets and Setting of Council Tax 2022-23

Considered – the report of the Chief Finance Officer (s. 151)
Recommendation
That Council is recommended to agree the updated Financial Strategy and in particular:
(i)

To note the Section 25 assurance statement provided by the Chief Finance Officer
(s151) regarding the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of the reserves
and the risk assessment detailed in Section 10 of the Strategy

(ii)

To approve a revenue budget of Revenue Budget for 2022/23 of £10,506k, after use
of Reserves which includes
a. Savings/additional income totalling £82k (Financial Strategy Appendix 4)
b. Removal of £787k one-off funding agreed to support COVID in 2021/22, replaced
by a further £221k
c. Council Plan priorities of £313k, as set out in Appendix 3.
d. Other pressures of £1,268k as set out in Appendix 3, which includes £500k for
Local Government Reorganisation

(iii)

To approve a Council Tax charge of £210.53 for a Band D property (note that total
Council Tax, Including the County Council, Fire and Police is covered within the
separate Council Tax setting report to Full Council)

(iv)

To approve the special expenses amounting to £57,430 (6.20 below)

(v)

To approve the revised Capital Programme (Appendix 6)

(vi)

To note the financial projection for 2022/23 – 2025/26

Voting record
6 For
4 Against
0 Abstentions
Recorded Vote

Council

Page 7

17 February 2022

For
Councillors J Andrews, Arnold, Burr, Frank, Keal, Potter
Against
Councillors Docwra, Duncan, Graham, Mackenzie

Council

Page 8

17 February 2022

Annex A and Annex B are attached. Annex C is to follow.
With reference to Minute No. 98 (Financial Strategy 2022/2023) of the Policy and Resources
Committee held on 3 February 2022 (copy attached), Councillor Keale, Chair of the Policy and
Resources Committee, will move:I

Budget 2022/2023
That the Revenue Estimates and Budget for 2022/2023 be approved (copy enclosed).

II

Council Tax Base
That it be noted that, in accordance with Minute No. 363(d)/2005 of the Policy and
Resources Committee held on 8 December 2005, which was subsequently approved
by Council at its meeting on 12 January 2006, Ryedale District Council has (pursuant
to Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972) delegated responsibility to adopt
the Council Tax base to the Chief Executive and Chief Finance Officer in consultation
with the Chairman of the Policy and Resources Committee. The Council calculated the
amounts for the year 2022/23, in accordance with regulations made under Section 31B
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended, as set out in Annex A.

III

District/Parish Council Tax Rates
That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the year 2022/23, in
accordance with Sections 31A, 31B and 34 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act
1992, as amended (the Act):
(a)

District/Parish Gross Expenditure
£30,126,070.00 being the aggregate of the amounts, which the Council
estimates for the items, set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act.

(b)

Income (including Government Grants and Collection Fund Surpluses)
£24,254,374.00 being the aggregate of the amounts, which the Council
estimates for the items, set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act.

(c)

District/Parish Council Tax Requirement
£5,871,696.00 being the amount by which the aggregate at Part III(a) above
exceeds the aggregate at Part III(b) above, calculated by the Council, in
accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act, as its Council Tax requirement for
the year.

(d)

Basic Amount of Tax (including Parish Precepts)
£264.17 being the amount at Part III(c) above, all divided by the amount at Part
II above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 31B of the Act,
as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year.

(e)

Parish Precept and Special Expenses
£1,192,277.00 being the aggregate amount of all special items referred to in
Section 34(1) of the Act.

Page 9

(f)

Basic Amount of Tax (excluding Parish Precepts)
£210.53 being the amount at Part III(d) above less the results given by dividing
the amount at Part III(e) above by the amount given at Part II above, calculated
by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount
of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which
no special item relates.

(g)

Basic Amount of Tax in Parishes/Towns
The details for each Parish as shown in Annex B, column headed “Aggregate
amount at Band D”, being the amounts given by adding to the amount at Part
III(f) above the amounts of the special item or items relating to dwellings in
those parts of the Council’s area mentioned above, divided in each case by the
amount at Part II above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section
34(3) of the Act, as the basic amounts of its Council Tax for the year for
dwellings in those parts of its area to which one or more special items relate.

(h)

District/Parish Council Tax Rates
The details as shown in columns “A” to “H” of Annex B, being the amounts
given by multiplying the amounts at Part III(f) and Part III(g) above by the
number which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable
to dwellings listed in a particular valuation band divided by the number which
in that proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in Valuation Band D,
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as the
amounts to be taken into account for the year in respect of categories of
dwellings listed in different valuation bands.

IV

County Council, Police & Crime Commissioner and Fire & Rescue Authority Tax
Rates (Provisional)
That it be noted that for the year 2022/23 precepting Authorities have stated the
following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended, for each of the categories of
dwellings shown below:-

BAND

£
A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H
V

NORTH
YORKSHIRE
COUNTY
COUNCIL
£
Subject to
confirmation
on
16 February
2022.

NYCC
ADULT
SOCIAL
CARE
£
Subject to
confirmation
on
16 February
2022.

NORTH
YORKSHIRE
POLICE & CRIME
COMMISSIONER
£

NORTH
YORKSHIRE
FIRE & RESCUE
AUTHORITY
£

Subject to
confirmation
on
7 February
2022.

Subject to
confirmation
on
7 February
2022.

Total Council Tax Rates

Page 10

That having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at Part III(h) and
Part IV above, the Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992, as amended, hereby sets the amounts set out in Annex C as the
amounts of Council Tax for 2022/23 for each of the categories of dwellings shown.

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex A

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL
COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR THE YEAR 2022-2023
BAND 'D' EQUIVALENT TOTALS FOR TOWN AND PARISH AREAS
Parish / Town
ACKLAM
AISLABY MIDDLETON & WRELTON
ALLERSTON & WILTON
AMOTHERBY
AMPLEFORTH
APPLETON-LE-MOORS
APPLETON-LE-STREET
BARTON-LE-STREET
BARTON-LE-WILLOWS
BARUGHS AMBO
BEADLAM
BIRDSALL
BRANSDALE
BRAWBY
BROUGHTON
BULMER
BURYTHORPE
BUTTERCRAMBE
BYLAND WITH WASS & OLDSTEAD
CAWTON COULTON & GRIMSTONE
CLAXTON & SAND HUTTON
COLD KIRBY
CONEYSTHORPE
CROPTON
EBBERSTON & YEDINGHAM
EDSTONE
FADMOOR
FARNDALE EAST
FARNDALE WEST
FLAXTON
FOSTON & THORNTON-LE-CLAY
FOXHOLES with BUTTERWICK
GANTON with POTTER BROMPTON
GATE HELMSLEY & UPPER HELMSLEY
GILLAMOOR
GILLING EAST
HABTON
HAROME
HARTOFT
HARTON
HAWNBY
HELMSLEY
HENDERSKELFE
HESLERTON
HOVINGHAM & SCACKLETON
HOWSHAM
HUTTON-LE-HOLE
HUTTONS AMBO
KIRBYGRINDALYTHE

Band D
Equivalent
69.90
329.35
201.26
142.26
396.45
101.81
56.41
87.83
91.09
90.03
96.59
76.16
28.48
71.50
81.85
92.32
108.49
41.00
124.17
106.24
204.29
50.78
39.40
122.58
262.66
67.06
53.71
47.08
48.86
152.93
133.31
90.81
85.03
141.37
69.13
103.74
133.91
136.48
35.85
41.00
90.06
876.40
23.74
147.18
251.12
62.47
102.45
128.50
117.06

Page 13

Annex A
Parish / Town
KIRBY MISPERTON
KIRKBYMOORSIDE
LANGTON
LASTINGHAM
LEAVENING
LEVISHAM
LILLINGS AMBO
LOCKTON
LUTTONS
MALTON
MARISHES
MARTON
NAWTON
NEWTON-ON-RAWCLIFFE & STAPE
NORMANBY
NORTON
NUNNINGTON
OLD BYLAND & SCAWTON
OSWALDKIRK
PICKERING
POCKLEY
RIEVAULX
RILLINGTON
ROSEDALE EAST & WEST
SALTON
SCAGGLETHORPE
SCAMPSTON with E & W KNAPTON
SCRAYINGHAM with LEPPINGTON
SETTRINGTON
SHERBURN
SHERIFF HUTTON with CORNBOROUGH
SINNINGTON
SLINGSBY
SOUTHOLME & FRYTON
SPAUNTON
SPROXTON
STONEGRAVE
SWINTON
TERRINGTON
THIXENDALE
THORNTON-LE-DALE
THORPE BASSETT
WARTHILL
WEAVERTHORPE
WELBURN (KIRKBYMOORSIDE)
WELBURN (MALTON)
WESTOW
WHARRAM
WHITWELL-ON-THE-HILL & CRAMBE
WILLERBY & STAXTON
WINTRINGHAM
WOMBLETON
COUNCIL TAX BASE
(aggregate of band "D" equivalents)

Band D
Equivalent
115.49
1203.16
43.29
71.44
133.22
47.92
82.56
136.97
162.08
2309.35
61.70
103.55
281.41
133.35
67.98
2575.13
131.39
79.28
122.86
2875.43
48.92
39.41
436.23
188.89
37.85
90.96
123.93
92.35
142.12
281.14
481.12
146.86
251.17
37.85
34.43
56.16
48.70
219.87
246.53
77.78
885.93
47.33
113.60
124.02
34.63
211.13
151.62
45.17
104.50
234.69
83.90
158.35
22226.85

Page 14

Annex B

Parish / Town

Page 15

Acklam
Aislaby, Middleton & Wrelton
Allerston & Wilton
Amotherby
Ampleforth
Appleton le Moors
Appleton le Street
Barton le Street
Barton le Willows
Barughs Ambo
Beadlam
Birdsall
Bransdale
Brawby
Broughton
Bulmer
Burythorpe
Buttercrambe
Byland with Wass & Oldstead
Cawton, Coulton & Grimstone
Claxton & Sand Hutton
Cold Kirby
Coneysthorpe
Cropton
Ebberston and Yedingham
Edstone
Fadmoor
Farndale East
Farndale West
Flaxton
Foston & Thornton le Clay
Foxholes and Butterwick
Ganton and Potter Brompton
Gate Helmsley & Upper Helmsley
Gillamoor

Ryedale District Council
Council Tax 2022-2023
RDC
Parish Special Aggregate
Band D Band D Expenses of Band D
£
£
£
£
210.53
28.61
0.00
239.14
210.53
3.04
12.96
226.53
210.53
39.75
12.96
263.24
210.53
36.81
0.00
247.34
210.53
40.36
0.00
250.89
210.53
10.31
0.00
220.84
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
7.97
0.00
218.50
210.53
24.15
0.00
234.68
210.53
18.70
12.96
242.19
210.53
36.24
0.00
246.77
210.53
5.25
0.00
215.78
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
37.57
0.00
248.10
210.53
26.00
0.00
236.53
210.53
13.83
0.00
224.36
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
12.08
0.00
222.61
210.53
9.41
0.00
219.94
210.53
31.07
0.00
241.60
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
12.24
12.96
235.73
210.53
37.69
12.96
261.18
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
12.98
0.00
223.51
210.53
12.05
0.00
222.58
210.53
18.47
0.00
229.00
210.53
19.50
0.00
230.03
210.53
44.05
0.00
254.58
210.53
16.46
0.00
226.99
210.53
28.29
0.00
238.82
210.53
7.67
0.00
218.20

A
£
159.42
151.02
175.49
164.89
167.26
147.22
140.35
145.66
156.45
161.46
164.51
143.85
140.35
140.35
165.40
157.68
149.57
140.35
148.40
146.62
161.06
140.35
140.35
157.15
174.12
140.35
140.35
149.00
148.38
152.66
153.35
169.72
151.32
159.21
145.46

(District, Parish and Special Expenses only)

B
£
186.00
176.19
204.75
192.38
195.14
171.77
163.75
169.95
182.53
188.37
191.94
167.83
163.75
163.75
192.97
183.97
174.51
163.75
173.15
171.07
187.92
163.75
163.75
183.35
203.14
163.75
163.75
173.85
173.12
178.12
178.92
198.01
176.55
185.75
169.72

Council Tax at Band
C
D
E
£
£
£
212.57 239.14 292.28
201.36 226.53 276.87
233.99 263.24 321.73
219.86 247.34 302.30
223.02 250.89 306.64
196.30 220.84 269.91
187.14 210.53 257.31
194.22 218.50 267.05
208.61 234.68 286.83
215.28 242.19 296.01
219.35 246.77 301.60
191.81 215.78 263.73
187.14 210.53 257.31
187.14 210.53 257.31
220.54 248.10 303.23
210.25 236.53 289.09
199.43 224.36 274.21
187.14 210.53 257.31
197.88 222.61 272.07
195.50 219.94 268.81
214.76 241.60 295.28
187.14 210.53 257.31
187.14 210.53 257.31
209.54 235.73 288.11
232.16 261.18 319.22
187.14 210.53 257.31
187.14 210.53 257.31
198.68 223.51 273.17
197.85 222.58 272.04
203.56 229.00 279.88
204.47 230.03 281.14
226.30 254.58 311.15
201.77 226.99 277.43
212.29 238.82 291.89
193.96 218.20 266.68

F
£
345.43
327.21
380.24
357.27
362.40
318.99
304.10
315.61
338.98
349.83
356.45
311.68
304.10
304.10
358.37
341.66
324.08
304.10
321.55
317.69
348.98
304.10
304.10
340.50
377.26
304.10
304.10
322.85
321.51
330.78
332.27
367.73
327.88
344.96
315.18

G
£
398.56
377.55
438.73
412.23
418.15
368.06
350.88
364.16
391.13
403.65
411.28
359.63
350.88
350.88
413.50
394.21
373.93
350.88
371.01
366.56
402.66
350.88
350.88
392.88
435.30
350.88
350.88
372.51
370.96
381.66
383.38
424.30
378.31
398.03
363.66

H
£
478.28
453.06
526.48
494.68
501.78
441.68
421.06
437.00
469.36
484.38
493.54
431.56
421.06
421.06
496.20
473.06
448.72
421.06
445.22
439.88
483.20
421.06
421.06
471.46
522.36
421.06
421.06
447.02
445.16
458.00
460.06
509.16
453.98
477.64
436.40

Annex B

Parish / Town

Page 16

Gilling East
Habton
Harome
Hartoft
Harton
Hawnby
Helmsley
Henderskelfe
Heslerton
Hovingham & Scackleton
Howsham
Hutton le Hole
Huttons Ambo
Kirbygrindalythe
Kirbymisperton
Kirkbymoorside
Langton
Lastingham
Leavening
Levisham
Lillings Ambo
Lockton
Luttons
Malton
Marishes
Marton
Nawton
Newton on Rawcliffe & Stape
Normanby
Norton
Nunnington
Old Byland & Scawton
Oswaldkirk
Pickering
Pockley

Ryedale District Council
Council Tax 2022-2023
RDC
Parish Special Aggregate
Band D Band D Expenses of Band D
£
£
£
£
210.53
23.13
0.00
233.66
210.53
8.21
0.00
218.74
210.53
37.73
0.00
248.26
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
9.99
0.00
220.52
210.53 130.08
0.00
340.61
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
26.66
0.00
237.19
210.53
26.28
0.00
236.81
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
51.24
0.00
261.77
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
24.99
0.00
235.52
210.53
20.10
12.96
243.59
210.53
61.50
0.00
272.03
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
24.78
0.00
235.31
210.53
13.51
0.00
224.04
210.53
0.00
12.96
223.49
210.53
12.11
0.00
222.64
210.53
34.85
12.96
258.34
210.53
36.56
0.00
247.09
210.53 100.58
5.10
316.21
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
4.06
12.96
227.55
210.53
17.77
0.00
228.30
210.53
17.83
12.96
241.32
210.53
5.88
12.96
229.37
210.53
62.91
7.93
281.37
210.53
11.42
0.00
221.95
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
210.53
23.15
0.00
233.68
210.53
78.78
0.00
289.31
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53

A
£
155.77
145.82
165.50
140.35
140.35
147.01
227.07
140.35
158.12
157.87
140.35
174.51
140.35
157.01
162.39
181.35
140.35
156.87
149.36
148.99
148.42
172.22
164.72
210.80
140.35
151.70
152.20
160.88
152.91
187.58
147.96
140.35
155.78
192.87
140.35

(District, Parish and Special Expenses only)

B
£
181.74
170.14
193.10
163.75
163.75
171.52
264.92
163.75
184.49
184.19
163.75
203.60
163.75
183.19
189.46
211.58
163.75
183.02
174.26
173.83
173.17
200.94
192.19
245.95
163.75
176.99
177.57
187.70
178.40
218.85
172.63
163.75
181.76
225.02
163.75

Council Tax at Band
C
D
E
£
£
£
207.70 233.66 285.58
194.44 218.74 267.34
220.68 248.26 303.42
187.14 210.53 257.31
187.14 210.53 257.31
196.02 220.52 269.52
302.77 340.61 416.30
187.14 210.53 257.31
210.84 237.19 289.89
210.50 236.81 289.43
187.14 210.53 257.31
232.69 261.77 319.94
187.14 210.53 257.31
209.35 235.52 287.85
216.53 243.59 297.72
241.81 272.03 332.48
187.14 210.53 257.31
209.17 235.31 287.60
199.15 224.04 273.82
198.66 223.49 273.15
197.90 222.64 272.11
229.64 258.34 315.74
219.64 247.09 301.99
281.07 316.21 386.47
187.14 210.53 257.31
202.27 227.55 278.11
202.94 228.30 279.03
214.51 241.32 294.94
203.89 229.37 280.34
250.11 281.37 343.89
197.29 221.95 271.27
187.14 210.53 257.31
207.72 233.68 285.60
257.17 289.31 353.60
187.14 210.53 257.31

F
£
337.51
315.96
358.60
304.10
304.10
318.53
491.99
304.10
342.61
342.06
304.10
378.11
304.10
340.20
351.85
392.93
304.10
339.89
323.61
322.82
321.59
373.16
356.91
456.75
304.10
328.68
329.77
348.57
331.31
406.42
320.60
304.10
337.54
417.89
304.10

G
£
389.43
364.56
413.76
350.88
350.88
367.53
567.68
350.88
395.31
394.68
350.88
436.28
350.88
392.53
405.98
453.38
350.88
392.18
373.40
372.48
371.06
430.56
411.81
527.01
350.88
379.25
380.50
402.20
382.28
468.95
369.91
350.88
389.46
482.18
350.88

H
£
467.32
437.48
496.52
421.06
421.06
441.04
681.22
421.06
474.38
473.62
421.06
523.54
421.06
471.04
487.18
544.06
421.06
470.62
448.08
446.98
445.28
516.68
494.18
632.42
421.06
455.10
456.60
482.64
458.74
562.74
443.90
421.06
467.36
578.62
421.06

Annex B

Ryedale District Council
Council Tax 2022-2023

Page 17

RDC
Parish Special Aggregate
Parish / Town
Band D Band D Expenses of Band D
£
£
£
£
Rievaulx
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
Rillington
210.53
37.37
0.00
247.90
Rosedale East & West
210.53
42.35
12.96
265.84
Salton
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
Scagglethorpe
210.53
32.98
0.00
243.51
Scampston & East and West Knaptons 210.53
32.36
0.00
242.89
Scrayingham and Leppington
210.53
14.08
0.00
224.61
Settrington
210.53
34.99
0.00
245.52
Sherburn
210.53 103.15
0.00
313.68
Sheriff Hutton with Cornborough
210.53
35.40
0.00
245.93
Sinnington
210.53
29.96
12.96
253.45
Slingsby
210.53
28.56
0.00
239.09
Southolme & Fryton
210.53
19.87
0.00
230.40
Spaunton
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
Sproxton
210.53
5.18
0.00
215.71
Stonegrave
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
Swinton
210.53
26.40
0.00
236.93
Terrington
210.53
13.87
0.00
224.40
Thixendale
210.53
19.29
0.00
229.82
Thornton le Dale
210.53
51.36
0.00
261.89
Thorpe Bassett
210.53
12.68
0.00
223.21
Warthill
210.53
15.85
0.00
226.38
Weaverthorpe
210.53
40.32
0.00
250.85
Welburn (Kirkbymoorside)
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
Welburn (Malton)
210.53
18.95
0.00
229.48
Westow
210.53
16.49
0.00
227.02
Wharram
210.53
0.00
0.00
210.53
Whitwell on the Hill & Crambe
210.53
8.76
0.00
219.29
Willerby and Staxton
210.53
34.09
0.00
244.62
Wintringham
210.53
26.82
0.00
237.35
Wombleton
210.53
29.05
0.00
239.58

A
£
140.35
165.26
177.22
140.35
162.34
161.92
149.74
163.68
209.12
163.95
168.96
159.39
153.60
140.35
143.80
140.35
157.95
149.60
153.21
174.59
148.80
150.92
167.23
140.35
152.98
151.34
140.35
146.19
163.08
158.23
159.72

(District, Parish and Special Expenses only)

B
£
163.75
192.82
206.77
163.75
189.40
188.92
174.70
190.96
243.98
191.28
197.13
185.96
179.20
163.75
167.78
163.75
184.28
174.54
178.75
203.70
173.61
176.08
195.11
163.75
178.49
176.58
163.75
170.56
190.26
184.61
186.34

Council Tax at Band
C
D
E
£
£
£
187.14 210.53 257.31
220.36 247.90 302.98
236.30 265.84 324.91
187.14 210.53 257.31
216.46 243.51 297.62
215.90 242.89 296.86
199.66 224.61 274.52
218.24 245.52 300.08
278.83 313.68 383.38
218.61 245.93 300.58
225.29 253.45 309.77
212.53 239.09 292.22
204.80 230.40 281.60
187.14 210.53 257.31
191.74 215.71 263.64
187.14 210.53 257.31
210.61 236.93 289.58
199.47 224.40 274.26
204.29 229.82 280.89
232.79 261.89 320.08
198.41 223.21 272.81
201.23 226.38 276.68
222.98 250.85 306.59
187.14 210.53 257.31
203.98 229.48 280.47
201.80 227.02 277.46
187.14 210.53 257.31
194.93 219.29 268.02
217.44 244.62 298.98
210.98 237.35 290.09
212.96 239.58 292.82

F
£
304.10
358.08
383.99
304.10
351.74
350.84
324.44
354.64
453.09
355.23
366.10
345.35
332.80
304.10
311.58
304.10
342.23
324.13
331.96
378.29
322.42
326.99
362.34
304.10
331.47
327.92
304.10
316.75
353.34
342.84
346.06

G
£
350.88
413.16
443.06
350.88
405.85
404.81
374.35
409.20
522.80
409.88
422.41
398.48
384.00
350.88
359.51
350.88
394.88
374.00
383.03
436.48
372.01
377.30
418.08
350.88
382.46
378.36
350.88
365.48
407.70
395.58
399.30

H
£
421.06
495.80
531.68
421.06
487.02
485.78
449.22
491.04
627.36
491.86
506.90
478.18
460.80
421.06
431.42
421.06
473.86
448.80
459.64
523.78
446.42
452.76
501.70
421.06
458.96
454.04
421.06
438.58
489.24
474.70
479.16

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

3 FEBRUARY 2022

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

RYEDALE’S FINANCIAL STRATEGY

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The report sets out the budget for 2022/23, a proposed Council Tax level, the
Financial Strategy, details of balances and reserves, results of the public budget
consultation and the Pay Policy for 2022/22.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That Council is recommended to agree the updated Financial Strategy and in
particular:
(i)

To note the Section 25 assurance statement provided by the Chief Finance
Officer (s151) regarding the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of
the reserves and the risk assessment detailed in Section 10 of the Strategy

(ii)

To approve a revenue budget of Revenue Budget for 2022/23 of £10,506k, after
use of Reserves which includes
a. Savings/additional income totalling £82k (Financial Strategy Appendix 4)
b. Removal of £787k one-off funding agreed to support COVID in 2021/22,
replaced by a further £221k
c. Council Plan priorities of £313k, as set out in Appendix 3.
d. Other pressures of £1,268k as set out in Appendix 3, which includes £500k
for Local Government Reorganisation

(iii)

To approve a Council Tax charge of £210.53 for a Band D property (note that
total Council Tax, Including the County Council, Fire and Police is covered within
the separate Council Tax setting report to Full Council)

(iv)

To approve the special expenses amounting to £57,430 (6.20 below)

Page 19
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 1

3 FEBRUARY 2022

(v)

To approve the revised Capital Programme (Appendix 6)

(vi)

To note the financial projection for 2022/23 – 2025/26

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

To agree a balanced revenue budget for submission to Council for the financial year
2022/23 and highlight the ongoing financial position which will be inherited by the new
unitary council.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Section 10 of the Financial Strategy outlines the significant risks in the Council’s
finances and mitigating controls.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT CONSULTATION

5.1

The Financial Strategy is a key strategy document that affects all service delivery. It
links to the Corporate Plan and all other strategic plans as well as providing the means
for attaining the Council’s objectives and priorities.

5.2

The Policy and Resources Committee is the Committee designated to make
recommendations to the Council relating to the budget and levels of Council Tax.
Consequently, recommendations from this Committee will inform the Council and
subsequently the Council Tax resolution.

5.3

Budget consultation with the public has taken place. A questionnaire was made
available for residents to complete online via the Council website. There were 29
responses (compared with 27 last year) and a summary of the results of the
consultation is attached as Annex B of this report.

5.4

Member consultation has taken place through specific workshops and other meetings.

REPORT
6.0

BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION

6.1

The Financial Strategy sets out the Council’s financial position in the medium term in
detail, including issues around the Local Government Finance Settlement and
efficiencies as well as the principles and procedures adopted by the Council to
manage its finances to a high standard.

6.2

This is the final year for setting the budget for Ryedale District Council given the new
unitary council for North Yorkshire will come into effect from 1 April 2023. In order to
assist the production of an emerging “shadow” financial strategy for the new unitary
council it has been determined, across all eight councils, that a medium term financial
projection will take place up to at least 2024/25. This projection is included within this
report and is produced on a “going-concern” basis so that all eight council positions
can be aggregated as a starting position for the new unitary North Yorkshire Council.
This forms the basis of the Medium Term Financial Strategy but it should be noted
that implementation of the strategy is a matter for the new council.

6.3

However the council is obligated to hand over its affairs to the new organisation in the
best state it can and this means continuing to tackle known budgetary issues. All eight
councils within North Yorkshire have been dealing with their own financial pressures

Page 20
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 2

3 FEBRUARY 2022

and the last two years during the COVID-19 pandemic have severely impeded all in
being able to resolve any underlying financial shortfalls.
6.4

At the time of writing the ongoing impact of the pandemic remains uncertain and this
may be linked to a third year of a single year financial settlement for local government.
Whilst this is unhelpful, it is almost inevitable. It does mean, however, that all councils
must be prepared to be able to respond to managing their financial pressures within
a further tightening of public sector funding. This becomes even more challenging with
local government reorganisation (LGR) but LGR does also offer some greater
opportunities for all councils in North Yorkshire in delivering financial savings.

6.5

Nevertheless the uncertainty and volatility and ongoing pressures are such that the
2022/23 budget will require a higher degree of support from reserves than would
otherwise be the case or is desirable. It is, however, a necessary position at this stage
given there is extremely limited opportunity to launch and deliver a significant
additional savings programme. For 2022/23 the use of reserves to support the budget
is £1.9m. The increase from the position one year ago of £0.7m is largely due to
additional Council priorities for its final year, ongoing COVID-19 costs and other cost
pressures.

6.6

Table 1 below outlines a total shortfall of £5.5m for the period to 2024/25 with a
recurring shortfall thereafter of £1.9m. This is made up of:
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25

£1,907k
£1,790k
£1,827k

Total

£5,524k

Budget and Council Tax for 2022/23
6.7

Budgets have been drafted in line with the Budget Strategy. The following budget
assumptions have been made in preparing the budget:




General Inflation up to 4%.
Pay Award – An average 3% pa pay award has been used.
Fees and charges have been increased in line with the Budget Strategy, by
up to 4%. However there has been no increase to the Garden Waste Licence
(£38 per licence – a price freeze since 2017/18)

6.8

The referendum limit for 2022/23 has been proposed at the higher of 2% or £5 as part
of the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement. In Ryedale’s case £5 is the
higher figure. Any freeze on Council Tax would reduce funding – and increase the
gap – by £108k and this would be a permanent feature to the budget base. As the
first 10p of any increase will be taken up by the increase in special expenses (see
6.20 below), the actual increase to a Band D property will be £4.90 giving an annual
rate of £210.53

6.9

The Government’s Core Spending assessment assumes that Local Authorities will
apply an inflationary increase to Council Tax throughout the life of the current
Parliament.

6.10

Grant Settlement and specific grants
The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement was announced on the 17
December 2021. The figures in this report use those as per the provisional settlement.

Page 21
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 3

3 FEBRUARY 2022

Retained Business Rates
6.11

Business Rates Income is estimated at £2.318m, with Rural Services Delivery Grant
of £600k expected to be paid as a grant. However at the time of writing figures are yet
to be confirmed and any change will impact on the budget gap. As planned in previous
years, funding set aside to assist the reduction in Business Rates is being used.
Council Tax Income

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

Council Tax income is estimated at £4.755m, including the Council Tax Support
Grant. This assumes the maximum increase permitted of £4.90 per year or
approximately 9p per week for a Band D Household.

Growth Items
The position is detailed in Section 6 and Appendix 3 of the Financial Strategy.
Savings/Additional Income
Budget reviews show that budgets can be reduced by £82k in 2022/23 with no impact
on service delivery. Details of these, including impact on future years, can be found
in Appendix 4 of the Strategy.
New Homes Bonus
Figures for 2022/23 show an estimated New Homes Bonus (NHB) of £488k in
2021/22. The budget assumes that all of this grant will be used to support additional
spend in the budget on areas such as economic development and housing.
Summary Revenue Budget Position
Taking all of the above into account the summary position is as follows:

Page 22
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 4

3 FEBRUARY 2022

Table 1

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Base Budget starting point

8,503

10,223

9,429

9,669

Pressures Identified - Appendix 3
Savings Identified - Appendix 4
One-off base budget adjustments

1,802
-82
0

-741
-54

240
0

240
0

10,223

9,429

9,669

9,909

Net budget before contribution to/from reserves
Planned contributions to / (from Reserves)
Contributions to fund future projects
Pension Fund Reserve
Drawdown from reserves to fund revenue projects

30

30

30

30

373

0

0

0

-120

0

0

0

NET Revenue Budget

10,506

9,459

9,699

9,939

Funding
Business Rates
Rural Services Delivery Grant
Council Tax
New Homes Bonus
Other Grants
Funding Available

-2,318
-600
-4,755
-488
-200
-8,362

-1,771
-600
-4,868
-230
-198
-7,668

-1,819
-600
-5,035
-230
-186
-7,871

-1,819
-600
-5,200
-230
-186
-8,036

2,144

1,790

1,827

1,903

-237
0
-1,907

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

1,790

1,827

1,903

Budget (Surplus) / Deficit
Transfer to / (from) BRER to support budget
Transfer to / (from) Reserves to fund COVID costs
Transfer to / (from) Reserves to support budget
Remaining budget (surplus) / Deficit

Medium Term Revenue Forecast (MTRF) projections to 2024/25
6.17

Members will note the financial projections to 2024/25 (Table 1 above and Appendix
5 in Annex A). Although the 2022/23 budget shows a break-even position after use of
reserves, there remains an ongoing gap that will pass on to the new unitary council.

Page 23
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 5

3 FEBRUARY 2022

Capital Programme
6.18

The Financial Strategy provides a detailed breakdown of the Council’s Capital
Programme (Appendix 6) over the period 2021-25 totalling £18.8m. External funding
of £7.1m is included, leaving a balance of £9.2m to be financed by the Council’s funds
and reserves, after the use of finance leases.

6.19

Further details are shown in section 8 of the Strategy.

6.20

Special Expenses
As in previous years, the Council will continue to undertake the management of street
lighting in the areas of the former Malton and Norton Urban District Councils and
Pickering Rural District Council. The special expenses are a specific charge to the
residents of the Parishes concerned and are estimated as follows:-

Town/Parish
Malton
Norton
Pickering Rural
TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSES

6.21

6.22

£
11,780
20,420
25,230
57,430

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR)
For 2022/23 the NNDR multipliers have been frozen at current levels: a small
business non-domestic rate multiplier of 49.9p and a non-domestic rate multiplier of
51.2p.

Funds & Reserves
As part of the budget setting process, it is necessary to give Members an indication
of the levels of reserves and balances and comment thereon. Appendix 2 in the
Financial Strategy sets out the projected major Funds and Reserve balances.

6.23

The Council’s revenue budget for 2022/23 assumes a significant draw on reserves
(£6.4m, subject to approval of various proposals) to support the revenue budget and
capital programme. This will leave £5.4m of which £679k is earmarked for the pension
fund and a further £2.7m for capital projects. It is noted that 38% of the remaining
capital programme is not due to be spent until after 31 March 2023 when responsibility
will have transferred to the new council.

7.0

Local Government Act 2003 – Section 25 Report

7.1

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Finance Officer
(Section 151 Officer) to report to the Authority when it is making the statutory
calculations required to determine its Council Tax or precept. The Authority is required
to take the report into account when making the calculations. The report must deal
with the robustness of the estimates included in the budget and the adequacy of the
reserves for which the budget provides.

7.2

What is required is the professional advice of the Chief Finance Officer on these two
questions. Both are connected with matters of risk and uncertainty. They are

Page 24
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 6

3 FEBRUARY 2022

interdependent and need to be considered together. In particular, decisions on the
appropriate level of reserves should be guided by advice based on an assessment of
all the circumstances considered likely to affect the Authority.
7.3

In each Local Authority the Chief Finance Officer alone must prepare the Section 25
report.

7.4

Section 25 requires the report to be made to the Authority when the decisions on the
calculations are formally being made (i.e. Council). However, those decisions are the
conclusion of a process involving consideration of the draft budget by various parts of
the organisation. During this process appropriate information and advice has been
given at the earlier stages on what would be required to enable a positive opinion to
be given in the formal report.

7.5

Central Government guidance states that “it should be possible to identify the sections
of a composite report that are made under section 25, so that the Authority is able to
discharge its duty to take account of the statutory report under section 25 (2).”
Therefore this report is set out below.

Section 25 Report (Report of the Chief Finance Officer (s151)

The Section 25 opinion expressed in this report is based upon a medium term
assessment rather than a single year as effective financial planning requires a longerterm approach. This view is therefore based upon the Council as a “going concern”
which is clearly not going to be the case given local government reorganisation takes
effect from 1 April 2023. However, this approach best provides a guideline for the new
North Yorkshire Council and thereby provides line of sight to the new Council
arrangements.
In setting the Revenue budget for 2022/23 I consider that the proposed budget is as
realistic and robust as possible given the current challenging circumstances and that
it takes into account all anticipated expenditure and income as currently known. After
a highly unusual two years, the report highlights that further costs could emerge due
to the COVID-19 pandemic and these have been built into the budget as best as they
can be at this stage.
The overall level of reserves is considered in detail within the Financial Strategy. I
consider that the overall level of reserves is adequate for the 2022/23 however I note
that there is limited visibility beyond 2022/23 at this stage for the new unitary North
Yorkshire Council and the estimated shortfall over next few years will deplete the level
of available reserves. The new Council will inherit a need to develop further savings
options to address the estimated residual savings gap.
Council Tax increases ought not normally be set below the level of inflation and the
proposed budget assumes a Council Tax increase of £5 (£4.90) per Band D property.
This is to preserve the revenue raising potential of the Council Tax in future years.
Should Members agree a lower figure this will mean a further call on reserves.
An assessment has been made of the ability of the Council to offset the costs of the
potential risks highlighted in section 10 of the Strategy. The Strategy therefore
reflects:




The provision of a contingency of £200k
Specific funding for LGR (£500k)
Provision of a budget to cover ongoing Covid-related costs (£221k)

Page 25
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 7

3 FEBRUARY 2022



A commitment to retain a minimum level of reserve in the general fund of £1m

8.0

IMPLICATIONS

8.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Significant financial implications on the Council are detailed in the report and the
Financial Strategy.
b)

Legal
There are no additional legal issues on the Council from the recommendations.

c)

Other
The proposals within the Financial Strategy do impact on the staffing resources
of the Authority. Appropriate procedures and plans are in place to manage these
issues including a process to bring forward further resource requests as
appropriate on a case-by-case basis.
As set out in section 1.7 of Annex A, any implications (such as Equalities, Staffing,
Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Climate Change, Crime & Disorder)
will be considered as part of any proposals and will be reported to Members
before recommendations are made and decisions taken.

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Anton Hodge
01653 600666 ext: 43385
anton.hodge@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Reports to Full Council October and December 2021
Reports to Policy and Resources September and November 2021

Page 26
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 8

3 FEBRUARY 2022

APPENDIX 2 - RESERVES AND BALANCES
£000s

31.03.22

31.03.23
In-year

General Reserve
Capital Fund
Election Reserve
New Homes Bonus Reserve
Collection Fund Equalisation Reserve
Pensions Reserve
Council Tax Hardship
COVID grants Reserve
Strategic Reserve

Page 27

Capital Reserves:
Capital Receipts
Total Capital Reserves
Total Reserves

31.03.24
In-year

3,194
3,115
37
3,582
237
306
0
0
1,136
11,606

0
-4,339
-90
0
-237
373

-1,927
-6,220

3,194
-1,224
-53
3,582
0
679
0
0
-791
5,387

401
401

-105
-105

12,007

-6,325

0
-2,452
30
0
0
0

31.03.25
In-year

-1,790
-4,212

3,194
-3,676
-23
3,582
0
679
0
0
-2,581
1,175

-1,827
-1,997

3,194
-3,876
7
3,582
0
679
0
0
-4,408
-822

296
296

0

296
296

0

296
296

5,683

-4,212

1,471

-1,997

-526

OFFICIAL

#

0
-200
30
0
0
0

APPENDIX 3: PRESSURES
Budget Pressures 2021/22 - 2024/25
2022-23
Estimate

2023-24
Estimate

2024-25
Estimate

£000's

£000's

£000's

Strategy Reference

Pressures identified 2020/21 Budget Round
General Inflation
Pay Inflation

60
180

60
180

60
180

6.28
6.28

Additional Capacity
Finance & Governance
Other Budget Pressures

170
200

0
-200

0

6.28
6.28

Total Pressures 2020/21 Budget Round

610

40

240

COVID-related Pressures
Stand-by payments
-25
Reduction in investment income
-150
Additional Vehicle Hire (Streetscene)
-23
loss of car park income
-155
loss of catering income
-10
additional finance resources
-50
Ryecare Income
-8
Procurement savings not achieved
-50
Streetscene (reduction of income, offset by reduction in diesel, etc)
-73
Customer Services Staff
-90
COVID Grant Revenue Officers
-25
COVID Marshall
-12
Online meetings
-25
Covid-secure workplace adjustments including PPE
-45
Support for Vol and Community sector including additional grant allocation
-25
COVID implementation and coordination arrangements (extension of contract)-22
-787

0

0

Adjustments for 2021/22 and future years

New COVID Pressures
Additional Vehicle Hire (Streetscene)
Reduction in investment income
Bureau staff for Streetscene

Council Plan Priorities
Tackling Inequalities
Financial Inclusion
Waste Services Improvement Programme
Cleaner Streets
Animal Welfare
Community Safeguarding
Flooding and Emergency Planning Staffing

Other Costs
Audio-Visual System
Eco Dev Project Support
Local Government Reorganisation
Facilities Management
Meeting Costs
Information Governance

One-off Maintenance Costs
Milton Rooms flat roof works
Churchyard wall in Slingsby - Approx. £30k

Total Budget Pressures

46
125
50
221

-46
-50
-96

60
50
50
30
30
55
38
313

6.21
6.21
6.21
0

6.13
6.14
6.15
6.16
6.17
6.18
6.19

-50
-50
-30
-30

-160

53
500
40
25
40

0

6.22
6.23
6.24
6.25
6.26

-500
-25

658

-525

0

-25
-30
-55

0

0

959

-741

240

Page
OFFICIAL 28
#

APPENDIX 4: SAVINGS
Budget Savings 2020/21 to 2023/24
2022-23
Projection
£000's
Investment Income
Recyling - Green Waste
Car Park Income
Pension Fund Trienniel Valuation
Procurement Savings
Pest Control

Total Savings

2023-24
Projection
£000's

2024-25
Projection
£000's

-20
-13
-15

-13
-15
-148
100
-6

-6

-82

-54

Page 29
#

OFFICIAL

2025-26
Projection
£000's

Strategy Reference

6.3
6.3
6.3
3.15
6.29
6.3

APPENDIX 5 - REVISED REVENUE SUMMARY FORECAST

Base Budget - starting point
Pressures identified
Savings
One off revenue budgets from reserves

2021/22
original

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

7,909
971
-377
842

8,503
1,802
-82
0

10,223
-741
-54
0

9,429
240
0
0

9,669
240
0
0

9,345

10,223

9,429

9,669

9,909

30
0
225
0

30
0
373
0

30
0
0
0

30
0
0
0

30
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

-600
-787

-237

0

0

0

-55
-180

-120
0
-1,907

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

7,978

8,362

9,459

9,699

9,939

-4,483
42
-200
0
-32
142

-4,679
-41
-200
0
-123
-247

-4,838
5
0
0
0
12

-5,000
0
0
0
0
0

-5,165
0
0
0
0
0

-1,639
-84
0
-70
-75
-260
-127
-572
-619
0

-1,663
-85
0
-74
-35
0
-14
-600
-488
-113

-1,696
-87
0
-74
-35
0
-12
-600
-230
-113

-1,730
-89
0
-74
-35
0

-1,730
-89
0
-74
-35
0

-600
-230
-113

-600
-230
-113

-7,977

-8,362

-7,668

-7,871

-8,036

0

0

1,790

1,827

1,903

Planned Contributions to Reserves
Contributions from revenue account
Capital Fund
BR Collection Fund Equalisation Reserve
District Election
Strategic Reserve
Pensions Reserve
Transfer additional Council Tax to Strategic Reserve
Allocation of New Homes Bonus
To NHB reserve
Capital Fund
Planned Use of Reserves
BR Collection Fund Equalisation Reserve
One-off COVID Contingency
District Election
Strategic Reserve
Support to Revenue Budget

Funded By:
REVENUE FINANCING
Local Income
Council Tax
Council Tax Collection Fund (Surplus) / Deficit
Business rates retained growth
Business rates pool dividend
Business rates renewable energy
Business Rates Collection Fund (Surplus) / Deficit)
Gov't Grants
Settlement Funding - Business Rates
S31 Grant - Multiplier Cap compensation
Revenue Support Grant
Lower Tier Services Grant
Local Council Tax Support Grant
Covid -19 Support Grant
Tax Income Guarantee Scheme
Rural Services Delivery Grant
New Homes Bonus
Services Grant

TOTAL EXTERNAL RESOURCES
Budget (Surplus) / Deficit

Page 30
OFFICIAL

#

APPENDIX 6 - CAPITAL PROGRAMME

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL - PROPOSED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/21 TO 2024/25
Category / Scheme

2021/22

2021/22

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Total

External
2020-2025

Net RDC

Revised Outturn
Budget Estimate carry-fwd Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000

Cost
£'000

Funding
£'000

Cost
£'000

2,609
33
160
32
0
216
0
26
30
201
80
65
35
197

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2,609
33
160
32
0
216
0
26
30
201
80
65
35
197

0
0

Vehicle Replacement Programme
Trade Waste Equipment
Replacement of Garage Inspection pit
Property Condition Survey: Investment/Operational Assets
Property Condition Survey: Leisure Facilities
Property Condition Survey: Milton Rooms
Property Condition Survey: Depot
Property Condition Survey: Public Conveniences
Property Condition Survey: Car Parks
Property Condition Survey: Street Lights
Property Condition Survey: St. Leonard's Well
Property Condition Survey: Waste Transfer Site
Property Condition Survey: Riverside View Play Area
Property Condition Survey: Unallocated

1,788
33
50
32
-4
216
0
0
30
201
80
65
0
42

1,433
4
160
0
0
200
0
26
30
186
80
65
35
70

355
29
-110
32
-4
16
0
-26
0
15
0
0
-35
-28

736

Car Park Action Plan
Industrial Units - New Development
Milton Rooms - Grant towards building works
Milton Rooms - ringenced for business case
Livestock market - ringfenced subject to business case
Ryedale House - Covid-safe Adjustments
Malton and Norton Infrastructure
Community Facilities in Pickering
Malton to Pickering Cycle Route

50
2,290
193
307
1,500
55
350
200
670

0
8
193
128
100
55
166
200
609

50
2,282
0
179
1,400
0
184
0
61

48

150
2,290
193
307
2,150
55
350
200
718

477

286

191

30

507

45
60

45
60

IT Infrastucture Strategy

Page 31

Animal Welfare
Cleaner Streets

Aff
Aff
Aff
Aff
Aff

Hsg Init - Exception Sites Land Purchase
Hsg Init - Railway Tavern
Hsg Init - Extended Programme Delivery
Hsg Init - Property Improvement Loans
Hsg Init - Landlord Improvement Loans/Grants

Private Sector Energy Efficiency Grants
Private Sector Renewal - Disabled Facilities Grants
Community Housing Fund
Mortgage Rescue Scheme
Flooding Contigency
Milton Rooms - additional capital bid
TOTAL OF PROPOSED CAPITAL PROGRAMME

45

40

35
28

17

110

50

50

-1,220

1,780

110
4

26

100
724
1,506
75
50

0
366
625
20
0

100
358
881
55
50

40
496
289
21
100

40
496
0
0
300

0
0
289
0
0

10
496

12,025

5,880

6,324

1,703

863
70

90

1,851

496

496

4,239

736

152
160

0

643

150
2,290
193
307
1,650
55
350
200
75

0

507

500
0

45
60

100
724
4,220
145
50

100
724
2,832
0
0

0
0
1,388
145
50

50
1,984
289
0
452
160

40
1,984
289
0
0

10
0
0
0
452
160

18,882

7,112

11,770

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/2022 TO 2024/25 - SUMMARY OF FUNDING
2021/22

2021/22
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
Outturn
Estimate Estimate carry-fwd Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
External Grants and Contributions
Department Communities & Local Government (DCLG)
Energy Efficiency Grant
Homes England Grant
Other Grants
Developers Contributions
Developers Contributions
Total External Grants and Contributions
Borrowing - Finance Leases
Borrowing - Temp Internal Borrowing
Long Term Debtors/Capital Receipts
Reserves
TOTAL FUNDING OF CAPITAL PROGRAMME

785
40
504
628
1,228

496
40
7
609
984

289
0
497
19
244

3,185

2,136

1,049

1,348
160
125
7,207

1,348
85
20
2,291

0
75
105
5,095

12,025

5,880

6,324

Total

£'000

496

496

496

2,273
40
1,462
643
2,194
500
7,112

933
15
0
280
1,724

25

0

966
220
1,707

0
496

736
0

45
35

40
0

-757

2,452

200

2,169
195
125
9,281

1,703

4,239

736

18,882

OFFICIAL

#

APPENDIX 7 - GENERAL FUND SUMMARY
2020/21
Actual
£

2021/22
Original
Estimate
£

2021/22
Revised
Estimate
£

Service

1,055,642
1,997,954
35,654
-7,019,320
-3,930,070

1,292,340
1,979,270
-3,877
4,128,876
7,396,609

CENTRAL SERVICES
1,292,340 Central Services to the Public
2,040,120 Corporate & Democratic Core
-3,877 Non Distributed Costs
4,125,876 Other Operating Income & Expenditure
7,454,459 Total

858,200

769,960

3,806,184

3,274,082

3,279,492 ENVIRONMENTAL & REGULATORY SERVICES

3,630,037

1,362,922

1,610,430

1,610,430 PLANNING SERVICES

1,915,950

-57,985

-341,290

1,248,915

1,373,196

769,960 CULTURAL & RELATED SERVICES

-341,290 HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT SERVICES
1,373,196 HOUSING SERVICES

2022/23
Original
Estimate
£

1,221,630
2,665,530
-2,719
1,986,325
5,870,766
798,230

-455,230
1,478,656

3,288,166 14,082,987 14,146,247

13,238,409

3,454,647

-7,828,561

-6,200,000

6,742,813

6,254,426

-7,891,821 CONTRIBUTIONS TO/(FROM) EARMARKED RESERVES
6,254,426 TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE

Page 32
OFFICIAL

#

7,038,409

APPENDIX 8 - DETAILS OF NET EXPENDITURE
2020/21
Actual
£

2021/22
Original
Estimate
£

2021/22
Revised
Estimate
£

Division / Subdivision of Service

2022/23
Original
Estimate
£

CENTRAL SERVICES TO THE PUBLIC
112,003

127,770

127,770 General Grants, Bequests & Donations

133,240

176,721

315,940

315,940 Emergency Planning

140,670

194,492
-96,715
288,612
-15,980
370,409

165,020
274,760
54,930
494,710

Local Tax Collection
165,020 Local Council Tax Support Scheme
- Council Tax Benefits
274,760 Council Tax Collection
54,930 Non-Domestic Rates Collection
494,710 Sub Total

183,700
296,380
69,830
549,910

148,646
173,051
321,697

150,360
222,560
372,920

Elections
150,360 Conducting Elections
222,560 Registration of Electors
372,920 Sub Total

150,280
224,580
374,860

74,812

-19,000

-19,000 Local Land Charges

1,055,642

1,292,340

22,950

1,292,340 Total Central Services to the Public

1,221,630

CORPORATE & DEMOCRATIC CORE
1,102,773

1,126,190

895,181

853,080

1,997,954

1,979,270

1,187,040 Corporate Management
853,080 Democratic Representation & Management
2,040,120 Total Corporate & Democratic Core

1,709,780
955,750
2,665,530

NON DISTRIBUTED COSTS
Non Distributed Costs
Costs of Unused Shares of Assets

35,654

-3,877

-3,877

35,654

-3,877

-3,877 Total Non Distributed Costs

-2,719
-2,719

OTHER OPERATING INCOME & EXPENDITURE

-

58,381

65,200

62,200 External Interest Payable

-177,040
26,339
-150,701

-55,000
-1,600
-56,600

24,000

30,500

320,000

390,000

-1,935,000

-

- Pensions Actuarial Gains & Losses

-

34,875

-

- Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of PP&E Assets

-

17,355
5,258
12,097

-421,882
-421,882

Other Corporate Costs & Operating Expenditure
-421,882 General Financial Provisions
- Capital Receipts Unattached to Non Current Assets
-421,882 Sub Total

-510,265
-510,265

-2,734,850

-1,723,072

-2,648,122

5,844,730

5,844,730 Adjs between Accounting & Funding under Regulations

3,448,290

-7,019,320

4,128,876

4,125,876 Total Other Operating Income & Expenditure

1,986,325

Interest & Investment Income
-55,000 Interest & Investment Income
-1,600 Investment Property
-56,600 Sub Total
30,500 Impairment Losses on Financial Instruments
390,000 Pensions Interest Cost & Expected Return on Assets

-1,723,072 Non Ringfenced Government Grants

Page
33
OFFICIAL
#

70,470

-80,000
31,220
-48,780
30,500
320,000

-1,323,890

APPENDIX 8 - DETAILS OF NET EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)
2020/21
Actual
£

2021/22
Original
Estimate
£

2021/22
Revised
Estimate
£

Division / Subdivision of Service

2022/23
Original
Estimate
£

CULTURAL & RELATED SERVICES
Culture & Heritage
50,110 Museums & Galleries
60,040 Arts Development & Support
110,150 Sub Total

47,194
60,891
108,085

50,110
60,040
110,150

108,139

98,430

73,669
445,041
33,631
8,347
560,688

74,170
370,300
8,210
6,060
458,740

Recreation & Sport
74,170 Community Centres & Public Halls
370,300 Indoor Sports & Recreation Facilities
8,210 Outdoor Sports & Recreation Facilities
6,060 Sports Development & Community Recreation
458,740 Sub Total

57,690
379,710
8,460
6,210
452,070

76,342
4,946
81,288

102,640
102,640

Tourism
102,640 Tourism Policy, Marketing & Development
- Visitors Centres
102,640 Sub Total

113,800
113,800

858,200

769,960

769,960 Total Cultural & Related Services

798,230

98,430

Open Spaces
Community Parks & Open Spaces

58,010
67,710
125,720

106,640

ENVIRONMENTAL & REGULATORY SERVICES
Cemetery, Cremation & Mortuary Services
Closed Churchyards

-1,200

50,480

50,480

47,001

40,010

45,420 Community Safety (Crime Reduction)

47,198

-

41,986
99,327
141,313

27,210
100,520
127,730

Flood Defence & Land Drainage
27,210 Defences Against Flooding
100,520 Land Drainage & Related Work
127,730 Sub Total

1,089,327

804,580

804,580

5,614
102,518
106,705
128,521
31,661
6,758
108,091
211,025
29,021
100,851
52,424
883,189

-8,410
116,480
186,956
118,510
37,120
7,250
167,369
248,647
44,100
81,440
43,630
1,043,092

597,690

491,330

101,241

-6,630

-6,630

900,425

723,490

723,490

3,806,184

3,274,082

- Community Safety (Safety Services)

Recycling
Recycling Collection

21,090
38,500
2,010

28,940
106,990
135,930

925,600

Regulatory Services
-8,410 Alcohol & Entertainment Licensing
116,480 Animal & Public Health
186,956 Environmental Protection
118,510 Food Safety
37,120 Health & Safety
7,250 Infectious Disease Control
167,369 Pest Control
248,647 Public Conveniences
44,100 Taxi Licensing
81,440 Water Safety
43,630 Noise & Nuisance
1,043,092 Sub Total
491,330 Street Cleansing

-14,550
167,970
213,962
153,200
48,270
9,670
150,749
236,706
30,300
108,960
52,820
1,158,057
552,710

Trade Waste
Trade Waste Collection

-21,880

Waste Collection
Household Waste Collection

818,020

3,279,492 Total Environmental & Regulatory Services

APPENDIX 8 - DETAILS OF NET EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)

Page
34
OFFICIAL
#

3,630,037

2020/21
Actual
£

2021/22
Original
Estimate
£

2021/22
Revised
Estimate
£

Division / Subdivision of Service

2022/23
Original
Estimate
£

PLANNING SERVICES
Building Control
68,000 Building Regulations
31,990 Other Building Control Work
99,990 Sub Total

26,465
467
26,932

68,000
31,990
99,990

8,884
84,399
41,857
135,140

19,500
85,490
76,510
181,500

Business Support
19,500 Grants/Loans & Guarantees
85,490 Premises Development
76,510 Support to Business & Enterprise
181,500 Sub Total

21,350
102,220
91,500
215,070

5,598

103,630

103,630 Community Development

276,220

204,461
39,194
162,397
406,052

165,960
84,710
149,270
399,940

165,960
84,710
149,270
399,940

Development Control
Advice
Dealing with Applications
Enforcement
Sub Total

212,370
66,350
179,240
457,960

23,929
446,181
470,110

2,430
304,740
307,170

Economic Development
2,430 Market Undertakings
304,740 Promotion & Marketing of the Area
307,170 Sub Total

6,590
378,790
385,380

59,116

78,070

6,489
20,985
232,500
259,974

6,770
205,840
227,520
440,130

1,362,922

1,610,430

78,070

Environmental Initiatives
Environmental Initiatives General

Planning Policy
6,770 Conservation & Listed Buildings Policy
205,840 Local Development Framework
227,520 Local Plans General
440,130 Sub Total
1,610,430 Total Planning Services

72,080
29,650
101,730

87,230

7,950
118,280
266,130
392,360
1,915,950

HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT SERVICES

-100,236

-387,770

-387,770

42,251

46,480

46,480

-57,985

-341,290

Parking Services
Off-Street Parking

-506,360

Public Transport
Support to Operators

51,130

-341,290 Total Highways & Transport Services

-455,230

APPENDIX 8 - DETAILS OF NET EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)
2020/21

2021/22

2021/22

Division / Subdivision of Service

Page
35
OFFICIAL
#

2022/23

Actual
£

Original
Estimate
£

Revised
Estimate
£

Original
Estimate
£
HOUSING SERVICES

74,037

70,920

70,920 Enabling

77,010

125,023
166,805
-858
29,830
320,800

214,601
160,830
18,410
393,841

Homelessness
214,601 Homelessness Administration
160,830 Hostels (Non-RHA Support)
- Other Temporary Accommodation
18,410 Leased Private Managed Accommodation
393,841 Sub Total

207,181
187,840
28,500
423,521

124,879

114,850

114,850 Housing Advice

124,320

361,950

149,480

149,480 Housing Benefits Administration

161,890

36,192
132,629
168,821

16,000
32,000
48,000

-96,991

210,015

73,526
522
74,048

66,670
-2,580
64,090

159,694

145,410

145,410 Other Welfare Services

61,677

176,590

176,590

1,248,915

1,373,196

3,454,647

-7,828,561

6,742,813

6,254,426

Housing Benefits Payments
16,000 Non-HRA Rent Rebates
32,000 Rent Allowances
48,000 Sub Total
210,015 Housing Strategy

16,000
32,000
48,000
230,545

Other Council Property
66,670 Travellers Sites
-2,580 Non-HRA Council Property
64,090 Sub Total

Private Sector Housing Renewal
Administration of PSHR Grants

1,373,196 Total Housing Services
-7,891,821 CONTRIBUTIONS TO/(FROM) EARMARKED RESERVES
6,254,426 NET EXPENDITURE

82,980
-24,820
58,160
170,000

185,210
1,478,656
-6,200,000
7,038,409

Page
36
OFFICIAL
#

ANNEX A
RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL FINANCIAL STRATEGY

FINANCIAL STRATEGY
2022-26

Page 37
OFFICIAL1- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

FINANCIAL STRATEGY

CONTENTS
Main Report

1.

Introduction

2.

Objectives of the Financial Strategy

3.

Financial Assumptions

4.

Commercial Strategy

5.

Council Tax

6.

Budget Outlook 2022/23 – 2025/26

7.

Revenue Summary

8.

Capital Programme

9.

Reserves and Balances

10.

Impact/Risk Assessment

11.

Pay Policy

12.

Conclusion

Appendices (will be added at relevant stages of process):
1:
2:
3:
4:
5:
6:
7:
8:

Pay Policy 2022/23
Reserves
Pressures
Savings
Summary
Capital
General Fund Summary – for council report
Details of Net Expenditure – for council report

Page 38
OFFICIAL2- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

1. Introduction
1.1

The Council’s Financial Strategy provides the financial framework to deliver
the Council Plan.

1.2

It aims to provide financial sustainability, resilience and capacity for the
Council in pursuing its objectives and secure the resources necessary to
deliver the Corporate Plan, whilst managing the funding uncertainties we are
facing.

1.3

The Financial Strategy sets out the overall approach in which detailed
proposals and actions will be developed and considered when agreeing the
annual budgets. This is normally over a four-year period and although the
Council is due to cease to exist after April 2023, this timescale continues to
be reflected in the Strategy to provide information to the planning of the
successor council.

1.4

This Strategy is a live document and as such will be updated as when further
information becomes available – such as the expected final financial
settlement in January 2022.

1.5

Any costs arising from LGR are not yet known. Against this backdrop of
uncertainty the key drivers for the financial strategy remain unchanged as
the pressure on Local Government finance continues.

1.6

The Strategy currently covers the next four years, from 2022 to 2026.

1.7

Any implications (such as Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety,
Environmental, Climate Change, Crime & Disorder) will be considered as
part of this work and will be reported to Members before recommendations
are made and decisions taken.

1.8

The Strategy has an emphasis on financial self-sufficiency - aiming to secure
the resources necessary to deliver the Corporate Plan, whilst managing the
funding cuts we are facing – ultimately over the long term achieving a selfsustaining financial model which sees the Council free from reliance on
central government funding by raising income locally through Council Tax
and Business Rates as well as through charging appropriately for services,
maximising investments and commercial activity.

Page 39
OFFICIAL3- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

2. Objectives of the Financial Strategy
2.1

The Financial Strategy contains the following objectives:
1.

Budgets are Prudent and Sustainable in the Long Term. The Council will aim
to maintain a balanced budget by ensuring that in-year expenditure is
matched by income from Council Tax, Business Rates, fees and charges
and grants from government and other bodies. Funding from reserves will be
used to cover one-off investments or temporary initiatives subject to a
detailed business case being approved by Members.

2.

Financial plans recognise corporate Priorities and Objectives.

3.

Significant risks are identified, and mitigation factors identified.

4.

The Capital Programme is planned over a 4-year period with no further
borrowing planned at this stage other than Finance lease arrangements.
This will be kept under review to ensure optimum Financing arrangements
are put in place as capital plans progress.

5.

Constraints on capital and revenue resources, including the uncertainties
around future government funding, are recognised and taken into account.

6.

Council Tax increases will be kept within the Government’s expected upper
level of increase, and the broad anticipated increase for future years will be
set out within the Financial Plans, recognising that these increases may be
subject to change.

7.

Prudent levels of general balances, reserves and contingencies are
maintained in the context of an assessment of the risks facing the Council;

8.

Value for Money and achievement of improved efficiency and service
delivery underpin the Financial Strategy.

9.

The Financial Strategy supports the achievement of Excellence in Financial
Management and use of resources.

10.

The Council will seek to maximise income through a Commercial Strategy.

11.

Ensure that the successor authority in North Yorkshire is made aware of the
overall financial picture of RDC including future financial risks and to work
with other councils in line with any local protocols agreed on financial issues.

Page 40
OFFICIAL4- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

3. Financial Assumptions
Economic Assumptions
Interest Rates
3.1

There were two emergency cuts in Bank Rate from 0.75% to 0.25% and then
to 0.10% as a result of the coronavirus outbreak in March 2020. As
expected, rates increased to 0.25% in December 2021 and in the latest
forecasts received from Link (the Council’s treasury management advisors)
these are expected to rise to in June 2022 (0.50%), March 2023 (0.75%) and
rising to 1.0% by March 2024.

3.2

The approved strategy already included a cap on investment income of
£200k to protect the general fund from over reliance on treasury returns
during uncertain times resulting from Brexit. However, the increased turmoil
in the financial markets due to COVID-19, the resulting rates forecasts and
the reduction in reserves suggest that returns on cash balances will remain
below this level for the foreseeable future and will be included as an ongoing budget pressure.
Investment
Income
Average rate %
Interest £000’s

3.3

2021/22

2022/23

0.25%
55

0.50%
80

2023/24

2024/25

0.75%
100

1.0%
100

Rates will be kept under review and forecasts updated as necessary.
Pay and Price Inflation

3.4

Provision for the public sector pay award for 2022/23 onwards of an average
of 3% will be assumed, although it should noted that the 2021/22 pay award
has not yet been finalised and awarded.

3.5

As at December 2021 CPI inflation was running at 5.4%. However, it
remains to be seen how the economic uncertainties and issues with supply
chains and the ongoing impact of COVID will reflect on the outlook for the
economy and inflation. The Monetary Policy Committee sets policies to
meet the 2% CPI target and expects rates to rise over the next two years
although the effects of COVID and Brexit mean on-going uncertainty. The
MTFS assumptions on inflation therefore range from 1.5% to 3.5%, although
inflation will only be provided on contractual budgets, staff pay and income.
Settlement Funding

3.6

This element of funding has seen the most significant changes in recent years
following the localisation of Business Rates and Council Tax Support.

3.7

The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement was announced on the
17 December 2021. The figures in this report use those as per that provisional
settlement.

Page 41
OFFICIAL5- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A
Business Rates Retention
3.8

The Council was part of a successful bid for 2019-20, which included
councils in West Yorkshire as well as our colleagues in the North Yorkshire
pool and the City of York. This did not continue into 2021/22, in agreement
with the other local authorities in the pool because of the uncertainty around
business rates income during the pandemic. However, income levels are
now more settled. Therefore most of the North Yorkshire councils have
notified central government of the intention join a pool next year, having
undertaken detailed calculations together to look at the best financial
prospect for all of the Councils. This modelling showed that that the business
rates pool would be viable and could generate an additional £4.6m for the
region in retained rates. This optimal model would include all North Yorkshire
councils excluding Selby (as has been the case in recent years due to the
specific circumstances there) and Harrogate – who would rejoin the West
Yorkshire Pool and bring benefits into the area that way. The financial
benefit of joining will be felt by residents in 2023/24.

New Homes Bonus
3.9

New Homes Bonus (NHB) is an incentive scheme which rewards housing
growth. It provides funding based on the number of new properties brought
into use with an added element for affordable housing. The calculation
provides that 80% of the funding is paid direct to District Councils with the
County Council receiving the remaining 20%. The scheme is funded partly
by the Government and also by top-slicing the Local Government funding
settlement. Ryedale achieved £1.676m p.a. when the scheme reached
maturity for 2016/17 (year 6 of the scheme).

3.10

However, the Government’s evaluation of NHB and consultation early in
2016 resulted in it being it being scaled back to a 4 year scheme with a 0.4%
growth threshold – for 2020/21 £835k was received.

3.11

New Homes Bonus funding will continue for the time being with some
uncertainty over its future. The final grant expected for 2021/22 is £567k and
£488k has been estimated for 2022/23 – but this could change in the final
settlement.

3.12

The use of this funding in recent years is shown in the table below. The
revised Financial Strategy assumes that all of the grant will now be used to
support additional spend in the budget on areas such as economic
development and housing. This was highlighted in previous versions of the
Strategy.

Page 42
OFFICIAL6- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A
Year

2014/2015 (received)
2015/2016 (received)
2016/2017 (received)
2017/18 (received)
2018/19 (received)
2019-20 (received)
2020/21 (due)
2021/22 (final)
2022/23 (estimate)

NHB £000

1,127
1,387
1,676
1,420
964
861
835
567
488

Revenue
Support
£000
175
559
327
32
0
0
121
567
488

Capital
Support
£000
0
288
188
188
188
188
0
0
0

Balance
£0001
952
540
604
1,200
776
673
714
0
0

Special and Specific Grants
3.13

In the Provisional Financial Settlement, announced on 16 December 2021,
the following grants were confirmed:


Lower Tier Services Grant (£74k). This is our share of an unringfenced funding of £111m to English councils, introduced in
2021/22, with responsibility for services such as homelessness,
planning, recycling and refuse collection and leisure services. The
grant contains a one-off minimum funding floor, so that no council –
either upper or lower tier – will have less funding available in 2022/23
than the year before.



Local Council Tax Support Grant. The current assumption is that this
will reduce to £35k in 2022/23.



Local Tax Income Guarantee (£14k). This is to help compensate
councils for lost council tax and business rates income and helps to
offset the losses over three years.



In 2021/22 there was a one-off COVID-19 Support Grant of £260k.
This will not be repeated in 2022/23.



Section 31 Multiplier Cap Compensation (£85k).



A new 2022/23 Services Grant introduced as a one-off (£113k)



Rural Services Delivery Grant (£600k)

Pensions
3.14

1

The Council’s employers’ contribution rate for the North Yorkshire Pension
Fund is set every 3 years based upon actuarial assumptions and investment
expectations. Like many other Councils Ryedale’s pension fund now has an
estimated surplus of £8.7m at 31 March 2019 when the last valuation was
undertaken. The employers’ rate is designed to cover future service costs
and a contribution towards the historic deficit, which aims to balance the fund
over the long term. Changes to the scheme benefits have also been
introduced in order to reduce the costs of future pension payments.

Allocated to NHB Reserve

Page 43
OFFICIAL7- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A
3.15

The triennial valuation took place last year and has set employer contribution
rates for the next three years. These show a reduced expectation to the tune
of £81k, £144k and £148k over the period 2020-23. As agreed in 2020, the
Strategy assumes that this headroom will be held in reserve to assist any
negative of the next valuation in future years.

Debt Charges
3.16

Management of the Council’s debt is governed by the Treasury Management
Strategy and Prudential Indicators which aim to ensure the Council’s capital
expenditure plans are prudent, affordable and sustainable, with decisions on
borrowing taken in light of spending plans and available funding, cash flow
needs and interest rates (current and future forecasts).

3.17

Borrowing enables the Council to spread the cost of capital expenditure over
time. Generally speaking it gives rise to 2 charges against the revenue
budget: Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and interest payable on debt.

3.18

MRP is an amount set aside to repay debt in accordance with the approved
policy within the Treasury Management Strategy. The current policy is to
charge MRP for assets included within the debt liability over the useful life of
the asset or finance lease term. The current annual charge to General Fund
balances is £35k. At this stage, it is anticipated that MRP changes will be
reviewed as the Housing Programme progresses, in line with any internal
borrowing used to fund scheme costs.

3.19

The Council has resolved to fund the current capital programme through the
use of grant funding and reserve balances, (with the exception of Finance
Leases), thus removing the need to borrow. However, should this position
change, the current environment of low returns on cash investments means
that it is more favourable to borrow internally (i.e. use available cash
earmarked for future spend) than take out new external borrowing. This will
be kept under review as part of monitoring the Council’s Treasury activities.

Page 44
OFFICIAL8- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

4. Commercial Strategy
4.1

The key drivers for the Council’s original Commercial Strategy were the
future financial pressures and a need to plug a likely funding gap in the years
to come or to fund investment in services, and to look at how the Council can
become self-sufficient other than where specific grants are allocated by
central government. This has now been impacted by LGR.

4.2

Alongside this is a requirement to ensure that the Council provides the best
value for money to the people of Ryedale.

4.3

Commercial opportunities can have a positive impact on the Council and the
area by:

4.4

-

Developing the portfolio of services provided by the Council and making
it a more attractive place to work

-

Generating additional income which, in addition to plugging any financial
gap, can be used to invest in services

-

Working more closely with business and ensuring the Council is a key
player in ensuring that we maximise the economic potential of our area
and achieve our strategic outcomes across our communities

The Financial Strategy included a number of income targets over the next
few years and these have been revised due to the impact of the pandemic
and further progress for this will now be picked up as part of Local
Government Reorganisation.

Page 45
OFFICIAL9- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

5. Council Tax
5.1

The Council Tax Base in 2022/23 is 22,227 (an increase from 21,801 the
previous year and back above the 2020/21 figure of 22,062) and the
Strategy estimates a 1% rise forecast thereafter. Every 0.5% increase above
this level will add approximately 109 Band D equivalents to our Tax Base
which equates to just over £22k p.a. at the current Band D charge. The full
1% increase would provide £45k.

5.2

The Provisional Settlement confirmed that for 2022/23 central Government
will allow district councils to increase their Band D charge by 2% or £5
whichever is the highest, without triggering a referendum. Our assumptions
are that this will be 2% or £5 per annum in future years. As the Council
needs to take account of an adjustment due to arrangements with three
specific parishes, the actual increase would be around £4.90 per annum

5.3

The impact of such an increase will be to provide a further £108k of funding.

5.4

Should members choose to freeze council tax at 2021/22 amounts, the
savings per household would equate to around 9p per week but this would
increase the budget gap by around £108k.

Page 46
OFFICIAL10
- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

6. Budget Outlook 2022/23 – 2025/26
6.1

After bringing the budget into balance in 2019/20, 2020/21 (and continuing
into 2021/22), the costs on the Council of COVID have had a significant and
detrimental effect on the revenue budget in both 2020/21 and 2021/22.
Members agreed to earmark £787k in 2021/22 from reserves to cover the
costs arising from the pandemic and the latest budget monitoring figures
suggest this to be on track. However the reintroduction of some restrictions
and other effects of the Omicron variant mean that we will continue to
monitor this position through to the end of the financial year. Any financial
impact is likely to be felt in that final quarter of the year.

6.2

The proposed budget is based therefore on a number of assumptions which
include any ongoing impact of COVID and other significant policy changes
including EU transition and local government reform (LGR).

6.3

In general, it is assumed that on average costs will increase in line with
inflation.
Employee Costs

6.4

The single largest cost to the Council is its employees. In 2021/22 the
Council’s budget for all employee costs is around £9.8m. Over the past few
years staffing levels have increased to ensure that the Council had the
capacity to function effectively and efficiently, as shown below.

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

Headcount

FTE

262
233
232
229
212
193
163
165
175
221

218.3
198.3
202.7
201.4
187.4
170.2
142.9
151.8
164.4
202.8

Staffing levels 2012 - 2021
300
200
100
0
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Headcount

FTE

6.5

However twenty of the posts at April 2021 were temporary and additional
demands such as COVID, preparation for LGR and implementation of the
Council Plan and other member priorities have added pressure to workloads
and there is a risk that performance will dip if all planned projects proceed.
This issue will be picked up further below.

6.6

Salary budgets are set at mid-point of scale with no vacancy factor.

6.7

The budget includes costs to other organisations – such as NYCC – which
replace direct staffing costs. Estimated costs in 2021/22 are shown below. It
should be noted that in most cases these are not additional costs, however
additional funding is included for finance, Health & Safety and Human
Resources.

Page 47
OFFICIAL11
- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

Service

Organisation

Finance Resource
Legal Resource
HR Resource
Employment Support
Resourcing Solutions
Health & Wellbeing
Collection Fund
Cleaning Services
Procurement

NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
The York, North Yorkshire &
East Riding Strategic
Housing Partnership
NYCC

Housing
Health & Safety
White Rose
Improvement Agency

SBC

Budget
£000s
206
195
104
39
31
16
5
54
77
12
47
119

Budget Gap
6.8

The Financial Strategy agreed by Council in February 2021 noted that while
the 2021/22 budget balanced though use of reserves, there remained future
funding gaps as below:
2021/22:
2022/23:
2023/24:
2024/25:

6.9

£0k
£1,226k
£1,539k
£1,487k

The following paragraphs will set out the changes required to the budget
from that position.

Pressures
6.10

During the autumn of 2021, discussion and engagement took place with
elected members on priorities for the remaining lifetime of the Council. Two
workshops were held in October and a follow-up prioritisation exercise was
also carried out.

6.11

The budget proposed includes a number of the pressures and priorities that
have been identified. These areas of work cover:





Council priorities, including staffing capacity to ensure that these are
delivered
Continuing Impact of COVID on costs and income
General and pay inflation plus other budget adjustments, as set out in
Economic Assumptions (section 3) above
LGR transition costs

Page 48
OFFICIAL12
- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A
Council Plan Priorities (£313k revenue)
6.12

This section covers the revenue costs for these priorities. Some also have
capital costs and these are shown where relevant and all capital is covered
in more detail in section 8.

6.13

Tackling Inequalities (£60k revenue): In October 2021 Council agreed the
Equality Policy Statements and Objectives, in order for the Council to meet
its obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty, which is part of the
Equality Act 2010. An operational action plan has been drafted and requires
additional resources to ensure we deliver on our statutory duty. This would
be supported by the appointment of an officer to deliver the action plan and
ensure place-based working to respond to local need and concerns and
tackle inequalities.

6.14

Financial Inclusion (£50k revenue, one-off): To offer additional advice,
support and budgeting assistance to those who need it as a result of Covid,
helping them to manage their finances, ensuring they can access Citizens’
Advice services and working with the credit union to promote access to small
loans. The funding will include a Hardship Grant fund and two market pitch
sites for promoting access to advice in local communities.

6.15

Waste Services Programme (£50k revenue, one-off): implement
recommendations for waste and recycling services to ensure it delivers on
Council expectations, meets the service budget allocation and delivers an
effective and efficient service in line with national changes.

6.16

Cleaner Streets (£30k revenue, one-off; £60k capital): Improved audit and
inspection programme is a statutory requirement regarding the
implementation of the code of practice on litter and refuse. The costs will
fund additional staffing costs to undertake the audit and implement an
improvement action plan.

6.17

Animal Welfare and enforcement (£30k revenue, one-off; £45k capital): This
will fund work to uphold the highest standards of animal welfare, provide
accredited training to staff to deal with complex issues, ensure public space
protection order are in place, meet increased service costs for kennels/vets
and hold public information events. The capital cost is for new vans.

6.18

Community Safeguarding (£55k revenue): The aim is to create a district
where everyone feels welcome and can thrive, safeguarding vulnerable
people. The Council has a statutory duty to ensure the protection of children
and adults. The budget will cover the delivery of workforce training on
safeguarding, domestic abuse, autism, dementia and community-based
initiatives as recommended in the equalities action plan. The council also
has a new statutory duty as a result of the new Domestic Abuse Act which
received Royal Assent In April 2021, to raise awareness of domestic abuse,
deliver accommodation based advice and support.

6.19

Flooding and Emergency Planning Staffing (£38k revenue). This will help to
reduce flooding risk by investing in flood alleviation measures and working
with partners to provide an emergency response. Regarding emergency
planning and civil contingency, new national standards are to be implemented
in line with sub-regional partners. The staff cost will be partially met by an
existing budget for an officer one day a week (Emergency Planning SLA);
additional costs will be required for new out of hour arrangements across
services and release of staff to take part in emergency planning
training/response.

Page 49
OFFICIAL13
- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

6.20

The total revenue cost for all of these would be £313k as shown below:

Council Plan Priorities - Revenue

£000

Tackling Inequalities
Financial Inclusion
Waste Services Programme
Cleaner Streets
Animal Welfare
Community Safeguarding
Flooding and Emergency Planning

60
50
50
30
30
55
38
313

Continuing Impact of COVID on costs and income (£221k)
6.21

The one-off funding of £787k agreed by Council for 2021/22 has been
removed from the budget. However in recognition of the continuing effect
caused by the pandemic, a new amount of £221k has been identified as
below. £125k of this relates to a forecast reduction in investment income,
although part of the cause of this is due to expected reduction in reserves.
Additional Vehicle Hire (Streetscene)
Bureau staff for Streetscene
Impact on investment income

46
50
125
221

Other Costs (£658k)
6.22

Economic Development Project Support (£53k revenue). This is required to
ensure that some of the projects listed above, such as the Livestock Market,
are managed effectively.

6.23

Local Government Reorganisation (£500k revenue – or could be “in kind”).
The financial implications of the LGR are not yet fully understood but all
existing councils will be expected to contribute to the costs of the
reorganisation. Based on the estimates set out in the NYCC Business Case,
on which the new council will be formed, implementation and transformation
costs could cost up to £38m. NYCC has set aside £34m form its reserves
towards this but all districts will be expected to contribute to the remaining
gap.

6.24

Facilities Management (£40k): to increase resilience in this area.

6.25

Meeting Costs (£25k). This is provision for any ongoing costs of the public
broadcasting of democratic meetings

6.26

Information Governance (£40k). This is to ensure that the council complies
with information security and governance requirements.

6.27

The total revenue cost for all of these would be £658k as shown below:

Page 50
OFFICIAL14
- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

Eco Dev Project Support
Local Government Reorganisation
Facilities Management
Meeting Costs
Information Governance

53
500
40
25
40
658

Inflation and Other Costs increases (£610k)
6.28

General inflation for pay and other costs have been included, as set out in
3.4 and 3.5 and this equates to £240k next year. Increased call on Legal
advice has meant an overspending on this budget and a further £170k has
been allocated to ensure the budget reflects this. A further £200k
contingency has been added for other unavoidable and unforeseen
increased costs.

Savings
6.29

A number of savings were identified and previously built into the budget. The
most significant was an expectation of savings on contracts delivered
through improved procurement and management of contracts. In the current
year, the target was £100k although £50k of this was offset due to COVID.
The current target for 2022/23 is a further £200k, increasing the total to
£300k, however with the short remaining lifespan of the council, no major
new procurement will take place and therefore this target will not be met.
Therefore this target has been removed.

6.30

Other savings (excluding the transfer of pension charges as set out above in
3.18) are:
£000s
Recycling - Green Waste

-13

Car Park Income

-15

Pest Control

-6

Total

6.31

-34

The net impact of savings, including the allocation to the pension fund (see
3.15 above) is £82k, as per Appendix 4.
Fees, Charges and Income Generation

6.32

Fees and charges have generally been increased in line with inflation, up to
4%, however there are some specific service areas that are exceptions to
this:




Pest Control: it is anticipated that charges will be increased at a
higher level to ensure the service is not subsidised
Green Waste, these have been frozen since 2017/18 at £38 per
licence

Page 51
OFFICIAL15
- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

Overall Impact of the above
6.33

In summary, the impact of all of the above would add just over £2m to the net
revenue budget in 2022/23:
Council Plan priorities
Continuing Impact of COVID on costs and income
Other costs
Inflation and other cost increases
Savings

£000
313
221
658
610
-82
1,720

6.34

This is £1,788k higher than as shown in February 2021 (which showed net
savings of £68k). Funding changes and additional grants have yet to be
confirmed but based on the provisional settlement, an increase of £1,107k is
currently expected (and may be updated).

6.35

Therefore there has been a net increase of £681k and this means that the
initial £1,226k gap, as set out in 6.10 above has now become £1,907k, which
would have to be funded from reserves.

6.36

The Capital implications arising from the inclusion of these costs is shown in
section 8 (Capital) and section 9 (reserves and balances).

Page 52
OFFICIAL16
- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

7. Revenue Summary
7.1

This section of the Strategy sets out the revised budget forecast based on
including all of the pressures set out above. This clearly shows as per the
table below that a further £1.9m would be required to balance the budget.
This equates to 23% of funding. The impact on reserves is covered in
section 9 below.
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

Base Budget starting point

8,503

10,223

9,429

9,669

Pressures Identified - appendix 3
Savings Identified - appendix 4
One-off base budget adjustments

1,802
-82
0

-741
-54

240
0

240
0

10,223

9,429

9,669

9,909

30

30

30

30

Net budget before contribution to/from reserves
Planned contributions to / (from Reserves)
Contributions to fund future projects
Pension Fund Reserve
Drawdown from reserves to fund revenue projects

373

0

0

0

-120

0

0

0

NET Revenue Budget

10,506

9,459

9,699

9,939

Funding
Business Rates
Rural Services Delivery Grant
Council Tax
New Homes Bonus
Other Grants
Funding Available

-2,318
-600
-4,755
-488
-200
-8,362

-1,771
-600
-4,868
-230
-198
-7,668

-1,819
-600
-5,035
-230
-186
-7,871

-1,819
-600
-5,200
-230
-186
-8,036

2,144

1,790

1,827

1,903

-237
0
-1,907

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

1,790

1,827

1,903

Budget (Surplus) / Deficit
Transfer to / (from) BRER to support budget
Transfer to / (from) Reserves to fund COVID costs
Transfer to / (from) Reserves to support budget
Remaining budget (surplus) / Deficit

Page 53
OFFICIAL17
- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

8. Capital Programme
8.1

As part of the Council Plan Prioritisation work, the following additional
projects and costs have been included in the Programme.

8.2

Public Conveniences refurbishment (£26k – but already spent this year and
funded from the unallocated budget, so no additional cost).

8.3

Livestock Market (£150k). Latest estimates suggest that a further £650k is
required on top of the £1.5m earmarked by Council in February 2021. £500k
of this would be funded by developers’ contributions, with the remaining
£150k from reserves. It is envisaged that the bulk of expenditure on this
project would not take place until after April 2023 and this therefore would
become the responsibility of the new council.

8.4

Animal Welfare (£45k) – as per 6.17 above.

8.5

Cleaner Streets (£60k) – as per £6.16 above.

8.6

Energy Efficiency Grants (£10k), topping up grants from the Warm Homes
Fund.

8.7

Milton Rooms (£160k) – provision for an additional bid from the Milton
Rooms Committee which is expected to come to Policy and Resources
Committee in March 2022.

8.8

IT Infrastructure (£30k)

8.9

Flooding defences Norton (£152k)

8.10

The additional cost to the current programme therefore is as set out below.
Public Conveniences
Livestock market - net from reserves
Animal Welfare
Cleaner Streets
Private Sector Energy Efficiency Grants
Milton Rooms - additional capital bid
IT Infrastructure Strategy
Flooding Defences Norton

150
45
60
10
160
30
152
607

8.11

A number of projects are already covered to some extent in the programme,
such as the Car Park Action Plan. Not included are any additional capital
costs arising from this and any other detailed plans not yet developed.

8.12

All new schemes are reviewed against the Council priorities and a detailed
assessment of deliverability is undertaken prior to consideration by Council.
This methodology is applied to all proposals, regardless of the source of
funding, prior to any decision being made to accept external capital support
such as grant funding, so that the Council can ensure that they form part of
an overall capital investment strategy.

Page 54
OFFICIAL18
- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

8.13

The Council is committed to seeking out innovative partnership and funding
opportunities in order to deliver the capital strategy and achieve best value.

8.14

The Council will continue to work closely with funding partners. Future
projects will continue to be developed through partnership working more
likely with the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP). The Council also
recognises the importance of increased community engagement and
participation as fundamental to the quality of public services and the health
of community life. The Council will therefore seek to develop major projects
with the full involvement of local communities and ensure appropriate
consultation prior to scheme approval.

8.15

Resources to fund capital spending are provided from central government
grants, with other external grants and contributions sought. Council funding
in the form of capital receipts, use of reserves, borrowing and from revenue
sources make up the balance of resources. However, grants provided by
central government and resources from other external agencies are often
specific to an individual scheme and cannot be used for any other purpose
by the Council. The Council has limited scope to generate significant capital
receipts other than through the sale of major underutilised assets.

8.16

Under the Prudential Regime, which has operated since April 2004, the
Council has the responsibility to demonstrate that its capital investment
programme is affordable, prudent and sustainable. The Prudential Code
requires that this is done by calculating specific indicators for capital
expenditure and financing and by setting borrowing limits.

8.17

The revenue implications of funding and managing the capital programme
will be built into the medium-term financial forecasts.

8.18

At Q3, slippage in the current year’s capital programme of over £6m (more
than half of the programme) was noted and therefore there remains some
uncertainty regarding the achievement of the new programme proposed for
the final year of the programme. Nevertheless, the table below illustrates the
impact of including the new costs.

Category / Scheme

2021/22

Page 55
OFFICIAL19
- SENSITIVE

2021/22

2021/22

2022/23

ANNEX A

Revised
Budget
£'000

Outturn
Estimate
£'000

carryfwd
£'000

Estimate
£'000

Later
Years
as
planned
£'000

Vehicle Replacement Programme
Trade Waste Equipment
Replacement of Garage Inspection pit
Property Condition Survey:
Investment/Operational Assets
Property Condition Survey: Leisure Facilities
Property Condition Survey: Milton Rooms
Property Condition Survey: Depot
Property Condition Survey: Public
Conveniences
Property Condition Survey: Car Parks
Property Condition Survey: Street Lights
Property Condition Survey: St. Leonard's Well
Property Condition Survey: Waste Transfer Site
Property Condition Survey: Riverside View Play
Area
Property Condition Survey: Unallocated

1,788
33
50

1,433
4
160

355
29
-110

736
0
110

85
0
0

2,609
33
160

32
-4
216
0

0
0
200
0

32
-4
16
0

0
4
0
0

0
0
0
0

32
0
216
0

0
30
201
80
65

26
30
186
80
65

-26
0
15
0
0

26
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

26
30
201
80
65

0
42

35
70

-35
-28

35
28

0
127

35
197

Car Park Action Plan
Industrial Units - New Development
Milton Rooms - Grant towards building works
Milton Rooms - ringenced for business case
Livestock market - ringfenced subject to
business case
Ryedale House - Covid-safe Adjustments
Malton and Norton Infrastructure
Community Facilities in Pickering
Malton to Pickering Cycle Route

50
2,290
193
307

0
8
193
128

50
2,282
0
179

50

50
0
0
0

150
2,290
193
307

1,500
55
350
200
670

100
55
166
200
609

1,400
0
184
0
61

-1,220

48

1,870
0
0
0
0

2,150
55
350
200
718

477

286

191

30

0

507

45
60

0
0

45
60

863
70

0
0
1,851
0

100
724
4,220
145

0

50

IT Infrastucture Strategy
Animal Welfare
Cleaner Streets

Total
£'000

Aff Hsg Init - Exception Sites Land Purchase
Aff Hsg Init - Railway Tavern
Aff Hsg Init - Extended Programme Delivery
Aff Hsg Init - Property Improvement Loans
Aff Hsg Init - Landlord Improvement
Loans/Grants

100
724
1,506
75

0
366
625
20

100
358
881
55

50

0

50

Private Sector Energy Efficiency Grants
Private Sector Renewal - Disabled Facilities
Grants
Community Housing Fund
Mortgage Rescue Scheme
Flooding Contigency
Milton Rooms - additional capital bid

40

40

0

10

0

50

496
289
21
100

496
0
0
300

0
289
0
0

496

152
160

992
0
0
0
0

1,984
289
0
452
160

12,025

5,880

6,324

1,703

4,975

18,882

TOTAL OF PROPOSED CAPITAL
PROGRAMME

Page 56
OFFICIAL20
- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

8.19

This would be funded as shown below:

2021/22

2021/22

2021/22

2022/23

Estimate

Outturn
Estimate

carryfwd

Estimate

Later
Years
as
planned

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

785

496

289

496

992

2,273

Energy Efficiency Grant

40

40

0

0

0

40

Homes England Grant

504

7

497

933

25

1,462

Other Grants

628

609

19

15

0

643

1,228

984

244

0

966

2,194

280

220

500

External Grants and Contributions
Department Communities & Local
Government (DCLG)

Developers Contributions
Developers Contributions
Total External Grants and Contributions

Total

3,185

2,136

1,049

1,724

2,203

7,112

1,348

1,348

0

736

85

2,169

Borrowing - Temp Internal Borrowing

160

85

75

0

35

195

Long Term Debtors/Capital Receipts

125

20

105

0

0

125

7,207

2,291

5,095

-757

2,652

9,281

12,025

5,880

6,324

1,703

4,975

18,882

Borrowing - Finance Leases

Reserves
TOTAL FUNDING OF CAPITAL
PROGRAMME

Page 57
OFFICIAL21
- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

9. Reserves and Balances
9.1

The Local Government Act 2003 places a specific duty on the Chief Finance
Officer (s151), to make a report to the authority when it is considering its
budget and the level of the Council Tax. This report must deal with the
robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of reserves allowed for in the
budget proposals. The Council must have regard to this report in making
their decisions.

9.2

The Council also has a fiduciary duty to local taxpayers and the Chief
Finance Officer must be satisfied that the decisions taken on the level of
balances and reserves represent the proper stewardship of funds.

9.3

In assessing the adequacy of the contingencies, balances and reserves, the
Chief Finance Officer takes account of the key financial assumptions
underpinning the budget, together with an assessment of the Council’s
financial management arrangements. This assessment will include a review
of past performance and external influences on the financial plan, and full
consideration of the risks and uncertainties associated with the plan, their
likelihood and potential impact.

9.4

The Council’s policy is to maintain its contingencies, balances and reserves
at levels that are prudent but not excessive. With the outlook for the years
after 2020/21 and beyond currently uncertain, and the scale and risk of
achieving cost reduction being high, any reserves identified as being surplus
should be prioritised to invest to save schemes and, if required, to smooth
the curve of cost reduction in the light of timescales needed to drive costs
out.

9.5

It has been assumed in the past that General Balances are not used to
support the revenue budget but may be used for temporary or on-off costs –
although such costs will be clearly managed and agreed through the use of
the Strategic Reserve. In 2021/22, specific amounts were set aside for a
number of projects and the proposed budget gap as set out in section 7
below will have to be funded from reserves.

9.6

General Balances are funding of last resort. Taking account of the size of the
Council’s revenue budget and risks being managed, a minimum working
balance of £1m would seem appropriate.

9.7

At 1 April 2021 reserve balances were £16.2m revenue and £456k capital
receipts.

9.8

The second table shows what will happen to reserves under the proposals
outlined in this report in section 7.

9.9

This clearly shows that although the Council does have enough funding to
cover the 2022/23 budget, it leaves a problem for the new council to inherit.
Reserves as at March 2023 will be £5.4m. £679k is earmarked for the
pension fund and a further £2.7m for capital projects (mainly the Livestock
Market). That would leave £2m (which includes the minimum level of
provision of £1m). However, there is some uncertainty as to whether all of
the proposed capital programmes will be spent or committed in time and
therefore any unspent funds will increase that reserve.

Page 58
OFFICIAL22
- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A
Updated planned use of reserves 2021/22
£000s

31.03.21

General Reserve
Capital Fund
Election Reserve
New Homes Bonus Reserve
Collection Fund Equalisation Reserve
Pensions Reserve
Council Tax Hardship
COVID grants Reserve
Strategic Reserve

31.03.22

3,981
5,405
7
3,582
837
81
77
99
2,133
16,204

In-year

COVID
& one-off

0
-2,291
30
0
-600
225
-77
-99
-943
-3,755

-787

-55
-842

3,194
3,115
37
3,582
237
306
0
0
1,136
11,606

Planned use of reserves 2022-25, as per this budget, and assuming all projects are completed:
£000s

31.03.22

31.03.23
Inyear

General Reserve
Capital Fund
Election Reserve
New Homes Bonus Reserve
Collection Fund Equalisation
Reserve
Pensions Reserve
Council Tax Hardship
COVID grants Reserve
Strategic Reserve

31.03.24
Inyear

31.03.25
In-year

3,194
3,115
37
3,582

0
-4,339
-90
0

3,194
-1,224
-53
3,582

0
-2,452
30
0

3,194
-3,676
-23
3,582

0
-200
30
0

3,194
-3,876
7
3,582

237
306
0
0
1,136
11,606

-237
373

0
679
0
0
-791
5,387

0
0

0
679
0
0
-2,581
1,175

0
0

0
679
0
0
-4,408
-822

-1,927
-6,220

Page 59
OFFICIAL23
- SENSITIVE

-1,790
-4,212

-1,827
-1,997

ANNEX A

10.

Impact/Risk Assessment

10.1

This section recognises the challenges and risks that have implications for the
Council’s financial position in the medium term. This assessment of risk is an
essential element of the budget process; it is used to inform decisions about
the appropriate levels of contingencies and reserves that may be required and
to indicate priorities for financial monitoring.

10.2

Managing Risk is an important part of the Financial Strategy. In addition to the
Corporate Risk Register each service maintains its own risk register. The
Corporate Risk Register will be reported to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee during the forthcoming year.

10.3

A specific risk arising from COVID has been added and is both in respect of:



additional costs incurred by the Council
lack of concentration on other strategic financial issues as a result of
dealing with the pandemic

10.4

LGR is also a risk to delivery of a number of projects, as staff look to secure
their own futures.

10.5

A major risk for next year is the relatively high level of inflation, due in part to
some supply chain difficulties.

10.6

The key risks identified for 2022/23 and in the medium term are listed below,
together with comments on how they will be managed. These are consistent
the Council’s Corporate Risk Register.

Page 60
OFFICIAL24
- SENSITIVE

ANNEX A

Issue/Risk

Consequences if allowed
to happen
Additional cost to budget

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigation

Very Likely

Major

Additional finance staff
Monthly monitoring of COVID
costs and continuous lobbying of
central government.
Transparency of costs reported
to members.
Funding from reserves used to
offset the additional cost.

Fluctuations in inflation,
Government grants, business
rate receipts and changes in
Government legislation

Council unable to set a
balanced budget without
significant cuts to services
and service quality, adverse
external inspection,
excessive call on Council
reserves

Likely

Major

Budgets are over – or under –
spent

Unplanned use of reserves
which may impact on future
year Council Tax, adverse
external inspection

Not Likely

Major

Keep under review through the
financial strategy. Consider fully
any changes in legislation.
Ensure adequate reserves are
maintained to mitigate the risk.
Ensure authorities interests are
represented through the
LGA/other groups.
Memberships of business rate
pool to retain increased
business rates.
Ensure Longer Term plans for
significant variations are in
place.
Robust budget setting,
challenging budget provision.
Regular monitoring with
corrective actions. Develop a
culture of financial awareness.
Effective project planning and
management. Ensure sufficient
contingency sums. Review of
any material overspends.

Financial Impact of COVID
and inability to manage
finances, including lack of
work on key strategic issues
while we deal with the
pandemic

Page 61

25
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Mitigated
Likelihood
Likely

Mitigated
Impact
Medium

Likely

Medium

Not Likely

Minor

ANNEX A

Savings are not achieved

If compensating savings not
identified unplanned use of
reserves, potential for cuts
to services or service levels

Likely

Minor

Regular budget monitoring to
identify issues at an early stage.
Detailed scrutiny and review of
all savings proposals prior to
approval.

Not Likely

Minor

Changes in demand/usage
levels affecting income from
fees and charges

Unplanned use of reserves
with potential to impact on
future Council Tax levels or
requiring cuts to services or
service levels
Council fails to achieve
Corporate plan objectives.
Adverse external
inspection.

Very Likely

Major

Likely

Medium

Not Likely

Major

Not Likely

Minor

The capital programme is not
affordable

Council may need to
remove existing planned
schemes from the
programme or use reserves
earmarked for other
purposes.
Adverse external
inspection.

Likely

Major

Ensure regular monitoring
Review trends
Take appropriate action
Ensure base income budgets
are realistic.
Ensure corporate involvement in
the process. Early consideration
of budget pressures and
legislation changes. Regular
reporting to members.
Up to date Service Delivery
plans need to be developed and
put in place linked to corporate
plan.
Schemes are monitored and
reported on a regular basis.
Financing profile based on
realistic assumptions. Ensure
only fully evaluated schemes are
included within the programme
with sufficient contingency sums.

Not Likely

Medium

Poor budget planning with
decisions being made without

Council fails to meet
community needs, adverse

Likely

Major

Not Likely

Minor

Budget does not reflect
corporate priorities

Page 62

26
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Develop a long-term financial
strategy. Set out a clear budget

ANNEX A

Page 63

proper
consideration/consultation

impact on Corporate and
Community Plan. Adverse
external inspection

Council Tax Support scheme
–above expected demand or
collection rates not achieved

Collection fund into deficit
which may require
savings/cuts in future years.
Impact on other major
preceptors

Likely

Major

Staffing Capacity

Insufficient resource to deal
with competing demands of
the council and progress
major projects

Very Likely

Major

27
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

timetable. Regular updates to
Members. Effective ongoing
consultation processes. Ensure
financial capacity in the council
Proper assessment of likely take
up based on historic trends,
comparison with other
authorities, in year monitoring of
spend and collection. Regular
reporting to members and
s(151). Annual approval of the
scheme.
Additional capacity sourced and
implemented where required
(e.g. Planning support)

Not Likely

Likely

Major

Major

ANNEX A

Page 64
OFFICIAL28
- SENSITIVE

Pay Policy Statement 2021-2022
Document Control Sheet
Reference Number
Version Number
Document Author
Lead SMB Member
Ratifying Committee
Date Ratified
Date Policy Effective From
Next Review Date

HRPPS2022
01
HR/OD Project Officer
Head of HR
Policy & Resources, Council

Page 1 of 7

HRPPS2022v01

Page 65
OFFICIAL

1.

Introduction and Purpose

Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the “power to appoint
officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as authority thinks fit”. This Pay Policy
Statement (the ‘statement’) sets out the Council’s approach to pay policy in accordance with
the requirements of Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 and should be read in conjunction
with the Ryedale District Council Pay Policy. The purpose of the statement is to provide
transparency with regard to the Council’s approach to setting the pay of its employees by
identifying:




the methods by which salaries of all employees are determined
the detail and level of remuneration of its most senior staff i.e. ‘chief officers’, as
defined by the relevant legislation
the Committees responsible for ensuring the provisions set out in this statement are
applied consistently throughout the council and recommending any amendments to
the full council.

This policy statement has been approved by the Council and is effective from 1 April 2022.
It will be subject to review annually and in accordance with new or proposed legislation to
ensure that it remains relevant and effective.
2.

Accountability and Decision Making

In accordance with the constitution of the council, Full Council is responsible for the
confirmation of the appointment of Head of Paid Service, a committee or sub-committee of
the Council will appoint Chief Officers and appointment of officers below Chief Officers is the
responsibility of the Head of Paid Service.
The Policy and Resources Committee is responsible for ratifying/making recommendations
to Council on all Council policies, this includes recruitment, pay, terms and conditions and
severance arrangements in relation to employees of the Council.
3.

Other Employment-Related Arrangements

The Council’s policy and procedures with regard to recruitment of chief officers is set out
within the Officer Employment Procedure Rules as set out in Section 8 of the Constitution.
4.

Approval of Salary Packages in Excess of £100k.

The Council will ensure that, prior to an offer being made, any salary package for any post
that is in excess of £100k will be considered by Full Council. The salary package will be
defined as base salary, fees, routinely payable allowances and benefits in kind that are due
under the contract.
5.

Pay and Grade Structure

Ryedale District Council have implemented a pay structure which corresponds to a Job
Evaluation score range, and uses national NJC spine column points (SCP) together with
extended local pay points beyond the national pay spine as set out in Appendix A.

Page 2 of 7

HRPPS2022v01

Page 66
OFFICIAL

6.

Remuneration of Senior Officers

April 2021
The Chief Executive and Programme Director Economic Development, Business &
Partnerships are paid on spot salaries:
Chief Executive Officer
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Programme Director for Economic Development,
Business & Partnerships

Spot salary
Spot salary
Spot salary

£109,943
Vacant
£71,925

Heads of Service are paid on the NJC pay scale at Grades 11- 12 (locally agreed):
Role
Head of Communications, Technology and Business
Transformation *
Head of Customer and Community Services *
Head of Planning & Regulatory Services
Head of Waste & Environmental Services
Head of Corporate Governance (Monitoring Officer)
Head of Building Control
*In receipt of honoraria.

Grade
12

Salary Band1
£53,597 - £61,413

12
12
12
11
11

£53,597 - £61,413
£53,597 - £61,413
£53,597 - £61,413
£51,198 - £53,597
£51,198 - £53,597

2022 Onwards
The Chief Executive is paid on a spot salary:
Chief Executive Officer
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Spot salary
Spot salary

£109,943
Vacant

Senior Officers are paid on the NJC pay scale at Grades 11- 13c (locally agreed):
Role
Programme Director – Place and Resources
Programme Director – People and Resources
Head of Waste & Environmental Services
Head of Corporate Governance (Monitoring Officer)
Head of Building Control
Service Manager – Corporate Resources

Grade
13c
13c
12
11
11
11

Salary Band2
£73,984 - £81,204
£73,984 - £81,204
£56,074 - £61,413
£51,198 - £56,074
£51,198 - £56,074
£51,198 - £56,074

The following roles are fulfilled through a shared service agreement with North Yorkshire
County Council (NYCC) on the NYCC grading structure, paid through NYCC payroll:
 Chief Finance Officer (S151)
 Head of HR
Senior Officers do not receive any performance-related pay or bonuses.

1
2

Pay Award for 2021 pending
Pay Award for 2021 pending
Page 3 of 7

HRPPS2022v01

Page 67
OFFICIAL

Additional Payments
Monitoring Officer: The Head of Corporate Governance has been designated as the
Council’s Monitoring Officer. No additional remuneration is payable for that designation.
Returning Officer: The Chief Executive has been appointed as the Council’s Returning
Officer. The role is a separate responsibility and is remunerated separately after each
election in accordance with the appropriate election fees.
Additional Payments: Senior Officers do not receive overtime, on-call or stand-by
payments, and do not receive additional payment for attendance at evening meetings.
Honoraria: The chief executive, at their discretion, may make additional responsibility
payments as required.
7.

Lowest-Paid Employees, Minimum Wage and National Living Wage

Lowest-paid employees are employed on full time (37 hours) equivalent salaries in
accordance with the minimum spinal column point currently in use with the Council’s grading
structure. As at 1 April 20203, this is £18,562 (£9.62 per hour). This is £1.26 more than the
National Minimum Wage4 and £0.51 more than the National Living Wage5.
8.

Pay Multiple

As described above the council uses an established process of defining roles, determining
job size and salary levels. This process determines the relationship between the rate of pay
for the lowest paid and senior manager post, including chief officers, described as the pay
multiple. As at 31 March 2021:




The average median salary in the Council is £24,012.
The current pay multiple between the lowest paid (full time equivalent) employee and
the Chief Executive as 1:5.92 and;
The multiple between the median full time equivalent earnings and the Chief
Executive is 1:4.58

This is currently within the limits recommended by The Hutton Review of Fair Pay in the
Public Sector (2010) and will be monitored and recorded annually.

3

Pay Award for 2021 pending
April 2021: The National Minimum Wage for employees aged 21 - 22 is £8.36 per hour
5 April 2021: The National Living Wage (NLW) for employees aged 23 and over is £8.91 per hour
from 1 April 2021
4

Page 4 of 7

HRPPS2022v01

Page 68
OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1
Pay Scale 1 April 2021

Page 5 of 7

HRPPS2022v01

Page 69
OFFICIAL

SCP
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55

April 20
Salary*
£18,562
£18,933
£19,312
£19,698
£20,092
£20,493
£20,903
£21,322
£21,748
£22,183
£22,627
£23,080
£23,541
£24,012
£24,491
£24,982
£25,481
£25,991
£26,511
£27,041
£27,741
£28,672
£29,577
£30,451
£31,346
£32,234
£32,910
£33,782
£34,728
£35,745
£36,922
£37,890
£38,890
£39,880
£40,876
£41,881
£42,821
£43,857
£44,863
£45,859
£46,845
£47,822
£48,923
£50,046
£51,198
£52,374
£53,579
£54,811
£56,074
£57,362
£58,682
£60,033
£61,413

Grade

Hrly
£9.62
£9.81
£10.01
£10.21
£10.41
£10.62
£10.83
£11.05
£11.27
£11.50
£11.73
£11.96
£12.20
£12.45
£12.69
£12.95
£13.21
£13.47
£13.74
£14.02
£14.38
£14.86
£15.33
£15.78
£16.25
£16.71
£17.06
£17.51
£18.00
£18.53
£19.14
£19.64
£20.16
£20.67
£21.19
£21.71
£22.20
£22.73
£23.25
£23.77
£24.28
£24.79
£25.36
£25.94
£26.54
£27.15
£27.77
£28.41
£29.06
£29.73
£30.42
£31.12
£31.83

Grade 1
Grade 2

Grade 3

Grade 4

Grade 5

Grade 6

Grade 7

Grade 8

Grade 9

Grade 10

Grade 11

Grade 12

*Pay Award for 2021 pending

Pay Scale 2022 onwards
Page 6 of 7

HRPPS2022v01

Page 70
OFFICIAL

SCP
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67

April 20
Salary
£18,562
£18,933
£19,312
£19,698
£20,092
£20,493
£20,903
£21,322
£21,748
£22,183
£22,627
£23,080
£23,541
£24,012
£24,491
£24,982
£25,481
£25,991
£26,511
£27,041
£27,741
£28,672
£29,577
£30,451
£31,346
£32,234
£32,910
£33,782
£34,728
£35,745
£36,922
£37,890
£38,890
£39,880
£40,876
£41,881
£42,821
£43,857
£44,863
£45,859
£46,845
£47,822
£48,923
£50,046

£9.62
£9.81
£10.01
£10.21
£10.41
£10.62
£10.83
£11.05
£11.27
£11.50
£11.73
£11.96
£12.20
£12.45
£12.69
£12.95
£13.21
£13.47
£13.74
£14.02
£14.38
£14.86
£15.33
£15.78
£16.25
£16.71
£17.06
£17.51
£18.00
£18.53
£19.14
£19.64
£20.16
£20.67
£21.19
£21.71
£22.20
£22.73
£23.25
£23.77
£24.28
£24.79
£25.36
£25.94

£51,198
£52,374
£53,579
£54,811

£26.54
£27.15
£27.77
£28.41

£56,074
£57,362
£58,682
£60,033
£61,413
£62,911
£64,410
£65,908
£67,406
£69,051
£70,695
£72,340
£73,984
£75,789
£77,594
£79,399
£81,204

£29.06
£29.73
£30.42
£31.12
£31.83
£32.61
£33.38
£34.16
£34.94
£35.79
£36.64
£37.49
£38.35
£39.28
£40.22
£41.15
£42.09

Grade & JE Points

Hrly

Grade 1
Grade 2

Grade 3

Grade 4

Grade 5

Grade 6

Grade 7

Grade 8

Grade 9

Grade 10

Grade 11

Grade 12

Grade 13a

Grade 13b

Grade 13c

Page 7 of 7

HRPPS2022v01

Page 71
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

Budget Consultation 2022/23
Results and Analysis
Page 73
OFFICIAL

© 2022

The current Council Tax for a Band D dwelling relating to the services provided by Ryedale District Council is £205.63 per year - or £3.95 per
week. To what extent do you agree or disagree that Ryedale District Council provides value for money?
(N = 29)

Strongly agree

17%

Agree

24%

Page 74

Neither agree or disagree

28%

Disagree

24%

Strongly disagree

7%
0%

20%

40%

2
OFFICIAL

60%

80%

100%

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your response to Q1:

Page 75

Response No

Answer text

5

Roads are poor. Leisure facilities are deteriorating and old fashioned. More short stay parking required
for local families.

8

Appalling services & getting worse-in some cases none existent.

9

Money is wasted on the wrong priorities and we see staff not working effectively or efficiently. If the
council was a business it would be bankrupt from poor decision making and bad management: there is
a lack of understanding and a lack of vision. .

3
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your response to Q1: (Continued)

Page 76

Response No

Answer text

12

Regulatory services appear severely under resourced, which is visible in the lack of planners to
undertake enforcement and progress the review of the local plan, publication of IFS etc. The
outsourcing of leisure services has led to poor quality facilities compared to neighbouring authorities
like Hambleton. Recycling also appears poor compared to neighbours.

13

The current two tier system of local governance is an unnecessary bureaucracy

16

Kirkbymoorside seems to be forgotten where the council are concerned!

4
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your response to Q1: (Continued)

Page 77

Response No

Answer text

20

I am sure further savings could be made without cutting services

22

Not enough waste collections, once every two weeks isn’t enough.
The roads in Ryedale are in terrible state of repair.

25

It's not about how much we pay to Ryedale council it's about the total amount of council tax we pay
which is very expensive.

27

Overall I think the service provided is acceptable.

29

How can less than £4 per week not be value for money given all the services the Council provides.

5
OFFICIAL

© 2022

What is your opinion of the following council services over the last 12 months?
Household waste collection (green bin)

79%

10%
7%

Kerbside recycling

21%
7%
17%

Page 78

31%

6

Satisfied

38%

31%

17%
17%

41%

10%
21%
14%
17%

34%
38%
31%
41%

24%
24%

7%

34%

28%
24%

14%

Arts and Culture

0%
Dissatisfied

28%
28%

14%

Support for village halls

Economic Development (support to businesses and tourists)

45%

21%

Planning (planning applications and planning policy)

Play equipment maintenance

55%

24%

7%

Fly tipping

59%

34%

Litter collection
Graffiti removal

48%

28%

Garden waste (brown bin)

48%

20%
40%
60%
No opinion
Not used in last 12 months
OFFICIAL

80%

100%
© 2022

What is your opinion of the following council services over the last 12 months? (Continued)
Environmental health (including licensing, food hygiene
inspections, nuisance complaints, animal welfare, private water
supplies, pest control)

10%

21%
17%

Benefits (housing benefits, council tax support)

Page 79

Housing service (housing options advice, homelessness,
affordable housing)

14%

Car parks

31%
28%

No opinion

7
OFFICIAL

52%

31%

17%
17%

0%

Dissatisfied

34%
31%
31%

14%

Leisure facilities (swimming pools, leisure centres)

Satisfied

52%

21%
21%

34%
34%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Not used in last 12 months

© 2022

What is your opinion of the following council services over the last 12 months? (Continued)
38%

Community safety (including anti-social behaviour, domestic
abuse, alcohol awareness)

14%
34%
14%
48%
28%

Public toilets

Page 80

17%
10%

Artistic and cultural promotion (support to artistic and cultural
organisations)

31%
7%
52%
14%
41%
21%

Tourism (support to the tourism industry)

34%
7%

0%

Satisfied

Dissatisfied

No opinion

8
OFFICIAL

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Not used in last 12 months

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your response to Q4:

Response No

Page 81

7

Answer text
Kerbside recycling is below expectations, collection staff seem more interested in their mobile phones
than to actually ensure articles go in the truck, this applies also to garden waste. Almost every
collection results in tax payers picking up the recycling from streets.
Litter collection is becoming non existent with fewer bins available and more waste on our roadsides.
Fly tipping is on the increase owing to costs at recycling facilities, the cost of dealing with fly tipping
will continue to increase as long as charges are applied at recycling depots. Said costs will come from
council taxpayers.
Planning has become a farce with the increase in applications granted to developments in rural
communities, village life is been ruined by large developers who are only interested in profits .
Benefits will never encourage people to find work.
Community safety is at an all time low, antisocial behaviour is out of control through lack of Police
visibility.
Toilets are appalling.

9
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your response to Q4: (Continued)

Response No

Page 82

8

Answer text
Appalling &complacent in almost every area.
Focus on tourism to the exclusion of resident's interests
Indiscriminate & inappropriate housing development ruin the area

10
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your response to Q4: (Continued)

Page 83

Response No

Answer text

9

There is no visible activity from the council that is productive or applying common sense to problems
faced by our communities . Inefficient services, poor services compared to other councils in the area
and too much strategy not enough Acton.
Car parking and toilets are a disaster in Helmsley for us and visitors, and neither officers or elected
members seem interested to put things right. Similarly with tourism - nothing being done?

11
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your response to Q4: (Continued)

Page 84

Response No

Answer text

10

Bin collections have run smoothly but I feel we would benefit more from a bin as opposed to boxes for
recycling. Every county around us now provides this and having lived in Scarborough for a while before
moving to ryedale i feel it worked much better. I have seen a large amount of flytipping around the
wolds valley which is often not dealt with, despite reporting it

12
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your response to Q4: (Continued)

Page 85

Response No

Answer text

12

Litter removal is very much supported by the Malton and Norton tidy up team! I don't feel that work
on economic development and tourism is very well promoted locally. Eden Camp doesn't appear to
have been very successful. The Council should be much more proactive in trying to find solutions to
improve walking and cycling's links between Malton and Norton. The level crossing situation should be
a Council priority.

13
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your response to Q4: (Continued)

Page 86

Response No

Answer text

13

The garden waste service ends too early. This year my last collection was in mid November when
leaves were still falling and gardens were still growing. All final collections should have a December
date.
Planning processes are slow and overly cumbersome. The drawing up of the district plan is so slow that
it’s out of date before it’s published

20

Some of the above things do not get sufficient news/notification or publicity.

14
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your response to Q4: (Continued)

Page 87

Response No

Answer text

22

Just not enough waste collection. Once every two weeks isn’t enough when you have a big family. The
bins are full with in a week.
We are in band e for council tax and pay £260 per month yet always have overflowing bins.

24

Recycling is very poor in Ryedale, the rules as to what is recycled means most stuff goes to landfill
which is shocking!!
The brown bin system is also poor with it ending far too soon before all the leaves have fallen.

15
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your response to Q4: (Continued)

Page 88

Response No

Answer text

25

I don't agree with having to pay extra for garden waste on top of the expensive council tax.

27

People wouldn't fly tip so much is there was a better scheme to encourage them to go to the recycling
centre, maybe re look at the charging, it must cost the council more clearing up fly tipping,

28

Leisure Services have no money. The leisure centres are so old and useless, they are not a place people
want to go as there is literally nothing there and they are just sat waiting to fall down!

29

The council has continued to provide services

16
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Do you agree that the Council should introduce or increase charges for discretionary services (e.g. garden waste, commercial waste, car
parking and pest control) to ensure the costs of these are recovered?
(N = 29)

Yes

31%

Page 89

No

66%

Unsure

3%

0%

20%

40%

60%

17
OFFICIAL

80%

100%

© 2022

Do you agree that the proposed limit is reasonable?
(N = 29)

Yes

45%

Page 90

No

48%

Unsure

7%

0%

20%

40%

60%

18
OFFICIAL

80%

100%

© 2022

Do you have any comments about council tax levels in Ryedale?

Page 91

Response No

Answer text

1

ok but second homes should pay at least double if not treble.

2

They should be frozen

3

Second home council tax charges should be 150%.
Tighter controls of second homes being used as AirBnBs.
Pressure on MP to remove small business rates relief for holiday lets.

6

Should be reduced, as we get very little service.
E. G. When we're the pavements last swept?

19
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Do you have any comments about council tax levels in Ryedale? (Continued)

Response No

Page 92

7

Answer text
As mentioned previously in Question 3 Residents find themselves clearing garden waste from streets
because collection technician have no interest in the communities they serve. This applies to kerbside
recycling too.
Why should any resident taxpayer agree to increases they see declining while council members line
their pockets. We can all stand in the streets waving banners promising how we propose to improve
facilities in order to justify the increases, but in reality very little has improved at great expense

20
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Do you have any comments about council tax levels in Ryedale? (Continued)

Page 93

Response No

Answer text

8

Why should there be an increase at all?
They should be reduced to reflect the number of new houses all adding extra council tax & teh
reduction of services.

9

If we got any value for it people would be happy to increase, but so much money is wasted, we might
as well set fire to our cash rather than pass it on to the Council.
Businesses get nothing back for our rates and residents don’t either apart from poor policing and
downgraded fire service.

21
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Do you have any comments about council tax levels in Ryedale? (Continued)

Page 94

Response No

Answer text

10

Around my village we have no street lights, no verge cutting, no police presence. We simply have bins
collected yet we are paying a large amount of council tax for very little service

12

Concerned about the NYCC aspect as feel that this is not good value at all.

13

They are too high.

20

They are far too high for what we get out of them this includes every all other rates by various
departments

21

I have not received a pay rise and work for the government. how is it proportionate to increase council
tax?

22
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Do you have any comments about council tax levels in Ryedale? (Continued)

Page 95

Response No

Answer text

22

They are to high. And I can’t believe they are considering raising them again.
Rate are increasing all the time yet the area gets more and more new housing which creates an
enormous amount of new council tax so why does the bands increase when the amount of money
coming in goes up via new houses?

24

Council tax has risen significantly for a number of reasons over the last 10/20 years. At a time of a big
increase in inflation and huge increase in fuel costs the council needs to take these increases into
account

23
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Do you have any comments about council tax levels in Ryedale? (Continued)

Page 96

Response No

Answer text

25

Yes they are too expensive.

26

The high percentage of tax take which goes to the County Council seems not to be consistently
reflected in the standard of services delivered in Ryedale by NYCC. Highways maintenance and
improvement remains disappointing in many areas of the district, with poor quality repairs and
inadequate supervision of contractors.

27

Not sure.

24
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Overall, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the way Ryedale District Council runs the services we provide?
Weighted Score: 2.93 | (N = 29)

1 - Very dissatisfied

24%

2 - Dissatisfied

10%

Page 97

3 - Neutral

31%

4 - Satisfied

17%

5 - Very satisfied

17%
0%

20%

40%

25
OFFICIAL

60%

80%

100%

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your answer to Q8

Page 98

Response No

Answer text

1

More empty housing should be brought into use, e.g. Kirkbymoorside.

7

As mentioned in previous questions.

8

See previous

9

The market towns are shabby, the only investment is by businesses. Too many chiefs not enough
Indians accurately describes Ryedale district council and that’s why service is so poor. Staff are poorly
qualified, rude and not accountable for delivery.

12

The housing services seem to be very proactive which can be seen in the redevelopment of the railway
tavern.

26
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your answer to Q8 (Continued)

Page 99

Response No

Answer text

20

There is not a reason to be over enthusiastic about taxation

22

I am happy with the service Ryedale council provides they do generally do a good job. But in relation to
the level of council tax Ryedale families pay I don’t think it’s particularly good value for money. For
example when you go to the skips in Malton there’s 4 staff members sat doing absolutely nothing, why
are we paying for staff to sit and do nothing, why on earth does a skips need 4 member of staff?

23

Services have improved over the last 2-3 years

27
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your answer to Q8 (Continued)

Response No

Answer text

29

Despite covid the council has done a great job keeping services running and supporting communities

Page 100
28
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Overall, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with your local area as a place to live?
Weighted Score: 3.79 | (N = 29)

1 - Very dissatisfied

2 - Dissatisfied

10%

0%

Page 101

3 - Neutral

21%

4 - Satisfied

38%

5 - Very satisfied

31%
0%

20%

40%

29
OFFICIAL

60%

80%

100%

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your answer to Q10:

Page 102

Response No

Answer text

1

Pavements in main areas and car parks have not been gritted in good time in this bad weather.
Street cleaning and pavement cleaning not done at all or often enough.

7

Ryedale Council are happy to profit from large housing developments in rural communities, drawing in
more resident with more motor vehicles increasing more commuter traffic, more congestion,
increased pollutants and green house gasses.
Dog fouling has increased with a lack of visibility from dog wardens and a reluctance to investigate and
prosecute.

30
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your answer to Q10: (Continued)

Page 103

Response No

Answer text

8

Ryedale council, prompted by Central government, is increasing a rural population while reducing
services.
Complacent & overpaid officials fail to understand problems.

9

We are lucky to live in a beautiful low crime area. But services are shocking and costs are high.

12

I don't think the Council has a huge impact on the quality of Ryedale.

31
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your answer to Q10: (Continued)

Page 104

Response No

Answer text

13

The council does not pressurise NYCC enough to ensure fair distribution of funding. Pavements,
crossings etc are appalling in Malton/Norton. Roads are inadequate. NYCC ignores the district Ryedale DC should be stronger in petitioning NYCC

16

There are too many houses being built and not enough infrastructure to support them

20

I do not like living in large towns/cities. It costs more to go shopping as there are no shops where I live
but that is worth it for the peace and tranquility.

32
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Please provide any information to support your answer to Q10: (Continued)

Page 105

Response No

Answer text

22

Malton is generally a lovely area to live with some fantastic independent shops and food outlets.
Biggest problem in Malton in the road network and how congested it gets on the roads.
I once witnesses the fire engine with blue lights on take 5 minutes to negotiate the Main Street due to
traffic, parked cars and illegally parked wagon delivering to shops. That extra time could be life and
death for an emergency response unit.

33
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Have you any further comments on the Ryedale District Council Budget and Council Tax levels for 2022/23?

Page 106

Response No

Answer text

1

Reserves should be used in the towns, not on roads, for facilities for youth and sports in particular. If
RDC doesn'to have the play areas and recreation grounds it should fund those who have like groups
and parish councils. No point in reserves going to Unitary Council. All pools, inc Helmsley, a rare
treasure, Norton Skate Park, some of bigger villages that do not have the money from new
development etc to improve facilities.
Should not be spent on roads.

34
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Have you any further comments on the Ryedale District Council Budget and Council Tax levels for 2022/23? (Continued)

Page 107

Response No

Answer text

2

There should be a council tax freeze for the last two years it Ryedale DC

3

Already answered in previous question.

5

Leisure facilities must be improved for the sake of local people and families. Removal of everyone
active and take back in house to keep costs proportional to living in the local area

7

Extortion

8

All too high for what we actually receive.

35
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Have you any further comments on the Ryedale District Council Budget and Council Tax levels for 2022/23? (Continued)

Page 108

Response No

Answer text

9

Make savings through efficiency and use them to invest in improvements and frontline staffing, stop
the gravy train and have some pride in what you offer instead of doing a shabby half job of lots of
things try to do some things well: public amenities, street cleaning and services, make a plan and stick
to it instead of flip flopping around and delaying things like the car park strategy for years on end.

20

Keep the rates low and do not hand over our money to the new authorities

36
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Have you any further comments on the Ryedale District Council Budget and Council Tax levels for 2022/23? (Continued)

Response No

Answer text

22

Spend our money wisely and don’t waste it on unnecessary purchases.

25

Will our council tax go down once that Ryedale council has finished?err I don't think so.

Page 109
37
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Have you any further comments on the Ryedale District Council Budget and Council Tax levels for 2022/23? (Continued)

Page 110

Response No

Answer text

26

The district council effectively has little say in the matter as council taxation policy is set by
Government. The transfer to NYCC also seems an expensive indulgence which communities locally can
ill afford, and which will reduce local accountability for service delivery. NYCC's record in areas such as
fracking and highways hardly fills us with confidence in their ability to take over additional
responsibilities from the district councils.

38
OFFICIAL

© 2022

What can the Council do to help you more – especially as we cope with and recover from the effects of Coronavirus?

Page 111

Response No

Answer text

2

More events in towns

7

Stop pandering to money men and think about Ryedale as it was before money was the motive.

8

Have you done anything at all?
Despite government funding & my wife being in the extremely vulnerable categroy all we received
form the Council is 2 phone calls!

9

Tidy up and maintain our district. Do something for tourism businesses. Compare yourself with better
councils locally and improve. Put business first instead of last,

39
OFFICIAL

© 2022

What can the Council do to help you more – especially as we cope with and recover from the effects of Coronavirus?
(Continued)

Page 112

Response No

Answer text

16

Provide better services for Kirkbymoorside and stop allowing planning permission for more houses.

20

It is difficult to say as the virus seems to be controlling what activities we have to lead a life anything
like we used to have

21

Reopen children centres

40
OFFICIAL

© 2022

What can the Council do to help you more – especially as we cope with and recover from the effects of Coronavirus?
(Continued)

Page 113

Response No

Answer text

22

As covid has us spending more time at home bins are filling faster everyday. More waste collections
would help.

24

The biggest help would be to have one recycling wheelie bin like neighbouring authorities and to
continue brown bin collections until end December

26

More visible reminders about covid advice (in Malton this was done by the town council)

27

Try not to increase council tax to much, help disabled and low income families.

41
OFFICIAL

© 2022

What should the Council's priorities be in its last financial year of operation?

Page 114

Response No

Answer text

1

See 12. Reserves should be used in the towns, not on roads, for facilities for youth and sports in
particular. If RDC doesn'to have the play areas and recreation grounds it should fund those who have
like groups and parish councils. No point in reserves going to Unitary Council. All pools, inc Helmsley, a
rare treasure, Norton Skate Park, some of bigger villages that do not have the money from new
development etc to improve facilities. Should not be spent on roads. E bike charges for all Ryedale's
Towns, Hutton Le Hole and Rosedale, the sort of places where e-mountain bikes are used. A lot of
chargers now are car and bike and RDC should be installing dual use now please.

42
OFFICIAL

© 2022

What should the Council's priorities be in its last financial year of operation? (Continued)

Page 115

Response No

Answer text

2

Promotion of Ryedale as a place to visit

3

Ensure the services are fully protected by the new council. Ensure ee have a proper say and presence
in the the new coucils constitution.

4

Infrastructure for Ryedale

5

New leisure facilities

7

Fight developers

8

Value for tax payers & reducing staff costs especially overpaid chief executives

9

Business support, toilets and car park improvements, street cleaning, any support for tourism

43
OFFICIAL

© 2022

What should the Council's priorities be in its last financial year of operation? (Continued)

Page 116

Response No

Answer text

12

Sorting out traffic congestion in Malton and Norton should be its legacy. The cattle market should be
left as a commercial enterprise and no further public money diverted to it.

13

Spend the reserves for the benefit of the area. Provide funds to enable the move of the cattle market
in Malton in order to support the farming community and to kick start the redevelopment of Malton
town centre.

16

They should think about all their towns and villages not just Malton, Norton and Pickering

44
OFFICIAL

© 2022

What should the Council's priorities be in its last financial year of operation? (Continued)

Page 117

Response No

Answer text

17

To finish the refurbishment of The Milton Rooms to make it fit for purpose for the next ten years

20

Make sure the sign over goes smoothly, how it will affect the population of Ryedale is a big ?.

21

Reducing costs to us

22

To maintain current council tax band and to do all it can to prevent any further increases.

23

To spend as much as are in the RDC coffers for the benefit of Ryedale Council tax payers

45
OFFICIAL

© 2022

What should the Council's priorities be in its last financial year of operation? (Continued)

Page 118

Response No

Answer text

24

Reducing its impact on the poor council tax payer

26

Keeping residents informed while minimising the cost of handover to NYCC

28

Investing in the facilities which will stay after Ryedale Council goes!! Spend some money on the leisure
centres

29

continuing to deliver high quality services and make improvements wherever possible to ensure
efficient and effective services transfer to the new authority

46
OFFICIAL

© 2022

Which of the following towns do you live in or closest to?
(N = 29)

Helmsley

10%

Kirkbymoorside

17%

Page 119

Malton

41%

Norton

21%

Pickering

17%
0%

20%

40%

47
OFFICIAL

60%

80%

100%

© 2022

Are you responding as a...?
(N = 29)

Resident

93%

Business

7%

Page 120

Voluntary organisation

0%

Stakeholder group

0%

Prefer not to say

7%
0%

20%

40%

48
OFFICIAL

60%

80%

100%

© 2022

Agenda Item 9

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

17 FEBRUARY 2022

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 03 FEBRUARY 2022

99

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
2022/23

Considered – the report of the Chief Finance Officer (s. 151)
Recommendation
That Council is recommended to approve
(i)

Members receive this report;

(ii)

The Operational Borrowing Limit for 2022/23 is set at £7m;

(iii)

The Authorised Borrowing Limit for 2022/23 is set at £12.5m;

(iv)

Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect movement within
the agreed authorised boundary limits for long-term borrowing for 2022/23 onwards.

(v)

Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect movement within
the agreed operational boundary limits for long-term borrowing for 2022/23 onwards.

(vi)

The treasury management strategy statement 2022/23 be approved.

(vii)

The minimum revenue provision policy statement for 2022/23 be approved.

(viii)

The treasury management investment strategy for 2022/23 be approved.

(ix)

The prudential indicators for 2022/23 which reflect the capital expenditure plans
which are affordable, prudent and sustainable be approved.

(x)

The Capital Strategy for 2022/23 be approved

Voting Record
Carried by general affirmation

Council

Page 121

17 February 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

3 FEBRUARY 2022

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND
ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2022/23

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report sets out the draft Treasury Management, Annual Investment and Capital
Strategies, the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Prudential Indicators for
2022/23, as required by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
(DLUHC) and CIPFA (as updated 2017).

1.2

Some of the financial data in this draft is based on draft estimates and final budget
proposals, which will impact on the details included here, and therefore may be
updated following Council approval. Some of that data has been updated since the
original report considered by the Committees.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That Council is recommended to approve:
(i)

Members receive this report;

(ii)

The Operational Borrowing Limit for 2022/23 is set at £7m;

(iii)

The Authorised Borrowing Limit for 2022/23 is set at £12.5m;

(iv)

Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect movement
within the agreed authorised boundary limits for long-term borrowing for
2022/23 onwards.

(v)

Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect movement
within the agreed operational boundary limits for long-term borrowing for
2022/23 onwards.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 123
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

(vi)

The treasury management strategy statement 2022/23 be approved.

(vii)

The minimum revenue provision policy statement for 2022/23 be approved.

(viii)

The treasury management investment strategy for 2022/23 be approved.

(ix)

The prudential indicators for 2022/23 which reflect the capital expenditure plans
which are affordable, prudent and sustainable be approved.

(x)

The Capital Strategy for 2022/23 be approved

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

To ensure the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and association policies are
prudent and affordable.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are significant risks when investing public funds especially with unknown
institutions. However, by the adoption of the CIPFA Code and a prudent investment
policy, these are minimised. The employment of Treasury Advisors also helps reduce
the risk.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in
Local Authorities and this report complies with the requirements under this code and
the relevant requirements of the Local Government Act 2003.

5.2

The Council use the services of Link Group to provide treasury management
information and advice.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2022/23

6.1.1 The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash
raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management
operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being
available when it is needed. Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or
instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate
liquidity initially before considering investment return.
6.1.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of
the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council
can meet its capital spending obligations. This management of longer term cash may
involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses.
On occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or
cost objectives.
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 124
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

6.1.3 The contribution the treasury management function makes to the authority is critical,
as the balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or the ability to meet
spending commitments as they fall due, either on day-to-day revenue or for larger
capital projects. The treasury operations will see a balance of the interest costs of debt
and the investment income arising from cash deposits affecting the available budget.
Since cash balances generally result from reserves and balances, it is paramount to
ensure adequate security of the sums invested, as a loss of principal will in effect result
in a loss to the General Fund Balance.

6.1.4 CIPFA defines treasury management as:
”The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking,
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent
with those risks.”
Reporting Requirements
6.1.5 Revised reporting was required from the 2021/22 reporting cycle due to revisions of
the DLUHC Investment Guidance, the DLUHC Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
Guidance, the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code.
The primary reporting changes include the introduction of a capital strategy, to
provide a longer-term focus to the capital plans, and greater reporting requirements
surrounding any commercial activity undertaken under the Localism Act 2011.
6.1.6

Capital Strategy
The CIPFA revised 2017 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes requires all
local authorities to prepare a capital strategy report, which will provide the following:
 a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing
and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services
 an overview of how the associated risk is managed
 the implications for future financial sustainability
The aim of this capital strategy is to ensure that all elected members on the full
council fully understand the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting capital
strategy requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite.

6.1.7

Treasury Management Reporting
The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports each
year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals. These reports are
required to be adequately scrutinised by committee before being recommended to the
Council. This role is undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
Prudential and Treasury Indicators and Treasury Strategy (this report) – The first
and most important report covers:
 The capital plans (including prudential indicators);
 A Minimum Revenue Provision Policy (how residual capital expenditure is charged
to revenue over time);
 The Treasury Management Strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 125
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

be organised) including treasury indicators; and
 An investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be managed).

A Mid Year Treasury Management Report. This will update members with the
progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as necessary, and
whether the treasury strategy or whether any policies require revision.
An Annual Treasury Report. This provides details of a selection of actual prudential
treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to the estimates within
the strategy.
Treasury Management Strategy for 2022/23
6.1.8 The strategy for 2022/23 covers two main areas
Capital Issues
 The capital plans and prudential indicators
 The MRP strategy
Treasury Management Issues
 The current treasury position;
 Treasury indicators which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council;
 Prospects for interest rates;
 The borrowing strategy;
 Policy on borrowing in advance of need;
 The investment strategy; and
 Creditworthiness policy.
These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA
Prudential Code, the CLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code
and the CLG Investment Guidance.
6.1.9 Training
The CIPFA Code requires the Chief Finance Officer to ensure that members with
responsibility for treasury management, particularly those with responsibility for
scrutiny, receive adequate training in treasury management. Training has been
provided to members by Link Group and further training will be arranged as required.
6.1.10 Treasury Management Consultants
The Council uses Link Group, Treasury Solutions as it external treasury management
advisors.
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains
with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon
the services of our external service providers. All decisions will be undertaken with
regards to all available information, including, but not solely, our treasury advisers.
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 126
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their
value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular
review.

6.1.11 Treasury Management Function & Sweeping Arrangements
Included within the service level agreement with North Yorkshire County Council
(NYCC) for the provision on s151 Officer and Finance services, there is provision for
treasury management support.
Reporting and monitoring processes are already in place, along with day to day support
for treasury activities. It has previously been reported that discussions were underway
between the Authorities’ respective banks exploring the technical feasibility for Ryedale
District Council to join NYCC’s investment pool, and that prior to implementing such
arrangements Ryedale District Council would be asked to formally adopt the
Investment Strategy of NYCC.
Following on-going discussions, a solution for automated balances sweeping between
banks has not been identified at present, although opportunities will continue to be
investigated. It is therefore not proposed within the 2022/23 Investment strategy to
adopt that of NYCC.
6.2

THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2022/23 – 2024/25
Introduction

6.2.1 The ‘Prudential Code’ provides Council’s with a regime of self-regulation for borrowing
money for capital purposes. A local authority can borrow as much as it wishes as long
as it can afford the repayments. The Code outlines four key objectives relating to the
capital investment plans and treasury management procedures of local authorities. To
demonstrate that these objectives are being fulfilled the Prudential Code sets out the
indicators that must be used, and the factors that must be taken into account.
6.2.2 The Code prescribes how the issue of affordability is measured using a set of
prudential indicators. The four key objectives of the Code are to ensure that capital
investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable, and to
ensure that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good
professional practice. The indicators are mandatory but the figures used in the
calculations are a matter for each local authority.
6.2.3 The prudential indicators required by the Code are designed to support and record
local decision-making. They are not designed to be comparative performance
indicators and the use of them in this way would be likely to be misleading and counterproductive.
6.2.4 The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management
activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans are reflected in prudential
indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital
expenditure plans.
Capital Expenditure.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 127
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

6.2.5 This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, both
those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle. These are
currently based draft estimates and final budget proposals will be updated prior to
Council approval.

Table 1: Capital Expenditure

Capital Expenditure
General Fund
Commercial Activites / Non
Financial Investments
Total

2020/21
Actual

2021/22
Estimate

2022/23
Estimate

2023/24
Estimate

2024/25
Estimate

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

1,015

5,880

8,028

4,239

736

0

0

0

0

0

1,015

5,880

8,028

4,239

736

The above financing need excludes other long term liabilities, such as PFI and leasing
arrangements which already include borrowing instruments.
Table 2: Financing of Capital Expenditure
6.2.6

The table below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these plans
are being financed by capital or revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources results
in a funding need (borrowing):

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Actual

Est.

Est.

Est.

Est.

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

General Fund

1,015

5,880

8,028

4,239

736

Total

1,015

5,880

8,028

4,239

736

-238

-2,291

-4,339

-2,452

-200

-35

-20

-105

0

0

-743

-2,136

-2,773

-1,707

-496

Borrowing - Leases

0

-1,433

-811

-80

-40

Net Financing Need

0

0

0

0

0

Capital Expenditure

Financed By:
Revenue & Reserves
Capital Receipts
Grants

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 128
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement)
6.2.7 The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).
The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet
been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of
the Council’s underlying borrowing need. Any capital expenditure above, which has
not immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR.
6.2.8

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is
a statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing need in line
with each assets life. The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below:
Table 3: Capital Financing Requirement

CFR General Fund
CFR GF Leases
CFR Commercial / Nonfinancial investments
Total CFR
Movement in CFR

2020/21
Actual
£000
1,553
514

2021/22
Est.
£000
1,518
1,773

2022/23
Est.
£000
1,483
2,207

2023/24
Est.
£000
1,447
1,770

2024/25
Estimate
£'000
1,412
1,393

0

0

0

0

0

2,067
366

3,291
1,224

3,689
398

3,217
-472

2,805
-412

547

1,433

811

80

40

-181

-209

-413

-552

-452

366

1,224

398

-472

-412

Movement in CFR represented by:Net Financing need for the
year
Less MRP & Other
Financing movements
Movement in CFR

6.2.9 The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. finance leases) brought onto the
balance sheet. Whilst this increases the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing
requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and so the Council is
not required to separately borrow for these schemes. These are also shown in Table
3.
Affordability Prudential Indicators
6.2.10 The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential
indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the
affordability of the capital investment plans. These provide an indication of the impact
of the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall finances. The Council is asked
to approve the following indicator:
6.2.11 The indicator of actual and estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue
stream identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. These are
shown in Table 4. The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and
the proposals in this report.
Table 4: Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 129
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

General Fund

6.3

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Actual

Est.

Est.

Est.

Est.

%

%

%

%

%

0.76

1.82

5.29

6.78

5.09

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT 2022/23
Introduction

6.3.1 The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund capital
spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the minimum revenue provision
– MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary payments if
required (voluntary revenue provision – VRP).
DLUHC Regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve an
MRP Policy Statement in advance of each year. A variety of options are provided to
councils so long as there is a prudent provision. The Council is recommended to
approve the following MRP Statement.
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy
6.3.2 The Council’s MRP policy is based on the Governments Statutory Guidance and
following a review no further changes are considered necessary and the policy for
2022/23 is therefore as follows:
(a) For all Capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 which formed the
General Fund Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) that is capital expenditure
funded through borrowing will be charged at 4% of the outstanding balance each
year.
(b) From 1 April 2018 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance
leases) the MRP policy will be either:




Asset life method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in
accordance with the regulations (this option must be applied for any
expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction) (option 3);
Depreciation method – MRP will follow standard depreciation accounting
procedures (option 4);

These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the
asset’s life
Total MRP for 2022/23 is currently estimated at £174k, (£35k internal borrowing, and
£139k for leases).
6.3.3 MRP Overpayments - A change introduced by the revised DLUHC MRP Guidance was
the allowance that any charges made over the statutory minimum revenue provision
(MRP), voluntary revenue provision or overpayments (VRP), can, if needed, be
reclaimed in later years if deemed necessary or prudent. In order for these sums to
be reclaimed for use in the budget, this policy must disclose the cumulative
overpayment made each year. At present there are no plans to make voluntary
revenue provisions (VRP).
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 130
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

6.4

BORROWING STRATEGY 2022/23

6.4.1 The capital expenditure plans provide details of the service activity of the Council. The
treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is organised in
accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is available to
meet the service activity. This will involve both the organisation of the cash flow and,
where capital plans require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities. The
strategy covers the relevant treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected
debt positions and the annual investment strategy.
6.4.2 The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 December 2021, is shown in Table 5.
Table 5: Current Treasury Portfolio at 31/12/21

Fixed rate funding

Variable rate funding

Other long term liabilities

PWLB
Market

Principal
£m
1.5
0.0

PWLB
Market

0.0
0.0

Leases

0.6

Total Debt
Total Investments

Ave. Rate
%

£m

3.44

0.0

0
3.68

2.0

3.50

37.9

0.11

6.4.3 Forward projections are summarised in Table 6. The table shows the actual external
borrowing (the treasury management operations), against the capital borrowing need
(the Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.
Table 6: Forecasted Portfolio Position

External Borrowing
Borrowing at 1 April
Expected Change in Borrowing
Leases
Actual Borrowing at 31 March
CFR - the borrowing need
Under / (over) borrowing
Investments
Total Investments
Investment Change
Net Borrowing

2021/22
F'cast
£000

2022/23
F'cast
£000

2023/24
F'cast
£000

2024/25
F'cast
£000

1,513
-39
1,773
3,247
3,291
44

1,473
-39
2,207
3,641
3,689
48

1,434
-39
1,770
3,164
3,217
53

1,394
-39
1,393
2,748
2,805
57

22,645
-5,708
-19,398

18,488
-4,156
-14,848

14,228
-4,260
-11,604

14,601
372
-11,852

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 131
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

Treasury Limits for 2022/23 to 2024/25
6.4.5 Ryedale District Council has, at any point in time, a number of cash flows both positive
and negative, and manages its treasury position in terms of its borrowings and
investments in accordance with its approved treasury management strategy and
practices. In day-to-day cash management, no distinction can be made between
revenue and capital cash. External borrowing arises as a consequence of all the
financial transactions of the authority and not simply those arising from capital
spending
6.4.6 CIPFA’s Prudential code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities’ includes the following
key indicator of prudence;
“In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a capital
purpose, the local authority should ensure that net external borrowing does not, except
in the short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the preceding
year plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the current
and the next two financial years.”
6.4.7 The Chief Finance Officer reports that the authority had no difficulty meeting this
requirement in 2020/21, nor are any difficulties envisaged for the current (2021/22) or
future years (2022/23 – 2024/25). This view takes into account current commitments,
existing plans and the proposals in the budget.
6.4.8 The Council must have regard to the Prudential Code when setting the Authorised
Limit, which essentially requires it to ensure that total capital investment remains within
sustainable limits and, in particular, that the impact upon its future council tax levels is
‘acceptable’. It reflects the level of external borrowing which, while not desired, could
be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.
6.4.9 Whilst termed an “Affordable Borrowing Limit”, it incorporates the capital plans to be
considered for inclusion in corporate financing by both external borrowing and other
forms of liability, such as credit arrangements.
6.4.10 The Authorised Limit for external borrowing is a key prudential indicator and represents
a control on the maximum level of borrowing. It is a limit beyond which external
borrowing is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by the full Council on
a rolling basis, for the forthcoming financial year and two successive financial years.
This information is shown in table 7.
Table 7: Authorised Borrowing Limit
Authorised Limit

Debt
Other long term liabilities
Total

2021/22
Estimate
£’000
10,000
2,500
12,500

2022/23
Estimate
£’000
10,000
2,500
12,500

2023/24
Estimate
£’000
10,000
2,500
12,500

2024/25
Estimate
£’000
10,000
2,500
12,500

6.4.11 The Operational Boundary is the limit beyond which external borrowing is not normally
expected to exceed and within which officers will manage the Council’s external debt
position. In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be lower or
higher depending on the levels of actual borrowing. This information is shown in table
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 132
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

8.

Table 8: Operational Borrowing Limit
Operational Boundary

Debt
Other long term liabilities
Total

2021/22
Estimate
£’000
5,000
2,000
7,000

2022/23
Estimate
£’000
5,000
2,000
7,000

2023/24
Estimate
£’000
5,000
2,000
7,000

2024/25
Estimate
£’000
5,000
2,000
7,000

6.4.12 In respect of its external debt, table 8 details the proposed authorised limits for the
Council’s total external debt gross of investments for the next three financial years
which councillors are recommended to approve. These limits separately identify
borrowing from other long-term liabilities such as finance leases. It is also
recommended that members continue to delegate authority to the Chief Finance
Officer, within the total limit for any individual year, to effect movement between the
separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long term liabilities. Any such changes
made will be reported to Overview & Scrutiny Committee at its next meeting following
the change.
6.4.13 The Chief Finance Officer reports that these authorised limits are consistent with the
authority’s current commitments, existing plans and the proposals in the budget for
capital expenditure and financing, and with its approved treasury management policy
statement and practices. The Chief Finance Officer confirms that they are based on
the estimate of the most likely, prudent but not worst-case scenario, with sufficient
headroom over and above this to allow for operational management, for example
unusual cash movements. Risk analysis and risk management strategies have been
taken into account; as have plans for capital expenditure, estimates of the capital
financing requirement and estimates of cash flow requirements for all purposes.
Prospects for Interest Rates
6.4.13 The Council has appointed Link Group as its treasury advisor and part of their service
is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. Annex 1 draws together a
number of current city forecasts for short term (bank rate) and longer fixed interest
rates. Table 9 gives the Link central view.
Table 9: Link View interest rate forecast – January 2022

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 133
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

Borrowing Requirement
6.4.14 The Council is currently forecasting a marginally under-borrowed position in 2021/22. This
means that the Council’s capital borrowing is lower than the underlying need to borrow. As
a result of the capital expenditure plans set out in 6.2.5, Table 1, the Council is expected to
be maintain an under-borrowed position from 2022/23 onwards as shown in Table 10
below. This is a prudent strategy as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is
relatively high – this approach will be carefully monitored during 2022/23.
Table 10: Borrowing Position

Under / (Over) Borrowing
External Debt
GF Ext Borrowing

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

2024/25
£000

1,474

1,434

1,395

1,355

1,518
44

1,483
48

1,447
53

1,412
57

Capital Financing Requirement
Under / (Over) Borrowing

* The table above excludes leases from the under / over borrowed position, unlike table 6
– Forecasted Portfolio Position.
6.4.15 Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be
adopted with the 2022/23 treasury operations. The Chief Finance Officer will monitor
interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing
circumstances.
6.4.16 The current capital programme funding forecasts for 2022/23 to 2024/25 shows there
is currently no borrowing requirement. However, borrowing needs will be reviewed as
the capital programmes are confirmed. Any decisions will be reported to Overview &
Scrutiny committee at the next available opportunity.
Treasury Management Limits on Activity
6.4.17 There are three debt related treasury activity limits. The purpose of these are to restrain
the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby managing risk and
reducing the impact of any adverse movement in interest rates. However, if these are
set to be too restrictive they will impair the opportunities to reduce costs / improve
performance. The indicators are:
 Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a maximum limit for
variable interest rates;
 Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure. This is similar to the previous indicator
and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates;
 Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s
exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for
upper and lower limits.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 134
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits:
%
Interest Rates Exposure
Borrowing:
Limits on fixed interest rates
Limits on variable interest rates
Investments:
Limits on fixed interest rates
Limits on variable interest rates

2022/23
£’000
Upper

2023/24
£’000
Upper

2024/25
£’000
Upper

100%
5%

100%
5%

100%
5%

100%
50%

100%
50%

100%
50%

Lower
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
90%

Upper
20%
20%
50%
50%
50%
20%

Maturity Structure New Borrowing 2022/23
Under 12 months
12 Months and within 2 Years
2 Years and within 5 Years
5 Years and within 10 Years
10 Years and within 15 Years
15 Years and over

Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need
6.4.18 The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in
advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates,
and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated
and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.

6.5

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2022/23
Investment Policy – management of risk

6.5.1 The DLUHC and CIPFA have extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include both
financial and non-financial investments. This report deals solely with financial
investments, (as managed by the treasury management team). Non-financial
investments, essentially the purchase of income yielding assets, are covered in the
Capital Strategy
6.5.2

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following:  DLUHC’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”);
 CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross
Sectoral Guidance Notes 2017 (“the Code”); and
 CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018.
The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second and
then yield, (return).

6.5.3

The above guidance from the DLUHC and CIPFA place a high priority on the
management of risk. The Council has adopted a prudent approach to managing risk
and defines its risk appetite by the following means: -

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 135
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

a) minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a list of
highly creditworthy counterparties. This also enables diversification and thus
avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor
counterparties are the short term and long-term ratings;
b) other information: ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an
institution; it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector
on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political
environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take
account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To achieve this
consideration, the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor
on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that information
on top of the credit ratings;
c) other information sources used will include the financial press, share price
and other such information pertaining to the financial sector in order to
establish the most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential
investment counterparties;
d) the Council has defined the list of types of investment instruments that the
treasury management team are authorised to use: Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality
and subject to a maturity limit of one year.
 Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality,
may be for periods in excess of one year, and/or are more complex
instruments which require greater consideration by members and
officers before being authorised for use. Once an investment is
classed as non-specified, it remains non-specified all the way through
to maturity i.e. an 18 month deposit would still be non-specified even if
it has only 11 months left until maturity.
e) Non-specified investments limit. The Council has determined that it will
limit the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments as being 20%
of the total investment portfolio, (£4m);
f)

Lending limits, (amounts and maturity), for each counterparty will be set;

g) the Council will set a limit for the amount of its investments which are
invested for longer than 365 days;
h) investments will only be placed with counterparties from countries with a
specified minimum sovereign rating;
i)

the Council has engaged external consultants, to provide expert advice on
how to optimise an appropriate balance of security, liquidity and yield, given
the risk appetite of the Council in the context of the expected level of cash
balances and need for liquidity throughout the year;

j)

all investments will be denominated in sterling; and

k) as a result of the change in accounting standards for 2021/22 under IFRS 9,
the Council will consider the implications of investment instruments which
could result in an adverse movement in the value of the amount invested and
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 136
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

resultant charges at the end of the year to the General Fund. (In November
2018, the DLUHC, concluded a consultation for a temporary override to allow
English local authorities time to adjust their portfolio of all pooled investments
by announcing a statutory override to delay implementation of IFRS 9 for five
years ending 31.3.23)
6.5.4 However, the Council will also pursue value for money in treasury management and
will monitor the yield from investment income against appropriate benchmarks for
investment performance. Regular monitoring of investment performance will be carried
out during the year.
Changes in risk management policy from last year
6.5.5 The above criteria are unchanged from last year.
Credit Worthiness Policy – Security of Capital and use of credit ratings
6.5.6 This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Group (Sector). This
service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit ratings from all
three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moodys and Standard and Poors. The credit
ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:
 Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;
 CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings;
 Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries.
(a)

This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches, and credit
outlooks in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay
of CDS spreads for which the end product is a series of colour code bands,
which indicate the relative creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour
codes are also used by the Council to determine the duration for investments.
The Council will therefore use the counterparties within the following durational
bands:

Colour
Yellow
Purple
Orange
Blue
Red
Green
No Colour

Maximum Investment Duration
5 Years
2 Years
1 Year
1 Year (UK nationalised / semi nationalised banks only)
6 Months
100 Days
No investments to be made

6.5.7 The Link Group creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information than just
primary ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system, does not give undue
preponderance to just one agency ratings. Furthermore, by using a risk weighted
scoring system, it does not give undue preponderance to just one agency’s ratings.
6.5.8 Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a short term rating
(Fitch or equivalents) of Short Term rating F1, Long Term rating A-. There may be
occasions when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower
than these ratings but may still be used. In these, instances consideration will be given
to the whole range of ratings available, or other topical market information, to support
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 137
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

their use.
6.5.9 All credit ratings will be monitored daily. The Council is alerted to changes to ratings of
all three agencies through its use of the Link Group creditworthiness service.
 If a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer meeting
the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be with drawn
immediately;
 In addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information in
movements in Credit Default Swap against the iTraxx benchmark and other market
data on a weekly basis. Extreme market movements may result in downgrade of an
institution or removal from the lending list.
6.5.10 Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. In addition this
Council will also use market data and market information, information on government
support for banks and the credit ratings of that government support.

UK Banks – Ring-fencing
6.5.11 The largest UK banks, (those with more than £25bn of retail / Small and Medium-sized
Enterprise (SME) deposits), are required, by UK law, to separate core retail banking
services from their investment and international banking activities by 1st January 2019.
This is known as “ring-fencing”. Whilst smaller banks with less than £25bn in deposits
are exempt, they can choose to opt up. Several banks are very close to the threshold
already and so may come into scope in the future regardless.
6.5.12 Ring-fencing is a regulatory initiative created in response to the global financial crisis.
It mandates the separation of retail and SME deposits from investment banking, in
order to improve the resilience and resolvability of banks by changing their structure.
In general, simpler activities offered from within a ring-fenced bank, (RFB), will be
focused on lower risk, day-to-day core transactions, whilst more complex and “riskier”
activities are required to be housed in a separate entity, a non-ring-fenced bank,
(NRFB). This is intended to ensure that an entity’s core activities are not adversely
affected by the acts or omissions of other members of its group.
6.5.13 While the structure of the banks included within this process may have changed, the
fundamentals of credit assessment have not. The Council will continue to assess the
new-formed entities in the same way that it does others and those with sufficiently high
ratings, (and any other metrics considered), will be considered for investment
purposes.
Country Limits
6.5.14 Due care will be taken to consider the exposure of the Council’s total investment
portfolio to non-specified investments, countries, groups and sectors
a) Non-specified investment limit. The Council has determined that it will limit
the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments as being 20% of the
total investment portfolio.
b) Country limit. The Council has determined that it will only use approved
counterparties from the UK and from countries with a minimum sovereign credit
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 138
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

rating of AA- from Fitch. The list of countries that qualify using these credit criteria
as at the date of this report are shown in Annex C. This list will be added to, or
deducted from, by officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy.
Investment Strategy
6.5.15 In-house funds. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash
flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for
investments up to 12 months). Greater returns are usually obtainable by investing for
longer periods. While most cash balances are required in order to manage daily cash
flow requirements, where cash sums can be identified that could be invested for longer
periods, the value to be obtained from longer term investments will be carefully
assessed:

if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to rise significantly within the time
horizon being considered, then consideration will be given to keeping most
investments as being short term or variable;



conversely, if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to fall within that time
period, consideration will be given to locking in higher rates currently
obtainable, for longer periods.

Investment returns expectations.
6.5.16 Investment rates available remain at low levels as a result of the continuing low Bank
Rate. Though the December 2021 Monetary Policy Committee voted to increase the
Bank Rate to 0.25%, the first rise since the Covid-19 Pandemic began, this increase
will take time to filter through to council investments, as existing investments mature
and are replaced. Bank Rate forecasts for financial year ends are:




Q1 2023 0.50%
Q1 2024 0.75%
Q1 2025 1.00%

6.5.17 For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its notice
accounts, money market funds and short dated deposits (overnight to three months)
in order to benefit from the compounding of interest.
Ethical Investment Opportunities
6.5.18 Investment guidance, both statutory and from CIPFA, makes clear that all investing
must adopt SLY principals – security, liquidity and yield: ethical issues must play a
subordinate role to those principals. Link Group is looking at ways in which
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) metrics may be incorporated into credit
rating agency assessments, and a small but growing number of financial institutions
and fund managers are starting to promote ESG products. However, with a lack of
consistency and coverage, Link Group continue to review options in this area and will
update clients as progress is made, which will be brought forward in future Treasury
reporting updates when available.
6.5.19 Within the Council’s current lending criteria, an ethical money market fund is available
to the Council for investment, (details are attached at Annex H) and will continue to be
considered, should favourable return rates become available.
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 139
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

End of Year Investment Report
6.5.20 At the end of the financial year the Council will report on its investment activity as
part of the Annual Treasury Report.
Scheme of Delegation
6.5.21 Please see Annex E.
Role of the section 151 officer
6.5.22 Please see Annex E.

6.6

CAPITAL STRATEGY
The Prudential Code 2017 introduced a new requirement for local authorities to
produce and annual capital strategy. Please refer to Annexes F and G.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
The results of the investment strategy affect the funding of the Capital Programme.
b)

Legal
There are no legal implications regarding this report.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder, Climate Change)
There are no legal implications regarding this report.

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Anton Hodge, Chief Finance Officer (s151)
01653 600666 ext: 201
anton.hodge@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None
Background Papers are available for inspection at: None

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 140
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STATEMENT AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY REPORT- RISK MATRIX
– ANNEX A
Issue/Risk
Credit risk - associated with
investing with financial institutions
that do not meet the credit rating
criteria.

Consequences if allowed
to happen
Could mean loss of
principal sum and interest
accrued.

Likeli-hood

Impact

Mitigation

2

D

The economic climate has seen
uncertainty as a consequence of
the COVID-19 Pandemic, meaning
counterparty risk is still a big
issue. As a result the Council
have adopted and maintained a
stringent credit rating
methodology.
The number of investment options
is kept to a minimum. Investments
are normally restricted to short
term fixed rate deposits or instant
access accounts.
This Strategy specifies the type of
instrument the authority is
prepared to invest in and
maximum term for those
investments. A cash balance is
kept in a call account for access
when needed, and all deposits are
restricted to a maturity profile of 12
months or less

The poor performance of
the chosen investment.

2

B

Liquidity risk - Use of fixed term
deposits and / or instruments /
investments with low marketability
may mean a lack of liquidity

Unable to take advantage
of better investment
options. Funds are
unavailable to cover capital
spend.

1

B

Page 141

Market risk - Selection of wrong
type of investment for higher
return.

Score
1
2
3
4
5

Likelihood
Very Low
Not Likely
Likely
Very Likely
Almost Certain

Score
A
B
C
D
E

Impact
Low
Minor
Medium
Major
Disaster

OFFICIAL

Mitigated
Likelihood
1

Mitigated Impact

2

B

1

B

D

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX B
SPECIFIED AND NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS
SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS:

Investment
Term Deposits with the UK Government or with UK Local Authorities
(as per Local Government Act 2003) with maturities up to 1 year
Term Deposits with credit rated deposit takers (Banks and Building
Societies), including callable deposits with maturities less than 1 year

Page 143

Certificate of Deposits issued by credit rated deposit takers (Banks
and Building Societies) up to 1 year

Forward deals with credit rated Banks and Building Societies less
than 1 year (i.e. negotiated deal plus period of deposit)
Money Market Funds i.e. collective investment scheme as defined in
SI2004 No 534
(These funds have no maturity date)
Gilts (with maturities of up to 1 year)

Bonds issued by a financial institution that is guaranteed by the UK
Government (as defined in SI 2004 No 534) with maturities under 12
months
(Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase)

COUNCIL

Security / Minimum Credit Rating
High security as backed by UK
Government

Circumstances of Use
In-house
In-house

Organisations assessed as having
“high credit quality”within the UK or
from Countries with a minimum
Sovereign rating of AA- for the
country in which the organisation is
domiciled
Funds must be AAA rated

Fund Manager or In-house “buy and hold”
after consultation with Treasury
Management Advisor
In-house
In-house
Limited to £3m

Government Backed

Fund Manager or In-house buy and hold
after consultation with Treasury
Management Advisor

Government Backed

After consultation with Treasury
Management Advisor

17 FEBRUARY 2022
OFFICIAL

NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS
Investment

Circumstances of
Use

Max % of total
investments

Term Deposit with credit rated deposit takers
(Banks & Building Societies), UK Government and
other Local Authorities with maturities greater than 1
year

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

100% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£4m)

£1m

5 years

Certificate of Deposit with credit rated deposit
takers (Banks & Building Societies) with maturities
greater than 1 year
Custodial arrangements prior to purchase

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

Fund Manager
or
In-house “buy & hold”
after consultation with
Treasury Management
Advisor

100% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£4m)

£1m

5 years

Callable Deposits with credit rated deposit takers
(Banks & Building Societies) with maturities greater
than 1 year

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

50% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£2m)

£1m

5 years

Term Deposits with Housing Associations with
maturities greater than 1 year

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

£1m

5 years

Forward Deposits with a credit rated Bank or
Building Society > 1 year (i.e. negotiated deal period
plus period of deposit)

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of

£1m

5 years

Page 144

Security / Minimum Credit
Rating

COUNCIL

17 FEBRUARY 2022
OFFICIAL

Maximum
Max.
investment maturity
with any one period
counterparty

Investment

Security / Minimum Credit
Rating

Circumstances of
Use

Max % of total
investments

Maximum
Max.
investment maturity
with any one period
counterparty

Core Cash funds
(£1m)
AA or Government backed

Fund Manager
or
In-house “buy & hold”
after consultation with
Treasury Management
Advisor

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

n/a

5 years

Bonds issued by Multilateral development banks
(as defined in SI2004 No534) with maturities in
excess of 1 year
Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase

AA or Government backed

Fund Manager
or
In-house “buy & hold”
after consultation with
Treasury Management
Advisor

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

£1m

5 years

UK Government Gilts with maturities in excess
of 1 year
Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase

Government backed

Fund Manager

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

n/a

5 years

Collateralised Deposit

UK Sovereign Rating

In-house

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

n/a

5 years

Page 145

Bonds issued by a financial institution
that is guaranteed by the UK Government
(as defined in SI2004 No534) with maturities in
excess of 1 year
Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase

This Authority will seek further advice on the appropriateness and associated risks with investments in these categories.
COUNCIL

17 FEBRUARY 2022
OFFICIAL

ANNEX C
APPROVED COUNTRIES FOR INVESTMENTS
This list is based on those countries which have sovereign ratings of AA- or higher, (we
show the lowest rating from Fitch, Moody’s and S&P) and also, (except - at the time of
writing - for Hong Kong, Norway and Luxembourg), have banks operating in sterling
markets

Sovereign
Rating
AAA

AA+

AA
AA-

COUNCIL

Country
Australia
Denmark
Germany
Luxemburg
Netherlands
Norway
Singapore
Sweden
Switzerland
Canada
Finland
USA
Abu Dhabi (UAE)
France
Belgium
Qatar
Hong Kong
UK

Page 146
OFFICIAL

17 FEBRUARY 2022

ANNEX D
APPROVED LENDING LIST 2021/22
Maximum sum invested at any time (The overall total exposure figure covers both Specified and
Non-Specified investments)

Country

UK "Nationalised" banks / UK banks with UK Central
Government involvement
Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (RFB)

GBR

National
Westminster
PLC
UK "Clearing
Banks",Bank
other
UK(RFB)
based banks and
Building Societies
Santander UK PLC (includes Cater Allen)

GBR

Barclays Bank PLC (NRFB)

GBR

Barclays Bank UK PLC (RFB)

GBR

Bank of Scotland PLC (RFB)

GBR

Lloyds Bank PLC (RFB)

GBR

Specified
Investments
(up to 1 year)
Total
Exposure
£m

Time
Limit *

Total
Exposure
£m

Time
Limit *

4.0

365 days

-

-

3.0

6 months

-

-

4.0

6 months

-

-

-

-

-

-

GBR

Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets PLC (NRFB)

GBR

HSBC Bank PLC (NRFB)

GBR

HSBC UK Bank PLC (RFB
Goldman Sachs International Bank

GBR
GBR

Sumitomo Mitsui

Non-Specified
Investments
(> 1 year £4m limit)

3.0

365 days
6 months

1.5

365 days

3.0

6 months

GBR

1.5

6 months

Standard Chartered Bank

GBR

3.0

6 months

Handlesbanken

GBR
GBR

2.0
2.0

6 months

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Nationwide Building Society

365 days

Leeds Building Society
High Quality Foreign Banks
National Australia Bank

GBR

1.0

3 months

AUS

1.5

365 days

Commonwealth Bank of Australia

AUS

1.5

365 days

Toronto-Dominion Bank

CAN

1.5

365 days

Credit Industriel et Commercial
Landesbank Hessen-Thueringen Girozentrale
(Helaba)

FRA
GER

1.5
1.5

6 months
365 days

DBS (Singapore)
Local Authorities

SING

1.5

365 days

County / Unitary / Metropolitan / District Councils

2.0

365 days

1.0

5 years

Police / Fire Authorities

1.0

365 days

1.0

5 years

National Park Authorities
Other Deposit Takers

1.0

365 days

1.0

5 years

Money Market Funds

1.0

365 days

1.0

5 years

UK Debt Management Account

5.0

365 days

1.0

5 years

COUNCIL

Page 147
OFFICIAL

17 FEBRUARY 2022

ANNEX E

TREASURY MANAGEMENT SCHEME OF DELEGATION
1.

Full Council
 receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, practices and
activities;
 approval of annual strategy.

2.

Policy and Resources Committee
 approval of/amendments to the organisation’s adopted clauses, treasury
management policy statement and treasury management practices;
 budget consideration and approval;
 approval of the division of responsibilities;
 approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of
appointment.

3.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
 reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making
recommendations to the responsible body.

COUNCIL

Page 148
OFFICIAL

17 FEBRUARY 2022

ANNEX E

THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT ROLE OF THE SECTION 151 OFFICER
Background

1.

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code)
plays a key role in capital finance in local authorities. Local authorities determine their
own programmes for investment that are central to the delivery of quality public
services. The Prudential Code was developed by CIPFA as a professional code of
practice to support local authorities in taking their decisions. Local authorities are
required by regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code when carrying out their
duties under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003.

2.

In financing capital expenditure, local authorities are governed by legislative
frameworks, including the requirement to have regard to CIPFA’s Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance
Notes.

3.

In order to demonstrate that capital expenditure and investment decisions are taken in
line with service objectives and properly take account of stewardship, value for money,
prudence, sustainability and affordability, the Prudential Code requires authorities to
have in place a Capital Strategy that sets out the long term context in which capital
expenditure and investment decisions are made, and gives due consideration to both
risk and reward and impact on the achievement of priority outcomes.

4.

The Prudential Code requires the Chief Financial Officer to report explicitly on the
affordability and risk associated with the Capital Strategy. The Capital Strategy

provides an overview of the governance process for approval and monitoring
of capital expenditure. In addition, the Capital Strategy and Prudential
Indicators also demonstrates that the capital expenditure, investment and
financing plans of the Authority are robust, affordable and sustainable.”
The S151 (responsible) officer
The following are specific responsibilities of the Section 151 Officer:


recommending clauses, treasury management policies and practices for approval,
reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance;



submitting regular treasury management policy reports to Members;



submitting budgets and budget variations to Members;



receiving and reviewing management information reports;



reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;



ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the effective
division of responsibilities within the treasury management function;

COUNCIL

Page 149
OFFICIAL

17 FEBRUARY 2022



ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit;



recommending the appointment of external service providers:



preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, nonfinancial investments and treasury management;



ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent in the
long term and provides value for money;



ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority;



ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure on nonfinancial assets and their financing;



ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not undertake a
level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level of risk compared to
its financial resources;



ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, monitoring
and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and long term liabilities



provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including material
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial guarantees



ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk exposures
taken on by an authority



ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally provided



creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non
treasury investments will be carried out and managed

5. “The Capital Strategy provides an overview of the governance process for approval and
monitoring of capital expenditure. In addition, the Capital Strategy and Prudential
Indicators also demonstrate that the capital expenditure, investment and financing plans
of the Authority are robust, affordable and sustainable.”

COUNCIL

Page 150
OFFICIAL

17 FEBRUARY 2022

ANNEX F

CAPITAL STRATEGY 2022/23

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The purpose of the Capital Strategy is to demonstrate that the Council takes capital expenditure and
investment decisions in line with Corporate and service objectives and properly takes account of
stewardship, value for money, prudence, sustainability and affordability. It sets out the long term
context in which capital expenditure and investment decisions are made and gives due consideration
to both risk and reward and impact on the achievement of priority outcomes.

1.2

The Capital Strategy comprises a number of distinct, but inter-related, elements as follows:
(a)

Capital expenditure (Section 2)

This section includes an overview of the governance process for approval and monitoring of capital
expenditure, including the Council’s policies on capitalisation, and an overview of its capital
expenditure and financing plans.
(b)

Capital financing and borrowing (Section 3)

This section provides a projection of the Council’s capital financing requirement, how this will be
funded and repaid. It therefore sets out the Council’s borrowing strategy and explains how it will
discharge its duty to make prudent revenue provision for the repayment of debt.
(d)

Alternative investments (Section 4)

This section provides an overview of those of the Council’s current and proposed alternative
investment activities that count as capital expenditure, including processes, due diligence and
defining the Council’s risk appetite in respect of these, including proportionality in respect of overall
resources.
(e)

Chief Financial Officer’s statement (Section 5)

This section contains the Chief Financial Officer’s views on the deliverability, affordability and risk
associated with the capital strategy

Page 151
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX F
2.0

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Capitalisation Policy

2.1

Expenditure is classified as capital expenditure when it results in the acquisition or construction of an
asset (e.g. land, buildings, roads and bridges, vehicles, plant and equipment etc.) that:


Will be held for use in the delivery of services, for rental to others, investment or for
administrative purposes; and



Are of continuing benefit to the Council for a period extending beyond one financial year.

Subsequent expenditure on existing assets is also classified as capital expenditure if these two
criteria are met.
2.2

2.3

There may be instances where expenditure does not meet this definition but would be treated as
capital expenditure, including:


Where the Council has no direct future control or benefit from the resulting assets, but
would treat the expenditure as capital if it did control or benefit from the resulting assets;
and



Where statutory regulations require the Council to capitalise expenditure that would not
otherwise have expenditure implications according to accounting rules

The Council operates de-minimis limits for capital expenditure. This means that items below these
limits are charged to revenue rather than capital. The limits are currently as follows:


General Limit:

£10,000

Governance
2.4

Policy & Resources Committee shall, during each financial year and after consultation with the
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee(s), approve a capital expenditure programme for the
next following and subsequent 2 financial years. Such programmes shall be in a form and in
accordance with deadlines approved by the Chief Finance Officer and in accordance with the
Council’s Financial Strategy. Capital expenditure plans shall be prepared in conjunction with the
Chief Finance Officer for submission to The Policy & Resources Committee and then Council for
approval.

2.5

The Council’s Financial and Contract Procedure Rules provide a framework for the appropriate
authorisations for individual schemes to proceed and facilitate the overall management of the Capital
Plan within defined resource parameters.

Capital Expenditure and Funding Plans
2.6

Capital expenditure plans are set out within the Treasury Management Strategy (6.2.2).

2.7

When expenditure is classified as capital expenditure for capital financing purposes, this means
that the Council is able to finance that expenditure from any of the following sources:

Page 152
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX F
(a)

Capital grants and contributions - amounts awarded to the Council in return for past or
future compliance with certain stipulations.

(b)

Capital receipts – amounts generated from the sale of assets and from the repayment of
capital loans, grants or other financial assistance.

(c)

Revenue contributions – amounts set aside from the revenue budget in the
Reserve for Future Capital Funding.

(d)

Borrowing - amounts that the Council does not need to fund immediately from cash
resources, but instead charges to the revenue budget over a number of years into the future.

2.8

The implications of financing capital expenditure from ‘borrowing’ are explained in section 3 below.

3.0

CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT AND BORROWING
Context

3.1

The Council is required to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local
Authorities (referred to as the ‘Prudential Code’) when assessing the affordability, prudence and
sustainability of its capital investment plans.

3.2

Fundamental to the prudential framework is a requirement to set a series of prudential indicators.
These indicators are intended to collectively build a picture that demonstrates the impact over time
of the Council’s capital expenditure plans upon the revenue budget and upon borrowing and
investment levels, and explain the overall controls that will ensure that the activity remains
affordable, prudent and sustainable.

3.3

A summary of the actual prudential indicators for 2021/22, and the estimates for
2022/23 through to 2024/25 are provided in the Treasury Management Strategy document.

Capital Financing Requirement
3.4

When capital expenditure is funded from borrowing, this does not result in expenditure being funded
immediately from cash resources, but is instead charged to the revenue budget over a number of
years. It does this in accordance with its policy for the repayment of debt, which is set out in the
Minimum Revenue Policy Statement, within the Treasury Strategy (6.3).

3.5

The forward projections of the CFR reflect:

3.6



Capital Expenditure plans that are expected to be funded from finance leases, which
includes Streetscene vehicle replacements and Ryecare system renewal



Revenue budget provision being made for the repayment of debt, which results in a
reduction to the CFR).

The actual CFR for 2021/22 and forward projections for the current and forthcoming years are as
follows:

Page 153
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX F

CFR General Fund

2020/21
Act.
£000
1,553

2021/22
Est.
£000
1,518

2022/23
Est.
£000
1,483

2023/24
Est.
£000
1,447

2024/25
Est.
£000
1,412

514

1,773

2,207

1,770

1,393

0

0

0

0

0

2,067

3,291

3,689

3,217

2,805

366

1,224

398

-472

-412

547

1,433

811

80

40

-181

-209

-413

-552

-452

366

1,224

398

-472

-412

CFR GF Leases
CFR Commercial / Nonfinancial investments
Total CFR
Movement in CFR
Movement in CFR represented by:Net Financing need for the
year
Less MRP & Other
Financing movements
Movement in CFR

3.7

The forecast decrease in the CFR shows that there are borrowing requirements to fund capital
expenditure to be financed through Finance Leases, and therefore the increase in 20/21 and 21/22
reflects the timing on the capital spend, then gradual reduction from 22/23 reflects the annual
minimum revenue provisions towards the repayment of debt.

External borrowing limits
3.9

The Council is only permitted to borrow externally (including via credit arrangements) up to
the level implied by its Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). To ensure that external
borrowing does not exceed the CFR, other than in the short term, limits are established for
external debt, as follows:


Authorised limit – this defines the maximum amount of external debt permitted by the
Council, and represents the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local
Government Act 2003.



Operational boundary – this is an estimate of the probable level of the Council’s
external debt, and provides the means by which external debt is managed to ensure
that the ‘authorised limit’ is not breached.

3.10 The proposed limits, which are set out in the Treasury Strategy, make separate provision for
external borrowing and other long-term liabilities, and are based upon an estimate of the most
likely but not worst case scenarios. They allow sufficient headroom for fluctuations in the level
of cash balances and in the level of the CFR.
3.11 Alternative investment activities included in the plan are to be classed as capital expenditure.
An Alternative Investments Strategy has not yet been developed and, in the event that major
initiatives are proposed, it may be necessary to review the current borrowing limits.
3.12 The agreed Operational Boundary and Authorised Limits for external debt are as follows:

Page 154
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX F

Authorised Limit

Debt
Other long term liabilities
Total

Operational Boundary

Debt
Other long term liabilities
Total

2021/22
Estimate
£’000
10,000
2,500
12,500

2021/22
Estimate
£’000
5,000
2,000
7,000

2022/23
Estimate
£’000
10,000
2,500
12,500

2022/23
Estimate
£’000
5,000
2,000
7,000

2023/24
Estimate
£’000
10,000
2,500
12,500

2023/24
Estimate
£’000
5,000
2,000
7,000

2024/25
Estimate
£’000
10,000
2,500
12,500

2024/25
Estimate
£’000
5,000
2,000
7,000

Borrowing strategy
3.13 The Councils Borrowing Strategy is set out in the Treasury Strategy document (6.4).
3.14 The Council’s capital borrowing is slightly lower than the underlying need to borrow, and the Council
is expected to be in an under-borrowed position from 2021/22 onwards. This has been a prudent
strategy as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high – this approach will be
carefully monitored during 2022/23
3.15 The use of internal borrowing has been an effective strategy in recent years as:


Rising cash balances as a result of MRP set aside mean available cash for the medium
to longer term;



It has enabled the Council to avoid significant external borrowing costs; and



It has mitigated significantly the risks associated with investing cash in what has often
been a volatile and challenging market.

3.16 Further long term external borrowing may be undertaken, in excess of the current forecasts, in the
event that it is not possible or desirable to sustain the anticipated internal borrowing position.
3.17 The external borrowing requirement will be kept under review and long term external loans will be
secured within the parameters established by the authorised limit and operational boundary for
external debt, as set out above.
3.18 Opportunities to generate savings by refinancing or prematurely repaying existing long term debt
will also be kept under review. Potential savings will be considered in the light of the current treasury
position and the costs associated with such actions.
Minimum Revenue Provision

Page 155
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX F
3.19 The Council sets cash resources aside from the Revenue Budget each year to repay the borrowing.
This practice is referred to as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) for the repayment of debt.
3.20 The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) provides a measure of the amount of capital expenditure
which has been financed from borrowing that the Council yet to fund from cash resources.
3.21 Statutory guidance requires MRP to be provided annually on a prudent basis. In accordance with
the requirement to make a prudent ‘revenue provision for the repayment of debt’, the Council
ensures that debt is repaid over a period that is commensurate with the period over which the capital
expenditure provides benefit. This is achieved by applying the methodology set out within the
Policy. The revenue budget provision for MRP charges in 2022/23 has been compiled on a basis
consistent with this policy
4.0. Alternative Investments
Introduction
4.1

The prolonged low interest rate environment has resulted in reduced returns on treasury
management investments. Moreover, the introduction of the general power of competence has
given local authorities far more flexibility in the types of activity they can engage in. These changes
in the economic and regulatory landscape, combined with significant financial challenges, have led
many authorities to consider different and more innovative types of investment.

4.2

The CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral
Guidance Notes (the Treasury Management Code) requires authorities to incorporate all of the
financial and non-financial assets held for financial return in authorities’ annual capital strategies.

4.3

Separately, the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities Statutory Guidance on
Local Authority Investments also reinforces the need for Commercial Activities to be included in the
Capital Strategy.

4.4

In addition, Her Majesty’s Treasury introduced revised lending terms for borrowing from the PWLB
on 25 November 2020. Under the revised lending terms, the government has now ended access
to the PWLB for Local Authorities that wish to buy commercial assets primarily for yield, as
assessed by the statutory section 151 officer. Local Authorities remain free to buy commercial
assets primarily for yield, but are not be able to take out new loans from the PWLB in year where
they have any plans to buy commercial assets at any point over the following 3 year period (any
loans taken out under the old system are not be affected by this change). As a result, of the revised
lending terms the government has now cut PWLB lending rates.

4.6

More recently, CIPFA published updated Treasury Management and Prudential Codes on 20
December 2021 and DLUHC issued a further consultation on MRP rules – the resultant changes
will be required to be reflected in local authority Treasury Management and Capital Strategies from
2023/24. The new CIPFA Codes and potential MRP rules changes are intended to further tighten
regulations around financing capital expenditure on investments in commercial projects for yield.

4.7

The 2021 Capital Expenditure Programme does not include any plans to purchase commercial
assets primarily for yield.

4.8

This section of the Capital Strategy will need to be updated if the Council’s own agenda for
commercial investments evolves.

4.9

It is worth highlighting that all commercial investment activities are subject to approval in
accordance with the Council’s governance framework for decision making.

Page 156
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX F
Alternative Investment Objectives
4.7

The primary objectives of the commercial investment activities:


Security – to protect the capital sums invested from loss; and



Liquidity – ensuring the funds invested are available for expenditure when needed.

4.8

The generation of yield is distinct from these prudential objectives. However, once proper levels of
security and liquidity are determined, it is then reasonable to consider what yield can be obtained
consistent with these priorities.

4.9

Non-core activities and investments would primarily be undertaken by the Council in order to
generate income to support the delivery of a balanced budget. Such investments would only be
entered following a full assessment of the risks and having secured expert external advice (i.e.
where it is relevant to do so)

4.10 To ensure that alternative investment plans are financially sustainable, the Council would need to
carefully consider the internal funds available for investment and proportionate risk.
Investment Properties
4.11 Land and buildings may be acquired for investment purposes rather than for the supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Such assets will be classified as Investment Properties.
The council already holds a number of properties in this class, and may wish to consider increasing
its property portfolio.
4.12 Investment properties are measured at their fair value annually (which will ensure the valuation
reflects the market conditions at the end of each reporting period). The fair value measurement will
enable the Council to assess whether the underlying assets provide security for capital investment.
Where the fair value of the underlying assets is no longer sufficient to provide security against loss,
mitigating actions will be considered, to ensure that appropriate action is taken to protect the capital
sum invested.
Loans to Third Parties
4.13 Loans to third parties could be considered, as part of a wider strategy for local economic growth for
example. However they may not all be seen as prudent if adopting a narrow definition of prioritising
security and liquidity.
4.14 Such loans should only be considered when all of the following criteria are satisfied:


The loan is given towards expenditure which would, if incurred by the Council, be capital
expenditure;



The purpose for which the loan is given is consistent with the Council’s corporate /
strategic objectives and priorities;



Due diligence is carried out that confirms the Council’s legal powers to make the loan,
and that assesses the risk of loss over the loan term;

Page 157
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX F


A formal loan agreement is put in place which stipulates the loan period repayment terms
and loan rate (which will be set at a level that seeks to mitigate any perceived risks of a
loss being charged to the General Fund, and takes appropriate account of state aid
rules) and any other terms that will protect the Council from loss;



Prior to any loan being granted, the Council’s own cashflow requirements are reviewed
to ensure that appropriate levels of liquidity will be maintained.

Other Alternative Investment Opportunities
4.15 There are a number of other potential opportunities the Council may want to consider, such as
investment in property funds and other institutions such as Credit Unions. As stated above, this
would need to be considered in the wider context of the Council’s corporate priorities and
appropriate due diligence and approvals sought. Such an investment should be considered as a
capital expenditure decision, and therefore would form part of the Capital Programme Budget
should an ‘investment’ be supported.

5.0

SECTION 151 OFFICER STATEMENT

Background
5.1

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code) plays a key role
in capital finance in local authorities. Local authorities determine their own programmes for
investment that are central to the delivery of quality public services. The Prudential Code was
developed by CIPFA as a professional code of practice to support local authorities in taking their
decisions. Local authorities are required by regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code when
carrying out their duties under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003.

5.2

In financing capital expenditure, local authorities are governed by legislative frameworks, including
the requirement to have regard to CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of
Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes.

5.3

In order to demonstrate that capital expenditure and investment decisions are taken in line with
service objectives and properly take account of stewardship, value for money, prudence,
sustainability and affordability, the Prudential Code requires authorities to have in place a Capital
Strategy that sets out the long term context in which capital expenditure and investment decisions
are made, and gives due consideration to both risk and reward and impact on the achievement of
priority outcomes.

5.4

The Prudential Code requires the Chief Financial Officer to report explicitly on the affordability and
risk associated with the Capital Strategy. The following are specific responsibilities of the Section
151 Officer:


recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, reviewing
regularly, and monitoring compliance;



submitting quarterly treasury management reports;



submitting quarterly capital budget update reports;



reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;

Page 158
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX F

5.5



ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the effective
division of responsibilities within the treasury management function;



ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit;



recommending the appointment of external service providers.



preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, nonfinancial investments and treasury management



ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent in the
long term and provides value for money



ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority



ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure on nonfinancial assets and their financing



ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not undertake
a level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level of risk compared
to its financial resources



ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, monitoring
and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and long term liabilities



provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including material
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial guarantees



ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk exposures
taken on by an authority



ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally provided



creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non
treasury investments will be carried out and managed

The Capital Strategy provides an overview of the governance process for approval and
monitoring of capital expenditure. These processes are well established and are highly
effective in ensuring delivery of the Authority’s capital investment plans. In addition, the Capital
Strategy and Prudential Indicators also demonstrates that the capital expenditure, investment
and financing plans of the Authority are robust, affordable and sustainable.

Page 159
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10a

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

17 FEBRUARY 2022

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE ON 20 JANUARY 2022

74

Model Code of Conduct

Considered – report of the Head of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer
Recommendation
That the Local Government Association (LGA) Model Code of Conduct for Councillors be
adopted as Ryedale District Council’s Code of Conduct for Councillors, subject to minor
amendments to replace gender-specific language (e.g. ‘him/her’) with gender neutral
language (e.g. ‘their’) and to add socio-economic group to the list of characteristics to be
protected in the ‘Equalities’ section.

Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 161

17 February 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ACTING AS THE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

DATE:

20 JANUARY 2022

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MONITORING
OFFICER
SIMON COPLEY

TITLE OF REPORT:

MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report presents the Local Government Association (LGA) Model Code of Conduct
for Councillors and seeks approval to adopt this as Ryedale District Council’s Code of
Conduct for Councillors.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended to Council that the Local Government Association (LGA) Model
Code of Conduct for Councillors be adopted as Ryedale District Council’s Code of
Conduct for Councillors, subject to minor amendments to replace gender-specific
language (e.g. ‘him/her’) with gender neutral language (e.g. ‘their’) and to add socioeconomic group to the list of characteristics to be protected in the ‘Equalities’ section.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The LGA’s aim was to make the Code relatively short and easy to read rather than an
overly-complex legal document as it needed to be accessible to councillors, officers,
and the public alike. Supporting guidance was also requested to help understand some
of the key provisions in greater depth with examples and case illustrations. This
supporting guidance aims to help understanding and consistency of approach towards
the Code.

3.2

The LGA states that the Code together with the guidance have been designed to
protect the democratic role of councillors, encourage good conduct, and safeguard the
public’s trust and confidence in the role of the councillor in local government. While it
sets out the minimum standards of behaviour expected, together with the guidance, it
is designed to encourage councillors to model the high standards expected, to be

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 163

20 JANUARY 2022

mutually respectful even if they have personal or political differences, to provide a
personal check and balance, and to set out the type of conduct that could lead to
complaints being made of behaviour falling below the standards expected of
councillors and in breach of the Code. It is also there to protect councillors, the public,
local authority officers and the reputation of local government.
3.3

Standards issues continue to be a significant concern for the Council, as illustrated
both by the numbers of formal complaints received and ongoing informal feedback
from Members, officers and members of the public. Appendix 4 provides a summary
of complaints over the past year, though it should be noted that parish and town
councils have their own Codes of Conduct. A disproportionate amount of officer time
is required to deal with standards issues and complaints, particularly following
meetings of Full Council, and adoption of the Model Code would be extremely helpful
in supporting the Council to deal with this more effectively.

3.4

Elected Member approval is required for adoption of a new Code of Conduct. The
Overview and Scrutiny Committee acting as the Corporate Governance Standards
Committee has a constitutional role advising the Council on the adoption or revision of
the Members Code of Conduct, and Full Council approval is required as this involves
changing the Constitution itself. The support of elected Members for this new Code is
essential to effectively tackling standards issues.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The main risk around adopting a new Code of Conduct for Councillors is that the
change results in confusion amongst councillors, officers and members of the public
around the required standards of conduct. However given that the Model Code is
clearer and easier to use and understand than the current Code, it could in fact mitigate
the risk of confusion. Learning and development has taken place to support
understanding of the Model Code, so that an informed decision can be made on its
adoption and implementation.

4.2

Poor standards of conduct and / or the perception of poor standards resulting from a
lack of clarity in the Code of Conduct can result in reputational damage, complaints,
legal challenge, financial penalties and costs, and poor Member / Officer relations.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

In December 2020, the LGA developed and published a Model Councillor Code of
Conduct in association with key partners and following extensive consultation with the
sector. This was in response to the recommendation of the Committee of Standards in
Public Life Local Government Ethical Standards 2019. The Code was part of their work
on supporting all tiers of local government to continue to aspire to high standards of
leadership and performance, and their civility in public life programme. An updated
version of the Model Code was published in July 2021, along with the guidance
referenced above.

5.2

The Code is a template for Local Authorities to adopt in whole and or with amendments
to take into account local circumstances. All councils are required to have a local
Councillor Code of Conduct.

5.3

The LGA will undertake an annual review of this Code to ensure it continues to be fit
for purpose, incorporating advances in technology, social media and changes in

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 164

20 JANUARY 2022

legislation. The LGA can also offer support, training and mediation to councils and
councillors on the application of the Code.
REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The Council’s current Member Code of Conduct took effect from 1 July 2012. There
is a consensus of opinion that it is a confusing document, overly complex and unclear
to understand, and this significantly hampers efforts to provide a clear message as to
expected standards of conduct and to deal with complaints fairly and effectively when
they arise.

6.2

The Council needs to adopt a proactive approach to promoting high standards of
conduct, with the endorsement of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee
acting as the Corporate Governance Standards Committee. Regular learning and
development sessions have been provided around standards matters, Code of
Conduct and Member / Officer relations. These have included exploration of the
benefits offered by adopting the Model Code and it has been the intention to bring this
forward for consideration once the Model Code had been reviewed and updated and
supporting guidance produced.

6.3

Further learning and development sessions have been held in October 2021 to ensure
that all councillors have a thorough understanding of the provisions of the Model Code
prior to considering it for adoption. Adoption of the Code makes training on standards
mandatory for all elected Members, through the clause that “I undertake Code of
Conduct training provided by my local authority”.

6.4

Appendix 3 of this report provides a summary of training sessions held and attendance
levels at them.

6.5

The Model Code is attached as Appendix 1 of this report and a brief summary of the
main differences between it and the current Code is attached as Appendix 2.

6.6

The plans for local government reorganisation in North Yorkshire add a further
incentive to move to a uniform and easily understood set of standards for councillors.
A number of other councils in the area have adopted the Model Code, or intend to do
so, including the County Council, and Harrogate and Scarborough Borough Councils.

6.7

Adoption of the Model Code is strongly recommended for the reasons outlined in detail
in section 3 above, namely to provide a clear and strong set of standards for
councillors, for their use and understanding and to clearly communicate expected
behaviours to other interested parties, such as residents and Council officers.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
There are no financial implications arising directly from the adoption of the Model
Code. Financial penalties and costs may be incurred as a result of poor standards
of conduct and a lack of clarity around required standards.
b)

Legal
There are no legal implications arising directly from the adoption of the Model

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 165

20 JANUARY 2022

Code. Legal challenges may occur as a result of poor standards of conduct and
a lack of clarity around required standards. The Member Code of Conduct forms
a section of Part 5 of the Council’s Constitution and this will be replaced with the
new Model Code if adopted.
c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
There are no other implications arising directly from the adoption of the Model
Code. The Model Code includes an explicit requirement for councillors that “I
promote equalities and do not discriminate unlawfully against any person” and that
“I do not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of anyone who
works for, or on behalf of, the local authority”. Equalities issues and difficulties with
Member / Officer relations may occur as a result of poor standards of conduct and
a lack of clarity around required standards. The recent staff survey results have
highlighted the need for good Member / Officer relations. An equalities impact
assessment has been undertaken, which shows a positive impact if the Model
Code is adopted and recommends minor amendments to replace gender-specific
language (e.g. ‘him/her’) with gender neutral language (e.g. ‘their’) and to add
socio-economic group to the list of characteristics to be protected in the ‘Equalities’
section.

8.0

NEXT STEPS

8.1

If the Model Code is adopted, this will be published as part of the Council’s Constitution
and a new Register of Interests form will be made available for completion in line with
its requirements.

Simon Copley
Head of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Simon Copley, Head of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43277
simon.copley@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Ryedale District Council’s current Member Code of Conduct
LGA Guidance on the new Model Code of Conduct
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
www.ryedale.gov.uk
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/guidance-local-government-association-modelcouncillor-code-conduct

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 166

20 JANUARY 2022

Local Government Association
Model Councillor Code of Conduct 2020

Joint statement
The role of councillor across all tiers of local government is a vital part of our country’s
system of democracy. It is important that as councillors we can be held accountable and all
adopt the behaviors and responsibilities associated with the role. Our conduct as an
individual councillor affects the reputation of all councillors. We want the role of councillor to
be one that people aspire to. We also want individuals from a range of backgrounds and
circumstances to be putting themselves forward to become councillors.
As councillors, we represent local residents, work to develop better services and deliver
local change. The public have high expectations of us and entrust us to represent our local
area, taking decisions fairly, openly, and transparently. We have both an individual and
collective responsibility to meet these expectations by maintaining high standards and
demonstrating good conduct, and by challenging behaviour which falls below expectations.
Importantly, we should be able to undertake our role as a councillor without being
intimidated, abused, bullied, or threatened by anyone, including the general public.
This Code has been designed to protect our democratic role, encourage good conduct and
safeguard the public’s trust in local government.

Page 1 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 167

Introduction
The Local Government Association (LGA) has developed this Model Councillor Code of
Conduct, in association with key partners and after extensive consultation with the sector,
as part of its work on supporting all tiers of local government to continue to aspire to high
standards of leadership and performance. It is a template for councils to adopt in whole
and/or with local amendments.
All councils are required to have a local Councillor Code of Conduct.
The LGA will undertake an annual review of this Code to ensure it continues to be fit- forpurpose, incorporating advances in technology, social media and changes in legislation. The
LGA can also offer support, training and mediation to councils and councillors on the
application of the Code and the National Association of Local Councils (NALC) and the
county associations of local councils can offer advice and support to town and parish
councils.

Definitions
For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, a “councillor” means a member or co-opted
member of a local authority or a directly elected mayor. A “co-opted member” is defined in
the Localism Act 2011 Section 27(4) as “a person who is not a member of the authority but
who

a) is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the authority, or;
b) is a member of, and represents the authority on, any joint committee or joint subcommittee of the authority;
and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any meeting of that
committee or sub-committee”.
For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, “local authority” includes county councils, district
councils, London borough councils, parish councils, town councils, fire and rescue
authorities, police authorities, joint authorities, economic prosperity boards, combined
authorities and National Park authorities.

Purpose of the Code of Conduct
The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to assist you, as a councillor, in modelling the
behaviour that is expected of you, to provide a personal check and balance, and to set out
the type of conduct that could lead to action being taken against you. It is also to protect
you, the public, fellow councillors, local authority officers and the reputation of local
government. It sets out general principles of conduct expected of all councillors and your
specific obligations in relation to standards of conduct. The LGA encourages the use of
support, training and mediation prior to action being taken using the Code. The
fundamental aim of the Code is to create and maintain public confidence in the role of
councillor and local government.

Page 2 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 168

General principles of councillor conduct
Everyone in public office at all levels; all who serve the public or deliver public services,
including ministers, civil servants, councillors and local authority officers; should uphold
the Seven Principles of Public Life, also known as the Nolan Principles.
Building on these principles, the following general principles have been developed
specifically for the role of councillor.
In accordance with the public trust placed in me, on all occasions:

•
•
•
•

I act with integrity and honesty
I act lawfully
I treat all persons fairly and with respect; and
I lead by example and act in a way that secures public confidence in the role of
councillor.

In undertaking my role:

•
•
•
•
•

I impartially exercise my responsibilities in the interests of the local community
I do not improperly seek to confer an advantage, or disadvantage, on any
person
I avoid conflicts of interest
I exercise reasonable care and diligence; and
I ensure that public resources are used prudently in accordance with my local
authority’s requirements and in the public interest.

Application of the Code of Conduct
This Code of Conduct applies to you as soon as you sign your declaration of acceptance of
the office of councillor or attend your first meeting as a co-opted member and continues to
apply to you until you cease to be a councillor.
This Code of Conduct applies to you when you are acting in your capacity as a councillor
which may include when:
•

you misuse your position as a councillor

•

Your actions would give the impression to a reasonable member of the public with
knowledge of all the facts that you are acting as a councillor;

The Code applies to all forms of communication and interaction, including:

•

at face-to-face meetings

•

at online or telephone meetings

•

in written communication

•

in verbal communication

•

in non-verbal communication

•

in electronic and social media communication, posts, statements and
comments.

You are also expected to uphold high standards of conduct and show leadership at all times
when acting as a councillor.
Your Monitoring Officer has statutory responsibility for the implementation of the Code of
Conduct, and you are encouraged to seek advice from your Monitoring Officer on any
matters that may relate to the Code of Conduct. Town and parish councillors are
encouraged to seek advice from their Clerk, who may refer matters to the Monitoring
Page 3 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 169

Officer.

Standards of councillor conduct
This section sets out your obligations, which are the minimum standards of conduct required of
you as a councillor. Should your conduct fall short of these standards, a complaint may be
made against you, which may result in action being taken.
Guidance is included to help explain the reasons for the obligations and how they should be
followed.
General Conduct

1. Respect
As a councillor:

1.1 I treat other councillors and members of the public with respect.
1.2 I treat local authority employees, employees and representatives of partner
organisations and those volunteering for the local authority with respect and
respect the role they play.
Respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in the written word.
Debate and having different views are all part of a healthy democracy. As a councillor, you
can express, challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas, opinions and policies in a
robust but civil manner. You should not, however, subject individuals, groups of people or
organisations to personal attack.
In your contact with the public, you should treat them politely and courteously. Rude and
offensive behaviour lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in councillors.
In return, you have a right to expect respectful behaviour from the public. If members of the
public are being abusive, intimidatory or threatening you are entitled to stop any
conversation or interaction in person or online and report them to the local authority, the
relevant social media provider or the police. This also applies to fellow councillors, where
action could then be taken under the Councillor Code of Conduct, and local authority
employees, where concerns should be raised in line with the local authority’s councillorofficer protocol.

2. Bullying, harassment and discrimination
As a councillor:

2.1 I do not bully any person.
2.2 I do not harass any person.
2.3 I promote equalities and do not discriminate unlawfully against any
person.
The Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS) characterises bullying as
offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power
through means that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient. Bullying might be
a regular pattern of behaviour or a one-off incident, happen face-to-face, on social media, in
emails or phone calls, happen in the workplace or at work social events and may not always
be obvious or noticed by others.
The Protection from Harassment Act 1997 defines harassment as conduct that causes
alarm or distress or puts people in fear of violence and must involve such conduct on at least
two occasions. It can include repeated attempts to impose unwanted communications and
Page 4 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 170

contact upon a person in a manner that could be expected to cause distress or fear in any
reasonable person.
Unlawful discrimination is where someone is treated unfairly because of a protected
characteristic. Protected characteristics are specific aspects of a person's
identity defined by the Equality Act 2010. They are age, disability, gender reassignment,
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and
sexual orientation.
The Equality Act 2010 places specific duties on local authorities. Councillors have a central
role to play in ensuring that equality issues are integral to the local authority's performance
and strategic aims, and that there is a strong vision and public commitment to equality
across public services.

3. Impartiality of officers of the council
As a councillor:

3.1 I do not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of
anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the local authority.
Officers work for the local authority as a whole and must be politically neutral (unless they
are political assistants). They should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a way that would
undermine their neutrality. You can question officers in order to understand, for example,
their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the content of a report that they
have written. However, you must not try and force them to act differently, change their
advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so would prejudice their professional
integrity.

4. Confidentiality and access to information
As a councillor:

4.1 I do not disclose information:
a. given to me in confidence by anyone
b. acquired by me which I believe, or ought reasonably to be
aware, is of a confidential nature, unless
i. I have received the consent of a person authorised to give it;
ii. I am required by law to do so;
iii. the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of
obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third
party agrees not to disclose the information to any other
person; or
iv. the disclosure is:
1. reasonable and in the public interest; and
2. made in good faith and in compliance with the
reasonable requirements of the local authority; and
3. I have consulted the Monitoring Officer prior to its
release.

4.2 I do not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of my role as a
councillor for the advancement of myself, my friends, my family members,
my employer or my business interests.

4.3 I do not prevent anyone from getting information that they are entitled to by
law.
Page 5 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 171

Local authorities must work openly and transparently, and their proceedings and printed
materials are open to the public, except in certain legally defined circumstances. You should
work on this basis, but there will be times when it is required by law that discussions,
documents and other information relating to or held by the local authority must be treated in
a confidential manner. Examples include personal data relating to individuals or information
relating to ongoing negotiations.

5. Disrepute
As a councillor:

5.1 I do not bring my role or local authority into disrepute.
As a Councillor, you are trusted to make decisions on behalf of your community and your
actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary members of the
public. You should be aware that your actions might have an adverse impact on you, other
councillors and/or your local authority and may lower the public’s confidence in your or your
local authority’s ability to discharge your/its functions. For example, behaviour that is
considered dishonest and/or deceitful can bring your local authority into disrepute.
You are able to hold the local authority and fellow councillors to account and are able to
constructively challenge and express concern about decisions and processes undertaken by
the council whilst continuing to adhere to other aspects of this Code of Conduct.

6. Use of position
As a councillor:

6.1 I do not use, or attempt to use, my position improperly to the advantage or
disadvantage of myself or anyone else.
Your position as a member of the local authority provides you with certain opportunities,
responsibilities, and privileges, and you make choices all the time that will impact others.
However, you should not take advantage of these opportunities to further your own or
others’ private interests or to disadvantage anyone unfairly.

7. Use of local authority resources and facilities
As a councillor:

7.1 I do not misuse council resources.
7.2 I will, when using the resources of the local authority or authorising their use
by
others:
a.
act in accordance with the local authority's requirements; and
b.
ensure that such resources are not used for political purposes unless
that use could reasonably be regarded as likely to facilitate, or be
conducive to, the discharge of the functions of the local authority or of
the office to which I have been elected or appointed.
You may be provided with resources and facilities by the local authority to assist you in
carrying out your duties as a councillor.
Examples include:

•
•
•
•

office support
stationery
equipment such as phones, and computers
transport
Page 6 of 16

Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 172

•

access and use of local authority buildings and rooms.

These are given to you to help you carry out your role as a councillor more effectively and
are not to be used for business or personal gain. They should be used in accordance with
the purpose for which they have been provided and the local authority’s own policies
regarding their use.

8. Complying with the Code of Conduct
As a Councillor:

8.1 I undertake Code of Conduct training provided by my local authority.
8.2 I cooperate with any Code of Conduct investigation and/or
determination.

8.3 I do not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to be
involved with the administration of any investigation or proceedings.

8.4 I comply with any sanction imposed on me following a finding that I have
breached the Code of Conduct.
It is extremely important for you as a councillor to demonstrate high standards, for you to
have your actions open to scrutiny and for you not to undermine public trust in the local
authority or its governance. If you do not understand or are concerned about the local
authority’s processes in handling a complaint you should raise this with your Monitoring
Officer.
Protecting your reputation and the reputation of the local authority

9. Interests
As a councillor:

9.1 I register and disclose my interests.
Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Monitoring Officer to establish and
maintain a register of interests of members of the authority .
You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and fellow
councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest. The register is
a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises. The register
also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and a willingness to be held
accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding whether or not you should
disclose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if others think
that a potential conflict might arise. It is also important that the public know about any
interest that might have to be disclosed by you or other councillors when making or taking
part in decisions, so that decision making is seen by the public as open and honest. This
helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained.
You should note that failure to register or disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest as set
out in Table 1, is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011.
Appendix B sets out the detailed provisions on registering and disclosing interests. If in
doubt, you should always seek advice from your Monitoring Officer.

Page 7 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 173

10. Gifts and hospitality
As a councillor:

10.1

I do not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value, which
could give rise to real or substantive personal gain or a reasonable
suspicion of influence on my part to show favour from persons seeking to
acquire, develop or do business with the local authority or from persons
who may apply to the local authority for any permission, licence or other
significant advantage.

10.2

I register with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality with an
estimated value of at least £50 within 28 days of its receipt.

10.3

I register with the Monitoring Officer any significant gift or
hospitality that I have been offered but have refused to accept.

In order to protect your position and the reputation of the local authority, you should
exercise caution in accepting any gifts or hospitality which are (or which you reasonably
believe to be) offered to you because you are a councillor. The presumption should always
be not to accept significant gifts or hospitality. However, there may be times when such a
refusal may be difficult if it is seen as rudeness in which case you could accept it but must
ensure it is publicly registered. However, you do not need to register gifts and hospitality
which are not related to your role as a councillor, such as Christmas gifts from your friends
and family. It is also important to note that it is appropriate to accept normal expenses and
hospitality associated with your duties as a councillor. If you are unsure, do contact your
Monitoring Officer for guidance.

Page 8 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 174

Appendices
Appendix A – The Seven Principles of Public Life
The principles are:
Selflessness
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.
Integrity
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or
organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not
act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves,
their family, or their friends. They must disclose and resolve any interests and relationships.
Objectivity
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using
the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.
Accountability
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and
must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.
Openness
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner.
Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear
and lawful
reasons for so doing.
Honesty
Holders of public office should be truthful.
Leadership
Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should
actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor
behaviour wherever it occurs.

Page 9 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 175

Appendix B Registering interests
Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must
register with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in
Table 1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register
details of your other personal interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 2
(Other Registerable Interests).
“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are
aware of your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below.
"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband
or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners.

1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28
days of becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered
interest, notify the Monitoring Officer.

2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the
councillor, or a person connected with the councillor, being subject to violence
or intimidation.

3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with
the reasons why you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer
agrees they will withhold the interest from the public register.
Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not
participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room
unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not
have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest.
Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate
and vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest.

5. [ Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is
being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function,
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or
further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it ]
Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or
wellbeing of one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must
disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are
also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any
discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have
been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose
the nature of the interest.

Page 10 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 176

Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests
7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest
or well-being (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a
financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the
interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed
to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote
on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a
dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of
the interest.

8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects –
a. your own financial interest or well-being;
b. a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate; or
c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as
set out in Table 2
you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the
meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied

9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects the financial interest or well-being:
a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it
would affect your view of the wider public interest
You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to
speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote
on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a
dispensation.
If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

10. [Where you have an Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest on a matter
to be considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of
your executive function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must
not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else
to deal with it]

Page 11 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 177

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the
Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012.
Subject
Description
Any employment, office, trade,
Employment, office, trade,
profession or vocation carried on for
profession or vocation
profit or gain.
Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other
financial benefit (other than from the
council) made to the councillor during the
previous 12-month period for expenses
incurred by him/her in carrying out
his/her duties as a councillor, or towards
his/her election expenses.
This includes any payment or financial
benefit from a trade union within the
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts

Any contract made between the
councillor or his/her spouse or civil
partner or the person with whom the

Page 12 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 178

councillor is living as if they were
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which
such person is a partner, or an incorporated
body of which such person is a director* or
a body that such person has a beneficial
interest in the securities of*) and the council
—
(a) under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.
Land and Property

Any beneficial interest in land which is
within the area of the council.
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude,
interest or right in or over land which does
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or
civil partner or the person with whom the
councillor is living as if they were spouses/
civil partners (alone or jointly with another)
a right to occupy or to receive income.

Licenses

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to
occupy land in the area of the council for a
month or longer
Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s
knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the council; and
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor,
or his/her spouse or civil partner or the
person with whom the councillor is living as
if they were spouses/ civil partners is a
partner of or a director* of or has a
beneficial interest in the securities* of.

Corporate tenancies

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities* of a
body where—
(a) that body (to the councillor’s
knowledge) has a place of business or
land in the area of the council; and
(b) either—
(i) ) the total nominal value of the
securities* exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of
more than one class, the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class in
which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or
civil partner or the person with whom the
councillor is living as if they were

Page 13 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 179

spouses/civil partners have a beneficial
interest exceeds one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that class.
* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and
provident society.

* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building
society.
Table 2: Other Registrable Interests

You must register as an Other Registerable Interest :
a) any unpaid directorships
b ) any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or
management and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority
c) any body

(i) exercising functions of a public nature
(ii) directed to charitable purposes or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion
or policy (including any political party or trade union)
of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management

Page 14 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 180

Appendix C – the Committee on Standards in Public Life
The LGA has undertaken this review whilst the Government continues to consider the
recommendations made by the Committee on Standards in Public Life in their report on
Local Government Ethical Standards. If the Government chooses to implement any of the
recommendations, this could require a change to this Code.
The recommendations cover:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Recommendations for changes to the Localism Act 2011 to clarify in law when the
Code of Conduct applies
The introduction of sanctions
An appeals process through the Local Government Ombudsman
Changes to the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests)
Regulations 2012
Updates to the Local Government Transparency Code
Changes to the role and responsibilities of the Independent Person
That the criminal offences in the Localism Act 2011 relating to Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests should be abolished

The Local Government Ethical Standards report also includes Best Practice
recommendations. These are:
Best practice 1: Local authorities should include prohibitions on bullying and harassment in
codes of conduct. These should include a definition of bullying and harassment,
supplemented with a list of examples of the sort of behaviour covered by such a definition.
Best practice 2: Councils should include provisions in their code of conduct requiring
councillors to comply with any formal standards investigation and prohibiting trivial or
malicious allegations by councillors.
Best practice 3: Principal authorities should review their code of conduct each year and
regularly seek, where possible, the views of the public, community organisations and
neighbouring authorities.
Best practice 4: An authority’s code should be readily accessible to both councillors and
the public, in a prominent position on a council’s website and available in council premises.
Best practice 5: Local authorities should update their gifts and hospitality register at least
once per quarter, and publish it in an accessible format, such as CSV.
Best practice 6: Councils should publish a clear and straightforward public interest test
against which allegations are filtered.
Best practice 7: Local authorities should have access to at least two Independent
Persons.
Best practice 8: An Independent Person should be consulted as to whether to undertake a
formal investigation on an allegation, and should be given the option to

Page 15 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 181

review and comment on allegations which the responsible officer is minded to dismiss
as being without merit, vexatious, or trivial.
Best practice 9: Where a local authority makes a decision on an allegation of misconduct
following a formal investigation, a decision notice should be published as soon as possible
on its website, including a brief statement of facts, the provisions of the code engaged by
the allegations, the view of the Independent Person, the reasoning of the decision-maker,
and any sanction applied.
Best practice 10: A local authority should have straightforward and accessible guidance
on its website on how to make a complaint under the code of conduct, the process for
handling complaints, and estimated timescales for investigations and outcomes.
Best practice 11: Formal standards complaints about the conduct of a parish councillor
towards a clerk should be made by the chair or by the parish council, rather than the clerk in
all but exceptional circumstances.
Best practice 12: Monitoring Officers’ roles should include providing advice, support and
management of investigations and adjudications on alleged breaches to parish councils
within the remit of the principal authority. They should be provided with adequate training,
corporate support and resources to undertake this work.
Best practice 13: A local authority should have procedures in place to address any
conflicts of interest when undertaking a standards investigation. Possible steps should
include asking the Monitoring Officer from a different authority to undertake the
investigation.
Best practice 14: Councils should report on separate bodies they have set up or which
they own as part of their annual governance statement and give a full picture of their
relationship with those bodies. Separate bodies created by local authorities should abide by
the Nolan principle of openness and publish their board agendas and minutes and annual
reports in an accessible place.
Best practice 15: Senior officers should meet regularly with political group leaders or group
whips to discuss standards issues.

The LGA has committed to reviewing the Code on an annual basis to ensure it is still
fit for purpose.

Page 16 of 16
Approved 3rd 12.2020
Updated 19 January and 17 May 2021

Page 182

APPENDIX 2

Summary of differences between the
current Ryedale District Council Code and the
new LGA Model Code

The new LGA Model Code (the new code) broadly covers the same issues as the current Code
of Conduct of the Council (the current code) i.e.






Principles of public life
When the code applies
Outcomes/behaviour expected of councillors
Interests
Gifts and hospitality

If the Council was to adopt the new code, members would probably see little real difference
in practice in the standards of conduct required and in the circumstances where they have to
register and declare interests. But there are some differences in language and approach,
some additional requirements and some clearer wording in certain areas. These differences
are summarised as follows:Terminology
1. The new code uses the term “councillors” not “members” on the basis that this is
better understood by the public. It should be noted however that some councils who
have adopted the new code have retained the term “member” as they feel this more
accurately covers co-opted independent members to whom the code also applies.
Principles of public life
2. The new code retains the Nolan Principles (which are in the current code) but adds an
additional set of “Principles”. The new principles set out how the generic Nolan
Principles (which apply to all aspects of public life) specifically translate into the role
of a local authority councillor. They are helpful, but do not change or add to the core
requirements of councillor conduct, which are set out elsewhere in the code.
When the code applies
3. The new Code makes it much clearer when the Code applies i.e. which activities of a
councillor are covered by its provisions. It clarifies that the Code applies to any form
of communication (including social media) and also that it applies if a councillor
misuses their role or if someone might reasonably think they were acting as a
councillor – this is designed to cover the situation where members use their position
improperly.

Page 183

1

APPENDIX 2
4. The LGA Guidance which has been issued to supplement the new code, helpfully
expands on when the code applies to social media activity – the use of the designation
“councillor” is not definitive. Whether the activity is covered by the code will depend
on what is being said and its link to the council.
Outcomes/behaviours
5. The current code sets out a series of “outcomes” which the Principles seek to achieve
and to which members should adhere, for example:


Being accountable for my decisions and co-operating when scrutinised
internally and externally, including by local residents
Always treating people with respect, including the organisations and public I
engage with and those I work alongside

6. The current code does not describe the behaviours that are required to produce the
outcomes. The new code approaches this in a different way and does set out detailed
requirements for the behaviour of councillors. It is drafted in a very direct way, for
example:


I treat other councillors and members of the public with respect
I do not misuse council resources

7. Although the two codes are expressed differently, many of the essential requirements
of behaviour are common to both and cover the same broad areas of responsibility.
However, comparing the codes, there are a number of areas which do not directly
read across. The new code contains the following provisions which are not explicitly
found in the current code:








I do not bully any person
I do not harass any person
I promote equalities and do not discriminate unlawfully against any person
I do not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of anyone
who works for, or on behalf, of the local authority
I do not bring my role or local authority into disrepute
I undertake Code of Conduct training and co-operate with Code of Conduct
investigations or determinations
I do not intimidate anyone involved with Code of Conduct
investigations/proceedings
I comply with any Code of Conduct sanctions

8. Although these provisions are not found in the current code in these specific terms,
they are all rooted in the principles and outcomes which are part of that code.

Page 184

2

APPENDIX 2
Interests
9. The current code has two types of interest which require registration and/or
declaration:


Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Disclosable Other Personal Interests

10. The new code has three types of interest:



Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Other Registerable Interests
Non-registerable Interests

11. Although the two codes approach the topic in different ways and use different
definitions, the overall impact of the changes in the new code are likely to be minimal
in terms of which interests members need to register and/or declare.
12. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests are exactly the same as in the current code – these
are specified in legislation and cannot be changed. The other types of interests largely
mirror the different kinds of interests in the current code, but they are set out
differently.
13. Other Registerable Interests are defined in Table 2 of the new code. They cover such
situations as membership of an outside body and are very close to the current
requirements of Part B para 1 of the current Code. The only differences are that the
new Code



Adds the requirement to register unpaid directorships and
Omits the requirement of the current code to register easements/rights over land.

14. Non-registerable Interests in the new code cover a range of situations where
members must declare an interest and, depending on the circumstances, must then
go on to withdraw from the meeting. Although these are set out differently from the
current code, and there are subtle distinctions in the wording, the overall result is
quite similar.
15. It is possible that there could be a few more declarations of personal interests by
members under the new code than under the current one because of the new
definitions. The new code requires a declaration of interest where a matter on an
agenda affects:


a member’s financial position or wellbeing or
the financial position or wellbeing of a relative or close associate of the
member

Page 185

3

APPENDIX 2
whereas the current code only requires these particular interests to be declared if
they affect the financial position or wellbeing of the person to a greater extent than
the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the division or
ward affected by the decision.
16. A similar test is used under the new code, but the purpose of the test here is to see
whether a personal interest turns into a prejudicial one (not to decide if there is an
interest to start with).
17. There are various other differences of definition and approach but, overall, the
purpose and thrust of the two codes in relation to interests are very similar. The
wording of the new code is much clearer than the current code in relation to interests.
Gifts and Hospitality
18. Both codes require the registration of gifts and hospitality in excess of £50. The new
code has additional provisions as follows (summarised):


I do not accept gifts and hospitality which could give rise to personal gain or a
reasonable suspicion of influence
I register with the MO any significant gift or hospitality that I have been offered
but have refused.

Page 186

4

Appendix 3
Committee
Rules & Working
Chair of
Roles & Chairing Member
with
LGA Code Council
Conduct Interests Skills
Roles
Officers Standards 1
Standards 2
of Conduct Briefing
09.05.19 03.07.19 07.08.19

23

5

11

13.11.19

19

04.12.19 11.11.20 02.12.20
Virtual
Virtual
14

23

17

28.04.21
Virtual
11

25.05.21
Virtual
1

Committee
Chair Skills

Member
Officer
Relations

New LGA Code
of Conduct

26.05.21
Virtual

28.06.21
Virtual

20/25.10.21
Physical/Virtual

5

11

9

Page 187

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 4 – Complaints Summary Oct 2020-Oct 2021
No

RDC
Cllr

1

X

Parish/Town Nature of complaint
Cllr

No further action

Inappropriate comments and behaviour by a
member of the planning committee

Standards training sessions to be
arranged. Intro to next meeting to cover
issues of respect and behaviour
In future the Agenda will be published and
placed on the Parish Notice Board and the
public informed that they can make
written representations on any item of
business, which will then be considered by
the Members.

X

Complaint from a member of the public re
planning application procedure during COVID –
Cllrs discussions held privately, no public
involvement except uninvited visit to
neighbour.

3

X

Complaint from business owner against
members of Parish Council acting against their
code of conduct and in breach of her
protection under GDPR legislation and the
Data Protection Act.

No further action

Complaint by 3 Parish Cllrs regarding conduct
of Ward Councillor – inappropriate
submissions during the Parish Council monthly
meeting

The Code of Conduct
is not engaged

Code of Conduct complaint from member of
the public against Parish Cllr

No further action

Page 189

2

4

5

X

X

Informal resolution

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 4 – Complaints Summary Oct 2020-Oct 2021
6

7

8

X

Code of Conduct complaint re Town Council
Cllr- Breach of Members code of Conduct

Code of conduct complaint from re alleged
bullying by Cllr

X

Complaint by member of the public against
RDC Cllr re potential bias via social media
group.

X

No further action

No further action

No further action

Page 190

Complaint re alleged bullying of RDC Officer.
9

X

10

No further action

X

Code of Conduct complaint from member of
the public re 2 Cllrs at Parish meeting.

No further action

X

Code of Conduct complaint re inappropriate
use of social media by RDC Cllr.

Cllr reminded of code regarding Blogging
and Social Networking.

As above

12

X

Code of Conduct complaint re inappropriate
use of social media.

13

X

11

As above
Code of Conduct complaint re inappropriate
use of social media.

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 4 – Complaints Summary Oct 2020-Oct 2021

14

X

Code of Conduct complaint re proceedings at
Parish meeting.

Advised to refer complaint to Parish
Council to investigate as appropriate
course of action.

15

X

Code of Conduct complaint by various
councillors following Planning Meeting

As No’s 19-24

16

X

Code of Conduct complaint against various
Cllr’s by member of public following Planning
Meeting

As No’s 19-24

Page 191

17

X

Code of Conduct complaint against the Parish
Cllr.

No further action

18

X

Complaint by Cllr, also on behalf of others re
letter to press

No further action

19 -24

X

Member complaint re various Cllrs from
Planning meeting (re items 15 & 16 above)

OFFICIAL

Proposed action - all Members of the
Planning Committee attend a training
session to be presented by a specialist
planning trainer;

APPENDIX 4 – Complaints Summary Oct 2020-Oct 2021

25

X

Complaint from member of the public re Cllr
following RDC meeting 15.04.21

Page 192

26

X

Code of Conduct complaint by Cllr against Cllr.

27

X

Code of conduct complaint from a member of
the public following Annual Parish meeting
May 2021

28

29

30

X

Ongoing investigation

No further action

Complainant advised to put his grievance
to the Chair/Vice Chair in the first
instance.

Complaint against Cllr by member of the public No further action

X

X

Complaint from member of public - Various
incl unauthorised
building/bonfires/road/corruption/protected
trees/caravans

Complainant asked to provide evidence
regarding allegations of corruption or
withdraw

Code of Conduct complaint from member of
public re Cllr

Cllr resigned

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 4 – Complaints Summary Oct 2020-Oct 2021
31

X

Complaint from member of public re Cllr at
Town Council

32

X

Complaint from member of the public re Cllr

No further action

33

X

Complaint from member of the public re
Mayor and Town Clerk

No further action

34

X

Complaint from member of the public re Cllr

No further action for
Cllr but referral to
planning and
enforcement
considered

using position to influence caravan park
owners

Page 193

35

X

Complaint a Parish Councillor threatened the
caretaker of a local playing field

OFFICIAL

Cllr apologised

No further action

APPENDIX 4 – Complaints Summary Oct 2020-Oct 2021

Page 194
OFFICIAL

Agenda Item 10b

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

17 FEBRUARY 2022

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE ON 20 JANUARY 2022

75

Appointment of External Auditors

Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Recommendation
That Council accepts Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led
option for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government and police
bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023.

Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 195

17 February 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND
COMMITTEE)

DATE:

20 JANUARY 2022

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

SCRUTINY

COMMITTEE

(AUDIT

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report sets out proposals for appointing the external auditor to the Council for the
accounts for the five-year period from 2023/24. The report is presented in the context
of local government re-organisation and with the support of the s151 officer of all 8
councils in North Yorkshire.

1.2

In the context of LGR, Public Sector Auditor Appointments (PSAA) has advised that
existing councils should, if they choose to do so, opt-in to the arrangements in case
there is a delay to LGR.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended that Audit Committee


Recommends that Council accepts Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to
opt into the sector-led option for the appointment of external auditors to principal
local government and police bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

Under the Local Government Audit & Accountability Act 2014 (“the Act”), the Council
is required to appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for each financial year. The
Council has three options:


To appoint its own auditor, which requires it to follow the procedure set out in the
Act.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 197
OFFICIAL

20 JANUARY 2022




To act jointly with other authorities to procure an auditor following the procedures
in the Act.
To opt in to the national auditor appointment scheme administered by a body
designated by the Secretary of State as the ‘appointing person’. The body currently
designated for this role is Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA).

3.2

In order to opt in to the national scheme, a council must make a decision at a meeting
of the Full Council.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The principal risks are that the Council:



fails to appoint an auditor in accordance with the requirements and timing specified
in local audit legislation; or
does not achieve value for money in the appointment process.

4.2

These risks are considered best mitigated by opting into the sector-led approach
through PSAA although as we have experienced over the last two years there are
challenges within the audit sector which are impacting on timely delivery.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

Under the Local Government Audit & Accountability Act 2014 (“the Act”), the Council
is required to appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for each financial year.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The current auditor appointment arrangements cover the period up to and including
the audit of the 2022/23 accounts. The Council opted into the ‘appointing person’
national auditor appointment arrangements established by Public Sector Audit
Appointments (PSAA) for the period covering the accounts for 2018/19 to 2022/23.

6.2

PSAA is now undertaking a procurement for the next appointing period, covering audits
for 2023/24 to 2027/28. During Autumn 2021 all local government bodies need to make
important decisions about their external audit arrangements from 2023/24. They have
options to arrange their own procurement and make the appointment themselves or in
conjunction with other bodies, or they can join and take advantage of the national
collective scheme administered by PSAA.

6.3

Given our transition to a new unitary council from 1 April 2023, and with agreement of
the section 151 Officers of all eight councils in North Yorkshire this report concludes
that the sector-wide procurement conducted by PSAA will, on balance, produce better
outcomes and will be less burdensome for the Council than a procurement undertaken
locally because:



collective procurement reduces costs for the sector and for individual authorities
compared to a multiplicity of smaller local procurements;
if it does not use the national appointment arrangements, the Council will need to

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 198
OFFICIAL

20 JANUARY 2022





6.4

establish its own auditor panel with an independent chair and independent
members to oversee a local auditor procurement and ongoing management of an
audit contract;
it is the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, registered auditor
- there are only nine accredited local audit firms, and a local procurement would be
drawing from the same limited supply of auditor resources as PSAA’s national
procurement; and
supporting the sector-led body offers the best way of to ensuring there is a
continuing and sustainable public audit market into the medium and long term.

If the Council wishes to take advantage of the national auditor appointment
arrangements, it is required under the local audit regulations to make the decision at
full Council. The opt-in period starts on 22 September 2021 and closes on 11 March
2022. To opt into the national scheme from 2023/24, the Council needs to return
completed opt-in documents to PSAA by 11 March 2022.
Procurement of External Audit for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28

6.5

As stated in section 3 above, under the Local Government Audit & Accountability Act
2014 (“the Act”), the Council is required to appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for
each financial year.

6.6

In order to opt in to the national scheme, a council must make a decision at a meeting
of the Full Council.

The Appointed Auditor
6.7

The auditor appointed at the end of the procurement process will undertake the
statutory audit of accounts and Best Value assessment of the Council in each financial
year, in accordance with all relevant codes of practice and guidance. The appointed
auditor is also responsible for investigating questions raised by electors and has
powers and responsibilities in relation to Public Interest Reports and statutory
recommendations.

6.8

The auditor must act independently of the Council and the main purpose of the
procurement legislation is to ensure that the appointed auditor is sufficiently qualified
and independent.

6.9

The auditor must be registered to undertake local audits by the Financial Reporting
Council (FRC) employ authorised Key Audit Partners to oversee the work. As the report
below sets out there is a currently a shortage of registered firms and Key Audit
Partners.

6.10

Auditors are regulated by the FRC, which will be replaced by a new body with wider
powers, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA) during the course of
the next audit contract.

6.11

Councils therefore have very limited influence over the nature of the audit services they
are procuring, the nature and quality of which are determined or overseen by third
parties.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 199
OFFICIAL

20 JANUARY 2022

Appointment by the Council itself or jointly
6.12

The Council may elect to appoint its own external auditor under the Act, which would
require the Council to



6.13

Establish an independent auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. The
auditor panel would need to be set up by the Council itself, and the members of the
panel must be wholly or a majority of independent members as defined by the Act.
Independent members for this purpose are independent appointees, excluding
current and former elected members (or officers) and their close families and
friends. This means that elected members will not have a majority input to
assessing bids and choosing to which audit firm to award a contract for the
Council’s external audit.
Manage the contract for its duration, overseen by the Auditor Panel.

Alternatively, the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to establish a
joint auditor panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of
independent appointees. Further legal advice would be required on the exact
constitution of such a panel having regard to the obligations of each Council under the
Act and the Council would need to liaise with other local authorities to assess the
appetite for such an arrangement.
The national auditor appointment scheme

6.14

PSAA is specified as the ‘appointing person’ for principal local government under the
provisions of the Act and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. PSAA
let five-year audit services contracts in 2017 for the first appointing period, covering
audits of the accounts from 2018/19 to 2022/23. It is now undertaking the work needed
to invite eligible bodies to opt in for the next appointing period, from the 2023/24 audit
onwards, and to complete a procurement for audit services. PSAA is a not-for-profit
organisation whose costs are around 4% of the scheme with any surplus distributed
back to scheme members.

6.15

In summary the national opt-in scheme provides the following:









the appointment of a suitably qualified audit firm to conduct audits for each of the
five financial years commencing 1 April 2023;
appointing the same auditor to other opted-in bodies that are involved in formal
collaboration or joint working initiatives to the extent this is possible with other
constraints;
managing the procurement process to ensure both quality and price criteria are
satisfied. PSAA has sought views from the sector to help inform its detailed
procurement strategy;
ensuring suitable independence of the auditors from the bodies they audit and
managing any potential conflicts as they arise during the appointment period;
minimising the scheme management costs and returning any surpluses to scheme
members;
consulting with authorities on auditor appointments, giving the Council the
opportunity to influence which auditor is appointed;
consulting with authorities on the scale of audit fees and ensuring these reflect
scale, complexity, and audit risk; and
ongoing contract and performance management of the contracts once these have
been let.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 200
OFFICIAL

20 JANUARY 2022

Pressures in the current local audit market and delays in issuing opinions
6.16

Much has changed in the local audit market since audit contracts were last awarded in
2017. At that time the audit market was relatively stable, there had been few changes
in audit requirements, and local audit fees had been reducing over a long period. 98%
of those bodies eligible opted into the national scheme and attracted very competitive
bids from audit firms. The resulting audit contracts took effect from 1 April 2018.

6.17

During 2018 a series of financial crises and failures in the private sector year led to
questioning about the role of auditors and the focus and value of their work. Four
independent reviews were commissioned by Government: Sir John Kingman’s review
of the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), the audit regulator; the Competition and
Markets Authority review of the audit market; Sir Donald Brydon’s review of the quality
and effectiveness of audit; and Sir Tony Redmond’s review of local authority financial
reporting and external audit. The recommendations are now under consideration by
Government, with the clear implication that significant reforms will follow. A new audit
regulator (ARGA) is to be established, and arrangements for system leadership in local
audit are to be introduced. Further change will follow as other recommendations are
implemented.

6.18

The Kingman review has led to an urgent drive for the FRC to deliver rapid, measurable
improvements in audit quality. This has created a major pressure for audit firms to
ensure full compliance with regulatory requirements and expectations in every audit
they undertake. By the time firms were conducting 2018/19 local audits during 2019,
the measures they were putting in place to respond to a more focused regulator were
clearly visible. To deliver the necessary improvements in audit quality, firms were
requiring their audit teams to undertake additional work to gain deeper levels of
assurance. However, additional work requires more time, posing a threat to the firms’
ability to complete all their audits by the target date for publication of audited accounts.
Delayed opinions are not the only consequence of the FRC’s drive to improve audit
quality. Additional audit work must also be paid for. As a result, many more fee variation
claims have been needed than in prior years.

6.19

This situation has been accentuated by growing auditor recruitment and retention
challenges, the complexity of local government financial statements and increasing
levels of technical challenges as bodies explore innovative ways of developing new or
enhanced income streams to help fund services for local people. These challenges
have increased in subsequent audit years, with Covid-19 creating further significant
pressure for finance and audit teams.

6.20

None of these problems is unique to local government audit. Similar challenges have
played out in other sectors, where increased fees and disappointing responses to
tender invitations have been experienced during the past two years.
The invitation

6.21

PSAA is now inviting the Council to opt in for the second appointing period, for 2023/24
to 2027/28, along with all other eligible authorities. Based on the level of opt-ins it will
enter into contracts with appropriately qualified audit firms and appoint a suitable firm
to be the Council’s/Authority’s auditor. Details relating to PSAA’s invitation are provided
in an Appendix to this report [Appendix will be the opt-in invitation information issued
by PSAA].

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 201
OFFICIAL

20 JANUARY 2022

The next audit procurement
6.22

The prices submitted by bidders through the procurement will be the key determinant
of the value of audit fees paid by opted-in bodies. PSAA will:





seek to encourage realistic fee levels and to benefit from the economies of scale
associated with procuring on behalf of a significant number of bodies;
continue to pool scheme costs and charge fees to opted-in bodies in accordance
with the published fee scale as amended following consultations with scheme
members and other interested parties (pooling means that everyone within the
scheme will benefit from the prices secured via a competitive procurement process
– a key tenet of the national collective scheme);
continue to minimise its own costs, around 4% of scheme costs, and as a not-forprofit company will return any surplus funds to scheme members. In 2019 it
returned a total £3.5million to relevant bodies and in 2021 a further £5.6million was
returned.

6.23

PSAA will seek to encourage market sustainability in its procurement. Firms will be
able to bid for a variety of differently sized contracts so that they can match their
available resources and risk appetite to the contract for which they bid. They will be
required to meet appropriate quality standards and to reflect realistic market prices in
their tenders, informed by the scale fees and the supporting information provided about
each audit. Where regulatory changes are in train which affect the amount of audit
work suppliers must undertake, firms will be informed as to which developments should
be priced into their bids.

6.24

The scope of a local audit is fixed. It is determined by the Code of Audit Practice
(currently published by the National Audit Office) , the format of the financial statements
(specified by CIPFA/LASAAC) and the application of auditing standards regulated by
the FRC. These factors apply to all local audits irrespective of whether an eligible body
decides to opt into PSAA’s national scheme or chooses to make its own separate
arrangements. The requirements are mandatory; they shape the work auditors
undertake and have a bearing on the actual fees required.

6.25

There are currently nine audit providers eligible to audit local authorities and other
relevant bodies under local audit legislation. This means that a local procurement
exercise would seek tenders from the same firms as the national procurement
exercise, subject to the need to manage any local independence issues. Local firms
cannot be invited to bid. Local procurements must deliver the same audit scope and
requirements as a national procurement, reflecting the auditor’s statutory
responsibilities.
Assessment of options and officer recommendation

6.26

If the Council did not opt in there would be a need to establish an independent auditor
panel to make a stand-alone appointment. The auditor panel would need to be set up
by the Council itself, and the members of the panel must be wholly or a majority of
independent members as defined by the Act. Independent members for this purpose
are independent appointees, excluding current and former elected members (or
officers) and their close families and friends. This means that elected members will not
have a majority input to assessing bids and choosing to which audit firm to award a
contract for the Council’s external audit.

6.27

Alternatively, the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to establish a

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 202
OFFICIAL

20 JANUARY 2022

joint auditor panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of
independent appointees. Further legal advice would be required on the exact
constitution of such a panel having regard to the obligations of each Council under the
Act and the Council would need to liaise with other local authorities to assess the
appetite for such an arrangement.
6.28

These would be more resource-intensive processes to implement for the Council, and
without the bulk buying power of the sector-led procurement would be likely to result
in a more costly service. It would also be more difficult to manage quality and
independence requirements through a local appointment process. The Council is
unable to influence the scope of the audit and the regulatory regime inhibits the
Council’s ability to affect quality.

6.29

The Council and its auditor panel would need to maintain ongoing oversight of the
contract. Local contract management cannot, however, influence the scope or delivery
of an audit.

6.30

The national offer provides the appointment of an independent auditor with limited
administrative cost to the Council. By joining the scheme, the Council would be acting
with other councils to optimise the opportunity to influence the market that a national
procurement provides.

6.31

The recommended approach is therefore to opt in to the national auditor appointment
scheme.

The way forward
6.30

Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 requires that a
decision to opt in must be made by a meeting of the Council (meeting as a whole),
except where the authority is a corporation sole.

6.31

The Council then needs to respond formally to PSAA’s invitation in the form specified
by PSAA by the close of the opt-in period (11 March 2022).

6.32

PSAA will commence the formal procurement process in early February 2022. It
expects to award contracts in August 2022 and will then consult with authorities on the
appointment of auditors so that it can make appointments by the statutory deadline of
31 December 2022.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
The Council’s current audit fees for the year 2021/22 are £57k with additional
charges of £15k for supplementary work agreed via PSAA, including £11.5k for
Housing Benefit audit.
There is a risk that current external audit fee levels could increase when the
current contracts end. It is clear that the scope of audit has increased, requiring

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 203
OFFICIAL

20 JANUARY 2022

more audit work. There are also concerns about capacity and sustainability in the
local audit market.
Opting into a national scheme provides maximum opportunity to ensure fees are
as realistic as possible, while ensuring the quality of audit is maintained, by
entering into a large scale collective procurement arrangement.
If the national scheme is not used some additional resource may be needed to
establish an auditor panel and conduct a local procurement. Until a procurement
exercise is completed it is not possible to state what, if any, additional resource
may be required for audit fees from 2023/24.
b)

Legal
Section 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires a relevant
Council to appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a financial year not later
than 31 December in the preceding year.
Section 8 governs the procedure for appointment including that the Council must
consult and take account of the advice of its auditor panel on the selection and
appointment of a local auditor. Section 8 provides that where a relevant Council is
a local Council operating executive arrangements, the function of appointing a
local auditor to audit its accounts is not the responsibility of an executive of the
Council under those arrangements.
Section 12 makes provision for the failure to appoint a local auditor. The Council
must immediately inform the Secretary of State, who may direct the Council to
appoint the auditor named in the direction or appoint a local auditor on behalf of
the Council.
Section 17 gives the Secretary of State the power to make regulations in relation
to an ‘appointing person’ specified by the Secretary of State. This power has been
exercised in the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 (SI 192) and
this gives the Secretary of State the ability to enable a sector-led body to become
the appointing person. In July 2016 the Secretary of State specified PSAA as the
appointing person.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None arise from the contents of this report.

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Anton Hodge
01653 600666 ext: 43385
anton.hodge@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 204
OFFICIAL

20 JANUARY 2022

Agenda Item 10c

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

17 FEBRUARY 2022

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 03 FEBRUARY 2022

97

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring Q3 2021/22

Considered – the report of the Chief Finance Officer (s. 151)
Recommendation
It is recommended that the content of the report is noted.
Voting record
Carried by general affirmation

Council

Page 205

17 February 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

3 FEBRUARY 2022

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING – Q3
2021/22

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The revenue budget for 2021-22 was approved by Council on 18 February 2021. This
report will present the financial performance against the budget as at 31 December
2021.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended that the Committee:
i)

Notes the contents of the report.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To ensure that budget exceptions are brought to the attention of the Council in order
to approve remedial action where necessary and to inform the financial implications
and impact on future years.

4.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

4.1

The financial position and performance against budget is fundamental to delivery of
the Council’s Plan, achieving value for money and ensuring financial stability.

1

Page 207

5.0

REPORT DETAILS
General Fund (Appendix A) – Revenue Estimates

5.1

The table below sets out the summary Q3 position, with details of forecast variances
included in Appendix A. The overall forecast is a net underspend of £5k

General Fund Account – Q2 2021/22
Net Revenue Budget
Settlement Funding RSG/NDR
Amount to be met from Council Tax
Council Tax
Collection Fund Deficit
Net Revenue Budget (Surplus) / Deficit

5.2

Budget
£000’s
8,595
(4,154)
4,441
(4,483)
42
0

Forecast
£000’s
8,590
(4,154)
4,436
(4,483)
42
-5

Variance
£000’s
-5
0
-5
0
0
-5

The main variances are:
Expenditure
All Employee-related costs. There is a net overspend of £105k on salaries which is
a reduction since Quarter 2, largely down to an increased number of vacancies. An
overspend remains, as previously reported in Streetscene and work continues on the
transformation project which will also look at the overall operating model and
performance. Another area of overspend, also as per Quarter 2, is due to budget
pressures on legal staff costs
There have also been additional costs of cleaning at Ryedale House related to Covid
safety measures, resulting in an overspend of £25k. There are additional costs on the
legal services budget: £30k relates to the use of an agency solicitor for which there
was no original budget and there is also a predicted overspend on the NYCC SLA of
£45k.
The largest area of underspend is Business Transformation which is currently
predicting a figure of £73k. This is due to staff vacancies.
Although predicted to overspend for the full financial year, salary costs are lower than
might be expected at this stage. This largely due to the 2021/22 pay award not yet
being agreed and implemented, and also other costs due to paid at the end of the
year (such as to other organisations).
Many staff are currently taking part if work in preparation for Local Government
Reorganisation (LGR) but at this stage, no impact is shown in the accounts. This may
change if additional staff costs are recognised and/or offset by any funding set aside
or received for this purpose.

2

Page 208

Premises-related. Overall the predicted overspend is £46k. There is a £26k predicted
overspend on repairs at Derwent Lodge and the Traveller site at Malton due to site
conditions. There are also additional costs at the former waste Transfer Site, currently
standing at £19k.
Vehicles and Transport. There is a net overspend predicted of £30k. This is mainly
due to increased costs of repair on ageing refuse vehicles, £42k, plus MOT costs
(delayed from the previous year due to Covid lockdown) of £19k. These are then
partially offset by a reduction in lease costs (£53k), due to the leases on new vehicles
being delayed.
Supplies and Services. There have been additional costs for online meetings, plus
venue hire for Council/committee meetings which is forecast at £44k higher than the
estimate for 2021/22.

Income
Fees and Charges. Overall Income is exceeding budget by £240k. Car parking
income is predicted to exceed the budget by £125k (however the budget was reduced
by £150k in 2021/22 to reflect reduced income anticipated from lockdown, so income
is still slightly down on the previous budget). There is a shortfall on Catering income of
£15k from reduced sales (As the budget was reduced by £10k to reflect reduced
income due to lockdown, the actual shortfall compared to previous year’s budget is
£25k). Recycling income is over-achieving and is likely to be around £129k up at the
end of the year.

Covid-19 impact on Revenue Budget
5.3

Forecasts have been prepared been prepared using the latest information gathered
for the Financial impacts monitoring returns to MHCLG and the position reported here
uses the estimates for the full financial year as at the end of September.

5.4

Council approved additional funding from reserves of £787k to cover COVID costs as
set out in the table below.

5.5

Estimated gross costs for the year at this stage.

Stand-by payments
Reduction in investment income
Additional Vehicle Hire (Streetscene)
Loss of car park income
Loss of catering income
Additional finance resources
Ryecare Income
Procurement savings not achieved
Streetscene (reduction of income, offset by reduction in diesel, etc)
Customer Services Staff
3

Page 209

Latest
Budget Estimate
£000
25
13
150
150
23
45
155
30
10
25
50
50
8
8
50
50
73
92
90
90

COVID Grant Revenue Officers
COVID Marshall
Online meetings
Covid-secure workplace adjustments including PPE
Support for Vol and Community sector incl additional grant allocation
COVID implementation and coordination arrangements

25
12
25
45
25
22
787

25
12
69
45
25
15
744

5.6

The £744k is the estimated annual gross cost for costs to be funded this year.

5.7

At this stage therefore it looks like funding agreed at budget will cover the COVID
costs, although the impact of the Omicron restrictions may still feed through into the
accounts. With the expected further ending of restrictions in the next few weeks, any
impact on next financial year will be lower and will largely be a result of ongoing aftereffects (such as economic impact), rather than costs incurred in dealing with the
outbreak. However there remains the risk of further variants and further effects on
society, the council and the budget.

Capital Programme

5.8

The current approved programme is £12.0m, as reported at Q2.

5.9

Within the capital programme, the main headings are shown below (a detailed
breakdown is shown in Appendix B).

5.10

At Q3 the forecast expenditure in year is £5.9m with expected slippages of £6.1m.

5.11

The majority of the slippage is on two schemes:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

Industrial Units development (£2.3m) all of which is likely to slip into 22/23,
Livestock Market development, of which consultants fees of £100k is
anticipated in 21/22, with the remainder (£1.4m) slipping into future years.
Affordable Housing, with £1.4m likely to slip

5.11

£250k of the IT infrastructure budget was moved forward into 21/22 and although
£191k is currently forecast to slip into 22/23, schemes are now underway, so as we
monitor through the year there may be a need to bring some of this back into 21/22.
With the need to refresh a number of core systems, this area is likely to continue to be
under pressure.

5.13

Riverside View Play Area has now been included in the Forecast. A condition survey
was carried out and all play equipment was condemned.

4

Page 210

CAPITAL PROGRAMME EXPENDITURE

CAPITAL SCHEME

Vehicle Replacement Programme

BUDGET
2021/22

FORECAST Q3
2021/22

VARIANCE

£'000

£'000

£'000

1,788

1,433

-355

Trade Waste Equipment

33

4

-29

Replacement of Garage Inspection pit

50

160

110

Property Condition Survey: Investment Operation Assets

32

0

-32

Property Condition Survey: Leisure Facilities

-4

0

4

216

200

-16

0

26

26

Property Condition Survey: Car Parks

30

30

0

Property Condition Survey: Streetlights

201

186

-15

Property Condition Survey: St Leonard's Wall

80

80

0

Property Condition Survey: Former Transfer Waste Site

65

65

0

Property Condition Survey: Unallocated

42

70

28

35

35

50

0

-50

2,290

8

-2,282

500

321

-179

55

55

0

1,500

100

-1,400

Community Facilities in Pickering

200

200

0

Malton and Norton Infrastructure

350

166

-184

0

0

0

Malton to Pickering Cycle Route

670

609

61

IT Infrastructure Strategy

477

286

-191

Aff HSG Init: Exception Sites Land Purchases

100

0

-100

Aff HSG Init: Railway Tavern

724

366

-358

1,506

625

-881

Aff HSG Init: Property Improvement Loans

75

20

-55

Aff HSG Init: Landlord Improvement Loans/Grants

50

0

-50

Privates Sector Energy Efficiency Grants

40

40

0

Private Sector Renewal - Disabled Facility Grants

496

496

0

Community Housing Fund

289

0

-289

Mortgage Rescue Scheme

21

0

-21

100

300

200

12,026

5,881

-6,145

Property Condition Survey: Milton Rooms
Property Condition Survey: Public Conveniences

Property Condition Survey: Riverside View Play Area
Car Park Action Plan
Industrial Units - New Development
Milton Rooms
Ryedale House - COVID safe adjustments
Livestock Market

Ryedale Hub

Aff HSG Init: Extended Programme Delivery

Flooding Contingency
TOTAL

5

Page 211

FUNDED BY:
External Funding

3,227

2,136

-1,091

Leases/Internal Borrowing

1,508

1,433

-75

Capital Receipts/Debtors
Reserves
Total

125

20

-105

7,166

2,292

-4,874

12,026

5,881

-6,145

6.0

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
Included in the body of the report.

b)

Legal
There are no legal implications identified as part of this report.

c)

Other
None to report, although in any report to Committee and Council, it will be noted
that any proposals which may impact on Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health &
Safety, Climate Change, Environmental, Crime & Disorder will be assessed as
part of the budget process.

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Alison Godfrey
01609 534231
alison.godfrey@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
N/A

6

Page 212

Management Accounts 2021/22
Latest
Approved

Prior Year
Actual

Full Year

Year to Date

Budget

Actual

Variances

Q3
Forecast

Budget

Year to Date

COMMENTS

Forecast
Variance

INCOME
Fees & Charges

Car parking income up £125k against budget (which had been reduced from previous year by £150k to reflect reduced income
anticpated from lockdown). Catering Sales down by £15k

(2,276)

(2,789)

(1,827)

(1,845)

(2,900)

18

(111)

Government Grants

(820)

(174)

(1,126)

(116)

(174)

(1,010)

0

Grants & Contributions Inc

(139)

(128)

(157)

(85)

(128)

(72)

(7,651)

(7,201)

(86)

(161)

(7,201)

75

0

(177)

(55)

(18)

(39)

(55)

21

0 Currently anticipated to be on budget

(1,833)

(1,871)

(1,577)

(1,638)

(2,000)

61

(90)

(117)

(37)

(2,778)

(117)

2,741

0

(12,986)

(12,335)

(4,828)

(6,662)

(12,575)

1,834

(240)

Salaries & Employee Costs

9,136

10,003

6,061

6,449

10,109

(388)

105

Supplies & Services

3,114

2,752

1,821

1,690

2,806

131

Vehicles & Transport

684

570

397

355

601

42

Premises

850

842

584

631

888

(47)

99

101

104

101

101

3

Grants & Contributions

3,276

550

316

399

550

(83)

0

Housing Benefit Payments

7,631

7,082

5,080

4,722

7,082

358

0

Additional Capacity & Provisions

24

(308)

4

(226)

(308)

230

0

Interest Payable

53

55

(12)

56

55

(68)

0

279

335

(191)

(331)

335

140

0

25,146

21,982

14,164

13,846

22,219

318

234

19

42

0

0

42

0

(4,429)

(4,483)

1,074

0

(4,483)

1,074

0 Collection fund losses to be spread over 3 years from 21/22

(3,761)

(2,413)

(4,465)

0

(2,413)

(4,465)

0 Collection fund losses to be spread over 3 years from 21/22

0

0

0

0

0

0

(5,460)

(1,741)

(1,018)

(1,149)

(1,741)

131

1,472

(1,054)

0

0

(1,054)

0

(12,159)

(9,649)

(4,409)

(1,149)

(9,649)

(3,260)

0

1

(2)

4,927

6,035

(5)

(1,108)

(5)

Housing Benefits
Investment Income

Waste Collection & Recycling Inc
Recharges
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME

Page 213

Drainage Board Levies

Capital A/c
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE

0 Other organisation grants received that are not government

(129) Currently £70k up against income budget, however dependant on prices remain stable throughout the year. Volatile market

£194k is the streetscene costs for the bureau waste management operatives. £25k additional cleaning at Ryedale House (Covid).
Offset by vacancies.

53 Online meetings £44k overspend
30

Additional fleet costs (repairs/additional vehicles due to Covid, partially offset by reduction in lease costs due to delays in leasing
new vehicles.

46 Delapidation of premises at Derwent Lodge, Repairs and maintenance at Tara Park Travellers site in Malton
0 No significant over/under spends identified

FINANCING & RESERVES
Collection Fund Surplus
Council Tax

RSG
General Government Grant
Transfers to / from Reserves
TOTAL FINANCING & RESERVES
GF (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT

0
0 Includes Covid funding but aniticipating this will be less than in 20/21
0 Reserves agreed to support COVID and budget gap, plus £30k Election Reserve

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

#

APPENDIX A

NNDR

0 Ryedale share of the collection fund deficit

APPENDIX B
CAPITAL PROGRAMME EXPENDITURE:
CAPITAL SCHEME

BUDGET
2021/22
£'000

Vehicle Replacement Programme
Trade Waste Equipment
Replacement of Garage Inspection pit
Property Condition Survey: Investment Operation Assets
Property Condition Survey: Leisure Facilities

Property Condition Survey: Milton Rooms
Property Condition Survey: Public Conveniences
Property Condition Survey: Car Parks
Property Condition Survey: Streetlights
Property Condition Survey: St Leonard's Wall
Property Condition Survey: Former Transfer Waste Site
Property Condition Survey: Unallocated
Property Condition Survey: Riverside View Play Area
Car Park Action Plan
Industrial Units - New Development
Milton Rooms
Ryedale House - COVID safe adjustments
Livestock Market
Community Facilities in Pickering
Malton and Norton Infrastructure
Ryedale Hub
Malton to Pickering Cycle Route
IT Infrastructure Strategy
Aff HSG Init: Exception Sites Land Purchases
Aff HSG Init: Railway Tavern
Aff HSG Init: Extended Programme Delivery
Aff HSG Init: Property Improvement Loans
Aff HSG Init: Landlord Improvement Loans/Grants
Privates Sector Energy Efficiency Grants
Private Sector Renewal - Disabled Facility Grants
Community Housing Fund
Mortgage Rescue Scheme
Flooding Contingency
TOTAL

Funded by:

Page 214
#

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

1,788
33
50
32
-4
216
0
30
201
80
65
42
50
2,290
500
55
1,500
200
350
0
670
477
100
724
1,506
75
50
40
496
289
21
100
12,026

FORECAST Q3 VARIANCE
2021/22
£'000
£'000
1,433
-355
4
-29
160
110
0
-32
0
4
200
-16
26
26
30
0
186
-15
80
0
65
0
70
28
35
35
0
-50
8
-2,282
321
-179
55
0
100
-1,400
200
0
166
-184
0
0
609
-61
286
-191
0
-100
366
-358
625
-881
20
-55
0
-50
40
0
496
0
0
-289
0
-21
300
200
5,881
-6,145

External Grants and Contributions
Department Communities & Local Government (DCLG)
Energy Efficiency Grant
Homes England Grant
Other Grants
Developers Contributions
Total External Grants and Contributions
Borrowing - Finance Leases
Borrowing - Temp Internal Borrowing
Long Term Debtors/Capital Receipts
Reserves
TOTAL FUNDING OF CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Page 215
#

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

785
40
504
670
1,228
3,227

496
40
7
609
984
2,136

1,348
160
125
7,166

1,348
85
20
2,292

12,026

5,881

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11a

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

17 FEBRUARY 2022

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 03 FEBRUARY 2022

100

Garden Waste Collection Service

Considered – report of the Programme Director People and Resources
Recommendation

(i)

The motion is not supported and that decisions affecting the garden waste service are
informed by the new legislation expected under the Environment Act 2021. This will
be subject to the outcome of the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
(DEFRA) consultations on the consistency of collections which propose that free
garden waste collections are provided by local authorities from 2023/24.

(ii)

There is no change to the current garden waste collection service and the price for
the annual licence remains at £38 in 2022/23 (Option 1).

Voting record
6 For
4 Against
0 Abstentions
Recorded Vote
For
Cllrs J Andrews, Arnold, Burr, Frank, Keal, Potter
Against
Cllrs Docwra, Duncan, Graham, Mackenzie

Council

Page 217

17 February 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES

DATE:

3 FEBRUARY 2022

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME DIRECTOR PEOPLE AND RESOURCES
MARGARET WALLACE

TITLE OF REPORT:

REPORT ON A MOTION REFERRED FROM COUNCIL
GARDEN WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide a response to the motion referred to Policy and
Resources Committee by Council on 13 July 2021 (minute number 38) relating to the
garden waste collection service:
“In order to boost Ryedale’s recycling rate, this Council calls on Policy and Resources
Committee to explore:


scrapping the annual fee for green waste recycling, instead providing this service
to all homes in Ryedale for free;



extending the time period that green waste is collected from homes each year;
and report its recommendations back to Full Council as soon as possible.”

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

The motion is not supported and that decisions affecting the garden waste
service are informed by the new legislation expected under the Environment
Act 2021. This will be subject to the outcome of the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) consultations on the
consistency of collections which propose that free garden waste collections are
provided by local authorities from 2023/24.

(ii)

There is no change to the current garden waste collection service and the price
for the annual licence remains at £38 in 2022/23 (Option 1).

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 219
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

The Environment Bill was given Royal Assent in November 2021 and became the
Environment Act 2021 (“the Act”) which makes provision for targets, plans and policies
for improving the natural environment to deliver the National Waste Management Plan
which includes the 25 Year Environment Plan and the Resources and Waste Strategy
to preserve material resources by minimising waste and promoting resource efficiency.

3.2

The Act has been carried over due to the Covid-19 pandemic which has caused
exceptional pressure on the Parliamentary timetable. There is currently no indication
when the legislative position will change and the government’s formal response to its
second consultation on consistency in household and business recycling (which closed
on 4 July 2021) is still awaited.

3.3.

The Act will require all waste collection authorities in England to arrange for the
separate collection of garden waste for recycling or composting. It is expected that the
outcome of the DEFRA consultations on the consistency of collections will mandate
free garden waste collections from 2023/24.

3.4

Unlike the collection of general household waste, which the Council has a statutory
duty to collect as a waste collection authority, the garden waste collection service is a
discretionary service where waste collection authorities are able to make a charge for
under the Controlled Waste Regulations 2012. If Ryedale District Council stopped
charging for garden waste services, this would add an additional financial pressure on
the Council to deliver a non-statutory service.

3.5

Across North Yorkshire currently 6 out of the 7 district/borough councils charge for the
garden waste collection service (Selby District Council do not charge at present). The
Local Government reorganisation process is now underway and any changes would
need to be reported through this process that may impact on service delivery in the
new unitary.

3.6

From a financial perspective, it is recommended the Council awaits the outcome of the
country-wide mandated changes before implementing any changes at district level as
approving the motion represents growth on the revenue budget for 2022/23.

3.7

The implementation timeline cannot be fully achieved in 2022/23 due to the
requirement to procure additional collection vehicles to be able to service all
households which has a 12-month lead time. There would also be the requirement to
plan new collection rounds, recruit additional staff and communicate and market a new
service.

3.8

The Council has successfully operated a chargeable garden waste collection service
since June 2014 and there are a number of reasons to support continuing with the
current service provision until new legislation comes into effect:
 Increasing year on year participation levels with 47% achieved in 21/22 representing
12,692 properties subscribing to the service
 The significant financial implications (revenue and capital) associated with offering
a free service to all households (detailed in Section 6.9)
 The inability to offer the service to all residents due to requiring new collection
vehicles which would require a lead time of at least 12 months
 The climate change impacts arising from operating additional vehicles and
increasing the carbon footprint

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 220
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

 The Council would not benefit from new burdens funding which is expected to cover
all additional costs of introducing free garden waste collections as part of
implementing any new national policy
 The time required and lack of capacity to implement a significant change to the
existing service for a potentially short period of time running in parallel with Covid
and local government review where strategic plans will be developed for
transformed waste services for the new North Yorkshire Council including garden
waste collections
3.9

Given all these factors the recommendation is to continue with the existing charging
for the garden waste collection service pending new legislation expected under the
Environment Act 2021 to minimise any cost implication to the council tax payer.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are a number of significant risks associated with introducing free garden waste
collections to all households:











the legislative risk associated with making service changes prior to the
introduction of expected new legislation under the Environment Act 2021
the financial risk affecting the Council’s 2022/23 revenue and capital budgets
the service risk arising from the inability to actually implement a garden waste
collection service to the 13,300 households not currently subscribing for a
collection due to a lead time of at least 12 months to procure new collection
vehicles and plan new rounds
the reputational risk associated with any change to current licence charges due
to the inability to offer all residents the service which is highly likely to cause
customer dissatisfaction leading to increased levels of complaints
the significant risk to securing new burdens funding where new legislation is
likely to be introduced as retrospective additional costs or loss of income
cannot be claimed
the reputational risk associated with a change to a key frontline service during
local government reform where strategic plans will be developed for delivery
of all waste services by a new authority from 1 April 2023 taking into account
any changes to legislation
the risk to the local government review process and additional impact to the
new unitary Council when 6 out of the 7 other district and borough Councils in
North Yorkshire also charge for the garden waste collection service
Officers professional recommendation does not support a decision to change
the current garden waste service in 2022/23 on the basis that this would
represent a greater risk to service delivery and performance which outweighs
any potential benefits given the likelihood that new legislation will be introduced
affecting the garden waste service from 2023/24

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Environment Act 2021 received Royal Assent on the 9 November 2021. The
Environment Act (“the Act”) comprises two thematic halves. The first provides a legal
framework for environmental governance. The second makes provision for specific
improvement of the environment, including measures on waste and resource
efficiency, air quality and environmental recall, water, nature and biodiversity, and
conservation covenants.

5.2

The Act makes provision for targets, plans and policies for improving the natural
environment to deliver the National Waste Management Plan for England including the
25 year Environment Plan and the Resources and Waste Strategy which sets out how

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 221
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

material resources will be preserved by minimising waste, promoting resource
efficiency and moving towards a circular economy for England.
5.3

The Act will require all waste collection authorities in England to arrange for the
separate collection of garden waste for recycling or composting. It is expected that the
outcome of the DEFRA consultations on the consistency of collections will mandate
free garden waste collections from 2023/24 therefore any decision fundamentally
affecting the current garden waste collection service will have an impact on the local
government review process and the new unitary authority in 2023

5.4

The recommendations support the Council’s priorities to deliver sustainability into the
future by reducing our carbon footprint and increasing recycling rates in line with
emerging national policy; and being an innovative and enterprising Council securing
value for money by maintaining strong finances into the future by delivering customerfocussed and cost-effective core services.

6.0

REPORT
Background

6.1

At the Council meeting on 13 July 2021 a motion was referred to the Policy and
Resources Committee (minute number 38). The motion reads as follows:
“In order to boost Ryedale’s recycling rate, this Council calls on Policy and Resources
Committee to explore:



scrapping the annual fee for green waste recycling, instead providing this service
to all homes in Ryedale for free;
extending the time period that green waste is collected from homes each year;
and report its recommendations back to Full Council as soon as possible.”

6.2

Members are aware that in July 2021 DEFRA consulted on a series of proposals on
consistency of collections which included a proposal to introduce free garden waste
collections by local authorities from 2023/24 and indicated that any increase costs will
be covered by new burdens funding.

6.3

The Environment Act 2021 received Royal Assent on the 9 November 2021 and will
require all waste collection authorities in England to arrange for the separate collection
of garden waste for recycling or composting. It is expected that the outcome of the
DEFRA consultations on the consistency of collections will mandate free garden waste
collections from 2023/24.

6.4

In February 2013 the Council resolved not to collect garden waste in the winter period
December, January and February to deliver savings as part of the 2013/14 Financial
Strategy. In October 2013 the Council made the decision to introduce charges for the
garden waste service from 1 June 2014 to generate additional income to offset the
costs of other waste and recycling services and to safeguard the continued provision
of other essential council services as government funding cuts affected the Council’s
revenue budget. Links to both of these reports are included under background papers.

6.5

Across North Yorkshire currently 6 out of the 7 district and borough councils charge for
the garden waste collection service (Selby District Council do not charge at present).
If Ryedale District Council stopped charging for garden waste this would be an
additional impact on the local government review process and for the new unitary
council.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 222
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

Garden Waste Service – Options Appraisal
6.6

When undertaking the options appraisals, it was identified that it should aim to boost
Ryedale’s recycling rates


scrapping the annual fee for green waste recycling, instead providing this
service to all homes in Ryedale for free; and extending the time period that
green waste is collected from homes

A series of options appraisals have been undertaken considering the legislative,
financial, political, economic, social, environmental and technological implications
associated with any changes to the current garden waste service.
6.7

The options appraisals have considered the implications of 5 potential scenarios for
the garden waste collection service:
Option 1
No changes to the current service
Continue with the current residents subscription garden waste collection service with
an annual licence charge of £38 pending any changes in national legislation under the
Environment Act 2021 following the outcome from the DEFRA consultations.
This is the recommended option for the garden waste service as outlined in 3.0.
Option 2
Reduce the price
Continue with the current residents subscriptions garden waste collection service at a
reduced charge for an annual licence to operate the service on a cost recovery basis
Option 3
Stop charging
Do not charge the properties currently subscribing to the garden waste collection
service.
Options 2 and 3 are based on existing service demand for garden waste
collections (12,350 properties subscribe to the service). There is not the
capacity to extend the existing service to all 26,000 properties therefore these
options does not offer an equitable service for all residents.
Options 2 and 3 cannot be implemented for all properties from 1 April 2022.
Option 4
Operate the current service for 12 months
Operate the garden waste collection service all year round i.e. with no winter
closedown from 2022/23
There is an additional cost associated with operating the current garden waste
collections in December, January and February which would have environmental
impacts. A carbon impacts assessment based on the additional miles travelled and
fuel consumption compared with the forecast 0.5% increase in recycling illustrates that
the emissions for the 3 month period work out at 21.12 tonnes CO2e which is the
equivalent of removing 79,800 car miles transporting garden waste to household waste
recycling centres over the 3 month period – anecdotally it is extremely unlikely that
residents are incurring this level of mileage to dispose of their garden waste and highly
likely that the garden waste produced in winter is actually recycled by either
composting at home or in the brown wheeled bin until collection resume in March.
Option 4 therefore does not deliver additional environmental benefits.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 223
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

Option 5
Plan to introduce free garden waste collections for all properties
Option 5 cannot be implemented from 1 April 2022 due to a lead time of at least 12
months to procure vehicles and the requirement to introduce a new operating model
including planning new rounds and is therefore not a viable option.
IMPACT ASSESSMENT
6.9

An impact assessment to show the financial implications for these options together
with the advantages and disadvantages, based on 2021/22 budget figures, is
summarised below in Table 1 and a budget comparison is provided in Appendix 1:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 224
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

Table 1 – Options Appraisal: Impact Assessment
Option

1. No changes to the
current garden waste
collection service

Forecast
Revenue
Impact
£

Forecast
Capital
Impact
£

0

0

Advantages

Minimal budget impact in
22/23 continuing with an
annual licence charge of £38

Disadvantages

Does not provide
the residents with a
free garden waste
service

Garden waste is a
discretionally service and local
authorities do not have a
statutory duty to run.
The service provides additional
services to residents.
New Environment Act 2021
has received Royal Ascent and
will be implemented in 2023,
continuing with the current
service would allow the
Council to consider the
implications, receive
government guidance and
understand any financial
implication. This would also
align with any introduction of a
new Unitary authority
operational model for waste
services
Maintaining the current
subscription service does not
cause confusion to residents at
a time of significant change
across North Yorkshire due to
LGR

2. Reduce the price of
the annual licence
to operate the
service on a fullcost recovery
basis

121,420

0

Residents who pay a current
subscription would get a
service at a reduced cost

This would
represent growth
compared to the
21/22 revenue
budget
This creates
equality impacts as
cannot offer the
service to all
residents

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 225
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

3. Stop charging now
for the properties
currently
subscribing to the
garden
waste
collection service

469,300

4. Operate the
existing garden
waste service all
year round ie no
winter closedown
(see note 1)

36,000

0

Residents who pay a current This
represents
subscription would receive a growth compared to
free service
the 21/22 revenue
budget
This creates
equality impacts as
cannot offer the
service to all
residents

0

Residents would receive an
all-year service

This represents
additional growth to
the 21/22 revenue
budget for
additional staff and
vehicles to operate
in Dec, Jan and
Feb
This creates
environmental
impacts ie
increased mileage
and fuel
consumption

5. Plan to introduce
free garden waste
collections for all
properties

981,550

865,350

A free service for all residents

Garden waste is a
non-statutory
service for local
authorities. If
implemented
residents who do
not have a garden
or living in flats
would subsidise the
service through
council tax
Additional staff,
vehicles and
equipment would
be required for this
option
It is not possible to
implement this
option before
2022/23
Consideration
would need to be
given to LGR

Note 1: the DEFRA consultation proposes the garden waste service is operated for the growing season
which is defined as April to November (35 weeks a year)

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 226
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

6.10

The income generated from the sale of licences for the garden waste collection service
offsets the costs of providing other waste and recycling services as part of the revenue
budget. As all options except Option 1 involve a change to the current service there
are additional costs which would represent growth to the 2022/23 revenue budget
position.

6.11

The Council is also facing broader financial challenges that have been intensified by
the impact of Covid-19 on its income generating activities. It would be recommended
to keep the existing service operational delivery model to ensure that we mitigate any
additional financial risk to the Council.

6.12

It is also important to note two key issues associated Options 2,3 and 5. Firstly, in
order to provide the garden waste service to all households in Ryedale additional
vehicles, resources and equipment would be required. Due to the current lead times
it would not be possible to procure additional vehicles to extend the garden waste
service from 1 April 2022. Secondly, a decision to introduce free garden waste
collections and incur additional costs ahead of any national changes to policy risks the
Council’s ability to claim new burdens funding.
Garden Waste Service Profile

6.13

The 2021/22 budget for the garden waste service is summarised below in Table 1:
Table 2: Garden Waste Cost Centre 2021/22 Original Budget
GARDEN WASTE SERVICE
INCOME
Income from licence sales
Income from garden waste
incentive

Budget 21/22 Comments
-469,300 Based on sales of 12,350 @ £38
-178,470 Based on 5,680 forecast tonnage
collected which is subject to
variances depending on the
weather
-647,770

TOTAL INCOME
EXPENDITURE
Disposal costs
Vehicle operating costs

134,080 Based on tonnage collected
117,100 Based on 2 operational vehicles
including all running costs and
includes an in year adjustment of
£60k to reflect lease costs
172,510 2 drivers, 4 loaders
102,660 Management and support costs
and central recharges, printing,
stationery,
depreciation
and
equipment
466,350 ,
-121,420 The garden waste budgeted
surplus contributes to the net
costs of the waste and
recycling services budget. This
was £1,615,890 in 2021/22

Staff costs
Other costs

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
Surplus

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 227
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

GARDEN WASTE EXPENDITURE
6.14

The costs of the current service are based on 2 operational vehicles, 2 drivers and 4
operatives. All garden waste is taken to an on-farm site for composting and there is a
disposal cost per tonne for this service. Other costs include equipment for replacement
wheeled bins, printing and stationery for marketing the annual renewal process and
internal management and support recharges including customer services, postages,
computer and depreciation for vehicles.
GARDEN WASTE INCOME

6.15

The budget in 2021/22 for the garden waste service includes income totalling £647,770
from the sale of licences and the garden waste incentive payment which is paid by
North Yorkshire County Council for every tonne of garden waste collected which is
composted which in turn saves disposal costs.

6.16

The annual garden waste licence fee has not been increased from £38 since 1 April
2017. The graph below demonstrates there has been a year on year increase in the
number of licences sold over the past 5 years providing evidence to support the
recommendation to continue with the annual charge as residents are willing to pay for
this service which enables them to recycle their garden waste.
Table 3: Annual licence sales for the period 2017/18 to 2021/22:

Annual licence sales for the period 2017/18 to
2021/22:
13000

12346
+5.8%

Licence Sales

12500
12000
11500

11590
+4.18%

11669
+0.68%

2018/19

2019/20

12692
+2.8%

11125

11000
10500
10000
2017/18

2020/21

2021/22

6.17

When the charges were introduced there was a reduction in the level of tonnages
collected however the drop did not mirror participation rates. Prior to introducing
charges the annual tonnages were in the region of 7,000 tonnes which has reduced by
29% to an average of 5,000 tonnes a year – weather conditions are a key factor each
year affecting tonnages as wetter weather yields increased tonnages compared to dry
weather conditions.

6.18

Interestingly, over the past two years garden waste recycling performance has
increased reflected in increased licence sales, a key factor is likely to have been due
to the covid-19 lockdowns where residents spent more time in their gardens which is
highlighted in the graph below:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 228
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

Table 4: Total tonnes of garden waste collected for the period 2014/15 to 2020/21:

Tonnes

Total tonnes of garden waste collected for the
period 2014/15 to 2020/21:
5,800
5,600
5,400
5,200
5,000
4,800
4,600
4,400

5,309
5,026

5,096

4,827

2014/15

6.19

5,589

5,567

2015/16

4,802

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

The Council’s overall recycling performance split between dry recycling and
composting is provided in the graph which has been consistent from 2014/15,
illustrating the impact on the overall recycling performance was marginal following the
introduction of charges for garden waste:
Table 5: The Council’s Overall Recycling Performance 2013/14 to 2020/21

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 229
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
There are potentially significant revenue and capital implications associated with
a decision to change the way the current garden waste service operates which are
detailed in section 6.9 of the main body of the report, summarised as follows:
Revenue:
Growth ranging from £121k to £981k as a consequence of changing the pricing
and extending the service to all households. In addition operating the existing
service all year round would represent additional growth of £36k.
Capital:
Planning to implement a garden waste collection service to all households requires
a capital investment of £865k to purchase additional vehicles, in-cab technology
and wheeled bins.
There are also additional potential financial implications for the Council where any
additional costs incurred ahead of new legislation cannot be retrospectively
applied for as new burdens funding.

b) Legal
There are potential legal impacts from implementing any changes to the current
garden waste service ahead of new legislation and guidance expected from the
Environment Act 2021 once the outcomes from the DEFRA consultations during
2021 are announced.
There are also LGR implications as any decision to fundamentally change the
current garden waste collection service could not be implemented until 2023/24
which would be a consideration for the new unitary council.
There are also impacts on the local government reform process and for developing
a new waste strategy for the new unitary authority given that 6 out of 7 district and
borough councils in North Yorkshire also currently charge for the garden waste
collection service.
c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and
Climate Change, Crime & Disorder)
Additional vehicles would be required to enable the garden waste collection
service to extend to all households across the district which increases the carbon
footprint and therefore represents an environmental impact as introducing more
vehicles onto the fleet will incur additional mileage which would need to be offset
by the benefit of additional recycling.
Additional staff would also be required to extend the garden waste collection
service and there may be difficulties recruiting due to current national driver
shortages.
There are significant equality impacts for residents to consider by changing the
pricing due to the inability to offer the garden waste collection service to all
households until new vehicles could be brought into service which has an
expected lead time of at least 12 months.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 230
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

8.0

NEXT STEPS

8.1

The 2022/23 budget will be revised to reflect any changes to the current garden waste
collection service.

Margaret Wallace
Programme Director People and Resources
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Beckie Bennett, Head of Waste and Environment
01653 600666 ext: 43483
beckie.bennett@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Full Council 26 February 2013 Minute 209: Financial Strategy 2013/14 included stopping
garden waste collections in December, January and February.
Full Council Resolution Stopping Garden Waste Colls Dec, Jan and Feb
Full Council 31 October 2014 Minute 29: Approval of charging for garden waste
Full Council Resolution Charging for Garden Waste 31Oct13
Waste Management Plan for England
A Green Future: Our 25 Year Plan to Improve the Environment
25-year-environment-plan.pdf
Our Waste, Our Resources: A Strategy for England
resources-waste-strategy-dec-2018.pdf

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 231
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

APPENDIX 1
SUMMARY OF GARDEN WASTE BUDGET IMPACTS FOR EACH OPTION
GARDEN
WASTE
SERVICE

OPTION 1

OPTION 2

OPTION 3

OPTION 4

OPTION 5

Reduce the
price to £28
to achieve
full cost
recovery
from
existing
customer
base
NET
IMPACT ON
21/22
BUDGET

Stop
charging
existing
customers

Continue with
the existing
service and
operate for 12
months

Plan to
introduce free
garden waste
collections
for all
properties

NET
IMPACT ON
21/22
BUDGET

NET IMPACT
ON 21/22
BUDGET

GROWTH ON
REVENUE
BUDGET

-469,300

-347,880

0

-469,300

469,300

-178,470

-178,470

-178,470

-182,220

178,470

-647,770

-526,350

-178,470

-651,520

647,770

Disposal costs

134,080

134,080

134,080

136,980

52,000

Vehicle operating
costs

117,100

117,100

117,100

125,150

59,310

Staff costs

172,510

172,510

172,510

201,310

215,000

Other costs
TOTAL
EXPENDITURE

102,660

102,660

102,660

102,660

7,470

526,350

526,350

526,350

566,100

333,780

-121,420

0

347,880

-85,420

981,550

0

121,420

469,300

36,000

981,550

REVENUE
BUDGET
COMPARISON
(21/22)

INCOME
Income
from
licence sales
Income
from
garden
waste
incentive
TOTAL INCOME

No changes
to the current
service based
on 21/22
budget

21/22
BUDGET

EXPENDITURE

(Surplus)/Deficit

NET IMPACT ON
BUDGET

plus capital
£865,350

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 232
OFFICIAL

3 FEBRUARY 2022

Agenda Item 11b

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

17 FEBRUARY 2022

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 03 FEBRUARY 2022

101

Flood Management – Contribution Towards Yorkshire Water Permanent
Solution for Norton

Considered – report of the Head of Waste and Environment
Recommendation
That the motion is amended as follows:
To delete:
“We call on Council to commit up to £2.5 million of reserves to contribute to partnership
funding a permanent pumping solution for Norton to prevent surface water and sewer
flooding occurring when water levels in the River Derwent are high.”
And replace with:
“It is recommended that the Council agrees a contribution towards the Yorkshire Water
Permanent Scheme for Norton of 20% of the total scheme costs to a maximum of £152,000
(based on total costs of £760,000). This funding will be allocated within the capital budget for
2022/23.”

Voting record
Carried by general affirmation

Council

Page 233

17 February 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES

DATE:

3 FEBRUARY 2022

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF WASTE AND ENVIRONMENT
BECKIE BENNETT

TITLE OF REPORT:

REPORT ON A MOTION REFERRED FROM COUNCIL
FLOOD MANAGEMENT - CONTRIBUTION TOWARDS
YORKSHIRE WATER PERMANENT SOLUTION FOR
NORTON

WARDS AFFECTED:

NORTON

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide a response to a motion referred to Policy and
Resources Committee by Council on 18 February 2021 (minute number 77) relating to
the Council committing funding in partnership towards permanent solutions to reduce
flood risk. The funding extract from the motion reads as follows:
We call on Council to commit up to £2.5 million of reserves to contribute to partnership
funding a permanent pumping solution for Norton to prevent surface water and sewer
flooding occurring when water levels in the River Derwent are high.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended that the motion is amended as follows:
(i)

To delete:
We call on Council to commit up to £2.5 million of reserves to contribute to
partnership funding a permanent pumping solution for Norton to prevent surface
water and sewer flooding occurring when water levels in the River Derwent are
high.
And replace with:
It is recommended that the Council agrees a contribution towards the Yorkshire
Water Permanent Scheme for Norton of 20% of the total scheme costs to a
maximum of £152,000 (based on total costs of £760,000). This funding will be
allocated within the capital budget for 2022/23.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 235

3 FEBRUARY 2022

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To enable the Council to support a permanent solution being delivered by Yorkshire
Water for the community of Norton which mitigates against flood risk affecting 517
properties which is a recommendation agreed at the Flood Management Working Party
on 9 December 2021.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There is a risk that Yorkshire Water do not progress with the implementation of a
permanent solution for Norton if there is a funding shortfall and a financial contribution
from the Council will seek to mitigate this risk.

4.2

There are no significant risks in considering the recommendation although without
permanent solutions 517 properties in Norton are at risk of recurring flooding impacts
and investing in reducing flood risk will save money for the Council and partners in the
long term.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The recommendations support the Council Plan priorities Our Environment – a
sustainable, safe and clean place to live; to reduce flooding risk by investing in flood
alleviation measures and working with partners to provide an emergency response.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

A motion to Council on 18 February 2021 (Minute 77) was referred to Policy and
Resources Committee under Council Procedure Rule 11.4, which was referred to the
Flood Management Working Party on 29 June 2021:
Major flood defences in Malton, Norton and Old Malton protect hundreds of properties
adjacent to the River Derwent, but in January 2021 Norton on Derwent has yet again
been affected by serious and significant flooding.
In 2000 this Council agreed to abandon badly needed major improvements to
permanent flood protection for Norton when agreeing to NYCC plans to protect Malton
and Old Malton. Recent events illustrate that this was an unsound decision.
We call on Council to commit up to £2.5 million of reserves to contribute to partnership
funding a permanent pumping solution for Norton to prevent surface water and sewer
flooding occurring when water levels in the River Derwent are high.
The ARUP report of 2015 identified and costed the work required to protect homes and
businesses in Norton and must now need to be acted on.
We further call on Council to request that officers enter into immediate talks with
Yorkshire Water, the Environment Agency and NYCC to seek funding contributions
towards the scheme that will be required to build a permanent pumping solution.
Following recent events in Norton, when flood waters were only kept out of homes and
businesses by 24/7 pumping, and property was yet again surrounded by raw sewage
– this matter to be considered urgent and requiring immediate action.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 236

3 FEBRUARY 2022

6.2

On 16 September, Yorkshire Water representatives attended the Flood Management
Working Party to provide an update on their future actions and investment plans.

6.3

Following the significant flooding event which occurred in December 2020 and
January/February 2021, Yorkshire Water have commissioned an area study to survey
the drainage systems in the Castlegate area of Malton and the area around Church
Street, Welham Road and St Nicholas Street in Norton. The outcome from this study
with potential options for future solutions is expected by Spring 2022.

6.4

In addition to this drainage study, Yorkshire Water have also identified a permanent
solution for Norton to improve the response to flooding affecting 517 properties in this
area and are progressing with this scheme through their internal governance
processes.

6.5

The Yorkshire Water Scheme costs for Norton are estimated at £760,000 which is
based on a full worst case scenario. The scheme involves installing a permanent pump
which will automatically operate when water levels reach a trigger level instead of
requiring the deployment of portable pumps when flooding affects the area, therefore
providing improved protection to 517 properties in Norton which are at risk of flooding.

6.6

Yorkshire Water are now progressing with more detailed investigation and design work
to understand the feasibility of the scheme and produce more accurate scheme costs.

6.7

At the Flood Management Working Party on 9 December 2021 a recommendation to
Policy and Resources Committee was agreed which was based on a previous Council
decision to contribute towards the Malton, Norton and Old Malton flood alleviation
scheme as follows:
It is recommended that the Council agrees a contribution towards the Yorkshire Water
Permanent Scheme for Norton of 20% of the total scheme costs to a maximum of
£152,000 (based on total costs of £760,000). This contribution to be funded from the
flooding contingency capital budget.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
Subject to approval, the maximum contribution of £152,000 (20% of the total
scheme cost of £760,000) will be funded from the capital budget for 2022/23.
Investment in permanent flood alleviation solutions will also reduce the Council’s
future costs associated with the emergency response to flooding.

b)

Legal
There are no significant legal issues in considering this report.

c)

Other
There are no significant other issues in considering this report.

Beckie Bennett
Head of Waste and Environment
Author:

Beckie Bennett, Head of Waste and Environment
Tel No: 01653 600666 ext: 43476 E-Mail: beckie.bennett@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers: Motion to Council 18 February 2021 – Minute 77
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 237

3 FEBRUARY 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

17 FEBRUARY 2022

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (S151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

COVID-19 ADDITIONAL RELIEF FUNDING (CARF) SCHEME

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To inform Full Council of the proposed Covid-19 Additional Relief Funding (CARF)
scheme.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

Full Council supports the proposed Covid-19 Additional Relief Funding (CARF)
scheme.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Central Government has provided Ryedale District Council with funding of £1,090,079
to assist those ratepayers whose businesses have been (and continue to be) affected
by the Covid-19 pandemic but are ineligible for existing support linked to business
rates.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Businesses within Ryedale who have been affected by the Covid-19 pandemic would
continue to suffer.

4.2

Reputational damage to Ryedale District Council if this funding was not to be
distributed to the businesses who it is aimed at supporting.

FULL COUNCIL

17 FEBRUARY 2022

Page 239

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

Our economy: harnessing Ryedale’s unique economy to deliver, growth, homes
and jobs – Open for business. We will work with Government, industry and
businesses to bring new investment to the area, expanding the commercial space on
offer within the district in a sustainable way. We will develop the council’s role in
providing workshop, incubator and scale-up space for all small start-up businesses and
facilitate the expansion of business parks.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The purpose of the Covid-19 Additional Relief Funding (CARF) scheme is to provide
assistance where the business property does not qualify for other relief.

6.2

Over the past few years, a number of schemes (such as Expanded Retail Discount)
have been led by Central Government but without any specific legislative changes.

6.3

Ryedale District Council is keen to support such initiatives especially where they are
designed to help local businesses and will look to maximise the reliefs given as well as
maximise any grants received.

6.4

In view of this, Ryedale District Council has decided that where a ratepayers meets all
of the relevant criteria, relief will be awarded at a maximum 15% of the 2021/22 liability
after any other reliefs and reductions have been applied. The relief awarded may
increase or decrease in future if the Rateable Value (RV) is increased or decreased
retrospectively.

6.5

The criteria in the Government’s guidance for the Covid-19 Additional Relief Funding
(CARF) scheme is as follows:6.5.1 The ratepayer is not eligible (or would be eligible) for the Expanded Retail
Discount (covering Retail, Hospitality and Leisure), the Nursery Discount or the Airport
and Grounds Operations Support Scheme (AGOSS);
6.5.2 The ratepayer is not entitled to either Small Business Rate Relief or Rural Rate
Relief granted at 100%;
6.5.3 The rate payer is not entitled to mandatory relief (80%) and discretionary (top up)
of 20% which is funded through business rates retention;
6.5.4 The hereditament is treated as occupied by the council;
6.5.5 The ratepayer confirms that they have been adversely affected by the pandemic
and been unable to adequately adapt to that impact and
6.5.6 The ratepayer is not subject to Subsidy Controls

6.6

Eligible businesses have been identified from the current database and all will have
the 15% discount relief applied to the 2021/2022 account.

FULL COUNCIL

17 FEBRUARY 2022

Page 240

6.7

Where adding the 15% relief to the 2021/2022 account places the Business Rates
account into credit, before issuing any refund all businesses will be contacted
requesting they confirm the following details;(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Has your business been affected by Covid?
Business was operational during 2021/2022
Subsidy Control?
Do you want to opt out of the scheme?

6.8

This administration process of the Covid-19 Additional Relief Funding (CARF) scheme
has been discussed and approved by our Internal Auditors - Veritau. In all cases,
Ryedale District Council will notify ratepayers of all decisions made.

6.9

Where a ratepayer falsely applies for any relief, or where the ratepayer provides false
information, makes false representation, or deliberately withholds information in order
to gain relief, the relief will be removed and prosecutions will be considered under the
Fraud Act 2006.

6.10

Members of the Policy & Resources Committee were informed at the meeting held on
3 February 2022 that a report on the Covid-19 Additional Relief Funding (CARF)
scheme would be brought directly to Full Council due to the tight timescales for
delivering this scheme.

6.11

Following approval from Full Council the Covid-19 Additional Relief Funding (CARF)
scheme will be implemented.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications would have to be considered if the matter was to be looked
into in further detail:

b)
c)
d)

e)

f)
g)
h)
i)

a) Financial – As Central Government leads this initiative funding will be provided
through section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003. Ryedale District
Council has been allocated £1,090,079 for this scheme. The total amount of
relief awarded may exceed the funding allocated to Ryedale District Council, if
as a result of any future Rateable Value (RV) amendments. Any overspend
would be shared 50/50 by Ryedale District Council and Central Government.
Legal – There are no Legal implications to this paper.
Other Equalities – The aim of the Covid-19 Additional Relief Funding (CARF) scheme is
to support those businesses who do not receive any mandatory relief and have
been impacted as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.
Staffing – The administration of the Covid-19 Additional Relief Funding (CARF)
scheme will have an impact on staffing resource within the Revenues & Benefits
team due to the additional workload the scheme will bring.
Planning – N/A
Health & Safety – N/A
Environmental – N/A
Crime & Disorder – N/A

FULL COUNCIL

17 FEBRUARY 2022

Page 241

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (S151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Marcus Lee, Revenues & Benefits Manager
01653 600666 ext: 43210
marcus.lee@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF): local authority guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-additional-relief-fund-carf-localauthority-guidance
Draft Ryedale DC COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) Policy

FULL COUNCIL

17 FEBRUARY 2022

Page 242

COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund
(CARF): Local Authority Guidance

December 2021
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities

Page 243

© Crown copyright, 2021
Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.
You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium,
under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence visit
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/
This document/publication is also available on our website at www.gov.uk/dluhc
If you have any enquiries regarding this document/publication, complete the form at
http://forms.communities.gov.uk/ or write to us at:
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
Fry Building
2 Marsham Street
London
SW1P 4DF
Telephone: 030 3444 0000
For all our latest news and updates follow us on Twitter: https://twitter.com/luhc
December 2021

Page 244

Contents
About this guidance .................................................................................................... 4
Introduction ................................................................................................................ 4
The COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) .......................................................... 5
How will the relief be provided? .............................................................................. 5
Which properties will benefit from relief? ................................................................ 6
How much relief will be available? .......................................................................... 6
Recalculation of relief ............................................................................................. 7
Subsidy Control ...................................................................................................... 7
Sample paragraph to include in CARF applications. .......................................... 9
New Burdens ........................................................................................................ 10
Annexes A-F: CARF Allocation methodology, categories and definitions ............. 11
Annex A: COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Allocation methodology .................... 11
Annex B: Split of the Transport and Storage SIC1 Category ................................ 14
Annex C: Mapping of SIC to Special Category Code............................................ 15
Annex D: Definition of Retail, Hospitality and Leisure properties .......................... 29
Annex E: Definition of airports .............................................................................. 33
Annex F: Definition of network supplying utilities and associated properties ........ 34

Page 245

About this guidance
1. This guidance is intended to support local authorities in
administering the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF). This guidance
applies to England only.
2. This guidance sets out the scope of CARF and the criteria which local
authorities should have regard to when determining awards from the
fund. The guidance does not replace existing legislation.
3. Enquiries on this measure should be addressed to: ndr@communities.gov.uk

Introduction
4. COVID-19 has presented a significant and unprecedented challenge for
businesses. Since the start of the pandemic the Government’s response to
support businesses has been of a similarly unprecedented scale. The
Government has provided over £400 billion of direct support to the economy
during this financial year and last, which has helped to safeguard jobs,
businesses and public services in every region and nation of the UK through
the pandemic. The Government’s support has included making £16 billion
available to provide business rates relief for retail, hospitality and leisure
properties, given the direct impact of COVID-19 and the Government’s
interventions on businesses in these sectors.
5. On 25 March the Government announced a new COVID-19 Additional Relief
Fund (CARF) of £1.5 billion. The fund will be available to support
those businesses affected by the pandemic but that are ineligible for existing
support linked to business rates.
6. The £1.5 billion will be allocated to local authorities based upon the estimated
rateable value in each local authority rating list which falls within the scope of
the fund, weighted for the Gross Value Added (GVA) impacts of COVID-19
per sector. An explanation of the allocation methodology, categories and
definitions is at Annex A to F. Individual local authority allocations are
published alongside this guidance.
7. This document provides guidance to authorities about the operation and
delivery of the policy.

Page 246

The COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund
(CARF)
How will the relief be provided?
8. The Government is not changing the legislation relating to the business rates
reliefs available to properties. Instead, the Government will, in line
with the eligibility criteria set out in this guidance, reimburse local
authorities where relief is granted using discretionary relief powers under
section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988. It will be for individual
billing authorities to adopt a local scheme and determine in each individual
case whether, having regard to this guidance and their own local scheme, to
grant relief under section 47. The relief is available to reduce chargeable
amounts in respect of 2021/22.
9. Central government will fully reimburse local authorities for discretionary
relief awards which comply with this guidance up to the maximum level of the
allocations. Because billing authorities have completed their NNDR1s for
2021/22 already, payments to major precepting authorities will be unaffected
by the award of the relief. Therefore, within the year billing authorities only will
be provided with “on account” section 31 payments covering the full amount of
relief awarded to ensure that their cashflow is not
affected.
10. After the end of the year, billing authorities will also be asked to provide
outturn data on the actual total cost of providing the relief via the NNDR3
forms for 2021/22. The loss of income resulting from the relief for each billing
authority and major precepting authority will be reconciled against the onaccount payments made over the course of the year and any difference will
be paid or recovered.
11. The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities will undertake a
regular DELTA collection exercise. This will be used to monitor
implementation progress. Authorities should therefore ensure they put in
place arrangements to support this data collection process. Billing authorities
should ensure that they are able to monitor and report the take-up of the
scheme at Parliamentary constituency level and local authority level, and by
the Special Category code of the hereditaments.

Page 247

Which properties will benefit from relief?
12. Billing authorities will be responsible for designing the discretionary relief
schemes that are to operate in their areas. However, in developing and
implementing their schemes local authorities must, if they are funding the
relief from the section 31 grant:
a. not award relief to ratepayers who for the same period of the relief
either are or would have been eligible for the Extended Retail Discount
(covering Retail, Hospitality and Leisure), the Nursery Discount or the
Airport and Ground Operations Support Scheme (AGOSS),
b. not award relief to a hereditament for a period when it is unoccupied
(other than hereditaments which have become closed temporarily due
to the government’s advice on COVID-19, which should be treated as
occupied for the purposes of this relief), and
c. direct their support towards ratepayers who have been adversely
affected by the pandemic and have been unable to adequately adapt to
that impact.
13. In line with the legal restrictions in section 47(8A) of the Local Government
Finance Act 1988, billing authorities may not grant the discount to
themselves, certain precepting authorities (e.g. a parish or county council) or
a functional body, within the meaning of the Greater London Authority Act
1999.

How much relief will be available?
14. It will be for local authorities to determine the level of relief for individual
hereditaments.
15. The relief should be applied after mandatory reliefs and other discretionary
reliefs funded by section 31 grants have been applied, excluding those where
billing authorities have provided relief using their wider discretionary relief
powers introduced by the Localism Act 2011 which are not funded by section
31 grants. As required in the NNDR3 guidance notes, the former categories of
discretionary relief prior to the Localism Act should be applied first in the
sequence of discretionary reliefs and, therefore, before any relief provided
under the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF). Billing authorities may
wish to use their discretionary powers to offer further discounts outside this
scheme. However, where an authority applies a locally funded relief, this must
be applied after CARF.

Page 248

Recalculation of relief
16. Depending upon how local authorities choose to award CARF, the amount of
relief awarded may need to be recalculated in the event of a change of
circumstances. This could include, for example, a backdated change to the
rateable value or the hereditament. This change of circumstances could arise
during the year in question or during a later year.
17. Under regulations made under section 47 of the Local Government Finance
Act 1988 authorities must give at least 12 months’ notice of a revocation or
variation of a rate relief scheme the effect of which would be to increase rate
bills (other than to comply with any international agreement). Such a
revocation or variation can only take effect at the end of a financial year but,
within these regulations, local authorities may still make decisions which are
conditional upon eligibility criteria. If a change in circumstances renders a
property ineligible or reduces the value of the award, the relevant bill can be
amended in the year to reflect the loss of the relief.
18. Therefore, when making an award for CARF, local authorities should ensure
in the conditions of the award that the relief are subject to the property’s
continuing eligibility.

Subsidy Control
Trade and Co-operation Agreement
19. Providing discretionary relief to ratepayers is likely to amount to a subsidy.
Any relief provided by Local Authorities under the CARF Scheme will need to
comply with the UK’s domestic and international subsidy control obligations
(see the BEIS guidance for public authorities which explains the subsidies
chapter of the UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement (TCA), World Trade
Organisation rules on subsidies, and other international subsidy control
commitments).
Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance
20. To the extent that a Local Authority is seeking to provide relief that falls within
the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance, Article 364 of the TCA
allows an economic actor (e.g. a holding company and its subsidiaries) to
receive up to 325,000 Special Drawing Rights (£343,000 as at 9 December
2021) in a three-year period (consisting of the current financial year and the
two previous financial years). To administer a subsidy under the Small
Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance it is necessary for the Local
Authority to establish that the award of subsidy will not result in the economic
actor having received more than £343,000 of subsidy under the Small
Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance.

Page 249

The COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Allowance
21. Where the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance has been
reached, additional relief may be awarded in compliance with the principles
set out in Article 366 of the TCA and in compliance with Article 364.3 of the
TCA. For the purposes of this scheme, the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund
Allowance, permits an economic actor to receive additional relief of up to a
further £1,900,000 for COVID-19 related losses.
22. This may be combined with the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance
Allowance to permit an economic actor to receive up to £2,243,000 from the
CARF Scheme (or less if they have already used some of their Small
Amounts of Financial Assistance limit or claimed other COVID-19 related
subsidies). It should be noted that Extended Retail Discount granted in either
2020/21 or 2021/22 does not count towards these allowances, but BEIS
business grants (throughout the 3 years) and any other subsidies claimed
under the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance limit (such as the Retail
Relief in 2019/20), or under the EU State aid de minimis limit, in the last three
years, should be counted.
COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Further Allowance
23. If an economic actor has reached the £2,243,000 limit set out above, then it
may still be able to receive up to a further £10 million as a COVID-19
Additional Relief Fund Further Allowance under the CARF Scheme, if it
satisfies the following conditions:
a. the relief relates to uncovered fixed costs (i.e. costs not covered by
profits or insurance etc) during the period of COVID-19 (commencing 1
March 2020). An economic actor may benefit from relief up to 70% of
their uncovered costs (although this 90% limit does not apply to small
businesses with fewer than 50 employees and less than £9 million
turnover), and
b. the enterprise has shown a decline in turnover during the eligible
period of at least 30% compared to the same period in 2019.
24. Therefore, local authorities will wish to ask ratepayers, on a self-assessment
basis, to inform the authority if they are in breach of the above
allowances. Where authorities are delivering CARF via applications then this
declaration can be requested as part of the application process – sample
paragraphs for which are below. As part of awarding the relief, local
authorities should ask businesses to keep necessary documentation to
evidence this.

Page 250

Transparency
25. Local Authorities must also ensure the transparency obligations under Article
369 of the TCA are complied with. The transparency database can be found
at https://manageuksubsidies.beis.gov.uk/
26. If the relief is awarded under the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance

Allowance, LAs must ask the recipient whether, when cumulated with any de
minimis EU State Aid or Small Amounts of Financial Assistance under the
TCA that the business has received in the last three years, the relief will mean
that the recipient has received more than 325,000 Special Drawing Rights
(approximately £343,000 as at 9 December). If it has, then the relief must be
declared on the BEIS transparency database within six months of it being
awarded.

27. If the relief is awarded under the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Allowance,
Local Authorities must ask the recipient whether, when cumulated with any
other support received under the allowances, the recipient has received more
than £500,000. If it has, then the relief must be declared on the BEIS
transparency database within six months of it being made. Awards made
under the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Further Allowance, which by their
nature will be in excess of £500,000, must also be declared on the BEIS
transparency database within six months of it being made.
28. For access to and any further questions on the database, please contact the
BEIS subsidy control team at subsidycontrol@beis.gov.uk.
29. Where Local Authorities have further questions about subsidy control or any
of the above allowance and obligations, they should seek advice from their
legal department in the first instance.

Sample paragraph to include in CARF applications.
The CARF scheme is subject to the subsidies chapter within the UK-EU Trade
and Cooperation Agreement (TCA). However, for CARF there is an
exemption for subsidies under the value of approximately £2,243,000 per
economic actor (broadly speaking, for example, a holding company and its
subsidiaries). This allowance comprises 325,000 Special Drawing Rights (at
current exchange rates about £343,000) for Small Amounts of Financial
Assistance and a further £1,900,000 for COVID-19 related subsidy.
Therefore, to be awarded CARF you must not have claimed over the period
2019/20 to 2021/22 more than £2,243,000 from schemes which fell within the
Small Amounts of Financial Assistance or COVID-19 related allowances.
COVID-19 business grants you have received from local government and the

Page 251

2019/20 Retail Relief should count towards this limit, but you should not count
any Extended Retail Discount you have received since 1 April 2020. Further
details of subsidy control can be found at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-additional-relief-fundcarf-local-authority-guidance
In your application for CARF you must indicate:
if you have not to date received any subsidy which fell within the Small
Amounts of Financial Assistance or COVID-19 related
allowances, confirm this in your application, or
if you have received other such subsidies, then you should provide the
name and total value of those subsidies.
You must not apply for CARF using this form if you have already exceeded
the £2,243,000 allowance. However, we will still consider applications for
support under the CARF scheme if you have reached this limit provided you
can evidence that you:
Intend to use the support to fund uncovered fixed costs (costs not
covered by profits for insurance etc) during the period of COVID-19.
Economic actors may claim for up to 90% of their uncovered costs
(although this 70% limit does not apply to small businesses with less
than 50 employees and less than £9 million turnover), and
have shown a decline in turnover of at least 30% within the April 2020
to March 2021 period, compared to the same 2019 to 2020 period.
You may claim up to a further £10 million of additional allowance (on top of
the £2,243,000) if you meet the above tests and you have not claimed any
other support from the additional allowance up to an aggregate £10 million
limit (such as from the COVID-19 business grants).
The Government and [name of local authority] will not tolerate any business
falsifying their records or providing false evidence to gain this discount,
including claiming support above these thresholds. A ratepayer who falsely
applies for any relief, or provides false information or makes false
representation in order to gain relief may be guilty of fraud under the Fraud
Act 2006.
New Burdens
30. The Government recognises that the implementation of this policy will
place an additional burden on local authorities. In accordance with the New
Burdens doctrine the Government will conduct an assessment of the
expected reasonable additional costs associated with the implementation of
the policy, working closely with local government in doing so.

Page 252

Annexes A-F: CARF Allocation methodology, categories
and definitions
Annex A: COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Allocation
methodology
Introduction
1.

This document sets out the methodology used to calculate each English local
authority’s allocation of the £1.5bn COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund. Allocations will
be paid to the authorities responsible for billing business ratepayers, known as billing
authorities, which includes Shire Districts, Unitary Authorities, Metropolitan Districts
and London Boroughs.

Proxy for impact of COVID-19
2.

The allocation methodology uses the change in Gross Value Added (GVA) as a proxy
for the economic impacts of COVID-19 on each business sector. The GVA data used
is available here:

https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/grossdomesticproductgdp/datasets/monthlygr
ossdomesticproductbygrossvalueadded
3.

The calculation uses the change in GVA compared to Feb-20 for the period April 2020
to March 2021. This data is split by business sector according to the first level
Standard Industrial Classification (SIC), apart from in two cases:
a. Category H (Transport and Storage) has been split into two separate
categories, given the large variance in Covid-19 impact between the transport
and storage sectors. Details of this split are provided in Annex B.
b. Category X is used where a property type doesn’t fit into a specific business
sector (e.g. Offices) but the most common uses are likely fall into SIC
categories J, K, L, M or N.

4.

The allocation method uses the average of the twelve datapoints. Each month
compared to Feb-20 is weighted equally. This data is for the United Kingdom.

SIC
Code
A
B

Definition
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing
Mining and Quarrying

Page 253

Average GVA
Reduction
-13%
-8%

C
D
E
F
G
I
J
K
L
M
N
O
P
Q
R
S

Manufacturing
Energy
Water and Waste Management
Construction
Wholesale and Retail
Hospitality
Information and Communication
Financial Services
Real Estate Activities
Professional Services
Administrative Services
Public administration
Education
Health
Arts, Entertainment and Recreation
Other Services
J-N: Information, Communication, Financial
X
Intermediation, Real Estate and Business Services
Y
Transport
Z
Storage and Distribution
Table 1: Average GVA reduction by SIC category

-9%
-1%
0%
-14%
-8%
-55%
-6%
-2%
-2%
-7%
-21%
1%
-20%
-10%
-34%
-32%
-6%
-32%
-1%

Property stock and COVID-19 impact
5.

For each local authority’s allocation, we use information on the property stock in that
area. We use the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) Ratings List as at October 2021.

6.

The VOA data contains information about the rateable value (RV), location and type of
property for all properties liable for business rates. The type of property is determined
by its Special Category Code, or SCat code.

7.

To account for the differing severity of Covid-19 impacts on sectors, we weight the RV
of each hereditament by GVA impact. In order to do this, we have worked with the
VOA to develop a mapping from SCat codes to SIC codes. This is shown in Annex C.

Calculation of allocation
8.

An authority’s allocation is calculated by summing RV in each SIC category and
weighting it by GVA change. We then sum across each sector to get an authority’s
total GVA-weighted RV. Each authority’s share of the total GVA-weighted RV in
England is applied to the £1.5bn funds available to calculate their allocation. This can
alternatively be represented as:

(1)

𝑤𝑤
𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑖𝑖,𝑗𝑗
= 𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝑖𝑖 ∗ 𝑅𝑅𝑉𝑉𝑖𝑖,𝑗𝑗

(2)

𝑅𝑅𝑉𝑉𝑗𝑗𝑤𝑤

𝑛𝑛

𝑤𝑤
= � 𝑅𝑅𝑉𝑉𝑖𝑖,𝑗𝑗
𝑖𝑖=1

Calculate GVA-weighted RV change for sector
𝑖𝑖 and authority 𝑗𝑗.
Calculate sum of GVA-weighted RV for all
sectors 𝑖𝑖 = 1 𝑡𝑡𝑡𝑡 𝑛𝑛, where 𝑛𝑛 is the number of
sectors.

Page 254

(3)

(4)

𝑤𝑤
𝑅𝑅𝑉𝑉𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸

𝑚𝑚

Calculate sum of GVA-weighted RV for all
authorities 𝑗𝑗 = 1 𝑡𝑡𝑡𝑡 𝑚𝑚, where 𝑚𝑚 is the number
of authorities.

= � 𝑅𝑅𝑉𝑉𝑗𝑗𝑤𝑤
𝑗𝑗=1

𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝑛𝑛𝑗𝑗 =

𝑅𝑅𝑉𝑉𝑗𝑗𝑤𝑤

𝑤𝑤
𝑅𝑅𝑉𝑉𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸

∗ 1,500,000,000

Calculate authority 𝑗𝑗’s share of the total GVAweighted RV and multiply by the total funds
available.

9.

Where sectors have seen a positive change to their GVA over the relevant period, the
sector RV has been given a zero weighting, as opposed to a negative weighting, in
order to avoid a detrimental impact on properties within other sectors within that
authority. This applies to SIC code O (Public Administration).

10.

In accordance with the guidance that local authorities should not award relief to
properties that have already been eligible for the Extended Retail Discount (covering
Retail, Hospitality and Leisure), the Nursery Discount or the Airport and Ground
Operations Support Scheme (AGOSS), the following property types have been given a
zero weighting in the allocation: retail, hospitality, leisure, nurseries, and airports. For
the purposes of this allocation, retail, hospitality, leisure and nursery properties are
defined in Annex D, and airports are defined in Annex E.

11.

In order to ensure consistency with the Central Ratings List and the fact that these
industries have been relatively insulated from the adverse impacts of COVID-19, the
following sectors have been deemed out of scope of the relief and given a zero
weighting: networks supplying utilities and associated properties. These are defined at
Annex F.

12.

Allocations are rounded to the nearest pound.

Page 255

Annex B: Split of the Transport and Storage SIC1
Category
Category
Transport

SIC2
Components
49.1-2
49.3-5
50
51
52

Description

Rail transport
Land transport
Water transport
Air transport
Storage and
Warehousing/transport support
Distribution
activities
53
Postal and Courier Activities
This split, and subsequent GVA weighting, uses data from:
https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/economicoutputandproductivity/output/datasets/ind
exofservices

Page 256

Annex C: Mapping of SIC to Special Category Code
SCat
code

Special category description

RETAIL SECTOR
Retail - Financial &
Professional Services Subsector
Banks/Insurance/Building
Society Offices and Other A2
021 Uses
Retail - Shops Sub-sector
008 Airport Let Outs

024 Betting Offices
Departmental and Walk Round
086 Stores (Large)
097 Factory Shops
098 Farm Shops
106 Convenience Stores
Hypermarkets/Superstores
139 (over 2500m2)
Large Food Stores (750 152 2500m2)
154 Large Shops (750 - 1850m2)
155 Large Shops (Over 1850m2)
210 Pharmacies
Retail Warehouses and
235 Foodstores
243 Sales Kiosks
249 Shops
251 Showrooms
417 Hairdressing/Beauty Salons
Pharmacies Within/Adjacent to
425 Surgery/Health Centre
429 Post Offices
Takeaway Food Outlet
442 (Predominantly Off Premises)
Kiosks Within/Part of Specialist
504 Property
Salons/Clinics Within/Part of
507 Specialist Property

SIC
cod
e

SIC definition

K

Financial Services

G
X

G

Wholesale and Retail
J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services
Wholesale and Retail

G
G
G
G

Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail

G

Wholesale and Retail

G
G
G
G

Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail

G
G
G
S
Q

Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Other Services
Health

G
I

Wholesale and Retail
Hospitality

G

Wholesale and Retail

S

Other Services

Page 257

Shops Within/Part of Specialist
508 Property
710 Residual Malls
738 Builders Merchant
011 Amusement Arcades
165 Markets (Other Than Livestock)
OTHER SECTOR
Assembly And Leisure Subsector
Agricultural Showgrounds
004 (National Scheme)
012 Amusement Parks

G

Wholesale and Retail

G
G
R

Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Wholesale and Retail

G

R

I

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality

I

Hospitality

R
R

014 Arenas
022 Beach Huts
025 Bingo Halls (National Scheme)
026 Bird Sanctuaries

I
R
R
R

028 Bowling Alleys

R

029 Bowling Centres (Indoor)
030 Bowling Greens (Outdoor)
Caravan Parks (Leisure)
047 (National Scheme)
Caravan Sites and Pitches
048 (National Scheme)

R

R
049 Casinos and Gambling Clubs
054 Chalet Parks (National Scheme) I
R
056 Cinemas (National Scheme)
R
060 Clubhouses
R
061 Clubs and Institutions
Concert Halls (National
R
070 Scheme)
Conference and Exhibition
R
074 Centres
Conference Centres in Country N
075 Houses
R
081 Cricket Centres

Page 258

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Administrative Services
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation

082 Cricket Grounds (County)
Cricket Grounds/Pitches (Non083 County)
084
091
092
104

Dance Schools and Centres
Drive-In Restaurants
Drive-Thru Restaurants
Food Courts

R

Football Stadia

R

116 Go Kart Rinks

R

117 Golf Courses

R

118 Golf Driving Ranges

R

121 Greyhound Racetracks

R

125 Health Farms

R

128 Heritage Railways

R

132 Horse Racecourses

R

140 Ice Rinks
Lakes With Water Sport
145 Facilities

R
R

164 Marinas (National Scheme)

R

188 Model Villages

R

191 Motor Racetracks
Museums and Art Galleries
195 (Contractors)
Museums and Art Galleries
196 (Non-Contractors)

R
R

199 Night Clubs and Discotheques

213

Pleasure Piers

R

R

108 Football Pitches

208 Pavilions

R

I
I
I
R

107 Football Grounds

109

R

R
R
R

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Hospitality
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation

Page 259

Point to Point and Eventing
214 Courses
216 Polo Grounds
225 Public Halls
Public Houses/Pub Restaurants
226 (National Scheme)
Public Houses/Pub Restaurants
227 (Inc. Lodge) (National Scheme)
Racing Stables (National
229 Scheme)
234 Restaurants
Riding Schools and Livery
236 Stables (National Scheme)
237 Rifle and Weapons Ranges
Roadside Restaurants (National
238 Scheme)
239 Roller Skating Rinks

I

Hospitality

R

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality

R
R

I
R
R
I
R

R

241 Rugby League Grounds

R

242 Rugby Union Grounds

R

252 Ski Centres

R

253 Snooker Halls/Clubs

R

254 Speedway Racetracks
256 Sporting Rights
Sports and Leisure Centres (LA)
257 (Dry Only) (National Scheme)
Sports and Leisure Centres (LA)
(Wet and Dry) (National
258 Scheme)
Sports and Leisure Centres
259 (Private)(Dry Only)
Sports and Leisure Centres
260 (Private)(Wet and Dry)

262 Sports Stadia

I

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality

R

240 Royal Palaces

261 Sports Grounds

R

R
R
R
R
R
R
R

Page 260

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation

R

263 Squash Courts

R

264 Stables and Loose Boxes
Stately Homes and Historic
265 Houses (National Scheme)
Swimming Pools (Local
272 Authority)

R
R
R

273 Swimming Pools (Private)

R

277 Tennis Centres

R

278 Tennis Courts/Clubs

R

279 Theatres (National Scheme)

R

280 Theme Parks
Totalisators On Horse
283 Racecourses

R

284 Tourist Attractions
Village Halls Scout Huts Cadet
293 Huts etc
War Games Courses/Misc Ag.
296 Use
303 Bars (valued on floorspace)
304 Zoos and Safari Parks

R
R
R
I
R
R

403 Aquaria

R

405 Boathouses
409 Cafes

I
R

410 Changing Rooms

R

416 Gymnasia/Fitness Suites

R

421 Miniature Railways
426 Pitch and Putt/Putting Greens
Religious Retreats/Study
431 Centres (Residential)
Cafes/Restaurants Within/Part
500 of Specialist Property
Gymnasia/Fitness Suites
Within/Part of Specialist
503 Property

R
R
I
R

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation

Page 261

Sports and Leisure Centres
Within/Part of Specialist
509 Property
715 Football Training Grounds
739 Soccer Centres
993 Leisure Miscellaneous
Education Sub-sector
Colleges of Further Education
065 (National Scheme)
085 Day Nurseries/Play Schools
Local Authority Schools
159 (National Scheme)
206 Oxbridge Colleges
Public and Independent Schools
223 (National Scheme)
Universities (Excluding
288 Oxbridge) (National Scheme)
University Occupation Within
440 Hospitals
Nurseries/Creches Within/Part
505 of Specialist Property
995 Educational Miscellaneous
Health Sub-sector
Hospitals and Clinics NHS
134 (National Scheme)
Hospitals and Clinics (Private)
135 (National Scheme)
Surgeries Clinics Health
436 Centres (Contractors Valuation)
Surgeries Clinics Health
437 Centres (Rental Valuation)
Hotels, Guest & Boarding,
Self Catering etc Sub-sector
062 Coaching Inns
077 Country House Hotels
Field Study Activity and
099 Adventure Centres
122 Guest and Boarding Houses
130 Holiday Centres
131 Holiday Homes (Self Catering)
136 Hostels
137 Hotels (3 Star and Under)
Hotels (4 Star and Above) and
Chain Op. 3 Star (National
138 Scheme)
160 Lodges (National Scheme)

R

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation

R

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation

R
R
P

Education

P
P

Education
Education

P
P

Education
Education

P

Education

P

Education

P

Education

P

Education

Q

Health

Q

Health

Q

Health

Q

Health

I
I
R
I
I
I
I
I
I

Hospitality
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Hospitality
Hospitality
Hospitality
Hospitality
Hospitality

I

Hospitality

Page 262

281
722
067
156
057
411
415
414
215
418

Timeshare Complexes (National
Scheme)
Serviced Apartments
Non Residential Institutions
Sub-sector
Community Day Centres
Libraries
Other - Offices Sub-sector
Civic and Public Buildings
(Local Authority Occupations)
Coastguard Stations
Courts (Rental Valuation)
Courts (Contractors Valuation)
Police Stations
Information/Visitor Centres

Offices Within/Part of Specialist
506 Property
Other - Other Sub-sector
AA/RAC Service Centres and
001 Boxes
003 Advertising Right
010 Ambulance Stations
013 Animal Boarding
015 Army Hereditaments
Car Parks (NCP and Multi039 Storey)
040 Car Parks (Surfaced Open)
041 Car Parks (Unsurfaced Open)
043 Car Spaces
053 Cemeteries (National Scheme)
058 Civic Amenity Sites
Contractors Huts and
076 Compounds
Crematoria (With and Without
080 Cemeteries) (National Scheme)
100 Film and TV Studios
101 Fire Stations
102 Fish Farms
Funeral Parlours/Chapels Of
111 Rest
112
123
124
141

Game Farms
Gypsy Camp Sites (Short Stay)
Hatcheries/Poultry Farms
Interactive Telephone Kiosks

I

Hospitality

I

Hospitality

Q
O

Health
Public administration

O

Public administration

O
O
O
O
N
X

Public administration
Public administration
Public administration
Public administration
Administrative Services
J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services

Y

Transport

J
O
I
O
Y

Information and Communication
Public administration
Hospitality
Public administration
Transport

Y
Y
Y
S
E
F

Transport
Transport
Transport
Other Services
Water and Waste Management
Construction

S

Other Services

J
O
A
S

Information and Communication
Public administration
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing
Other Services

R

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing
Information and Communication

I
A
J

Page 263

X
143
144
146
147
150
189
190
197
202
224
228
230
232

Kennels and Catteries
Laboratories
Land Used For Advertising
Land Used For Car Boot Sales
Landfill Sites
Moorings (Floating
Hereditaments)
Mortuaries
Navy Hereditaments
Observatories
Public Conveniences (National
Scheme)
Public Telephone Kiosks
(National Scheme)
RAF Hereditaments
Recording Studios

269 Stud Farms
270 Studios
Training Centre (Non
285 Residential)
Veterinary Clinics / Animal
292 Clinics
294 Vineyards/Wineries
298 Waste Recycling Plants
302 Windmills
420 Lifeboat Stations
424 Pet Grooming Parlours
428 Police Training Colleges
438 Telescope Sites
University - Ancillary Land or
439 Buildings
Car Parking Within/Part of
501 Specialist Property
Miscellaneous Within/Part of
513 Specialist Property
725 Park and Ride Car Parks

M
J
G
E
I

J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services
Professional Services
Information and Communication
Wholesale and Retail
Water and Waste Management
Hospitality

O
O
M
O

Public administration
Public administration
Professional Services
Public administration

J

Information and Communication

O
J
X

Q

Public administration
Information and Communication
J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Health

M

Professional Services

C
E
C
O
M
P
O
P

Manufacturing
Water and Waste Management
Manufacturing
Public administration
Professional Services
Education
Public administration
Education

Y

Transport

X

J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services
Transport
J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services

R

Y
X

992 Commercial Miscellaneous

Page 264

998 Crown Miscellaneous

999 Miscellaneous
Other - Retail Sub-sector
018 ATMs
019 Auction Rooms
038 Car Auction Buildings/Sites
042 Car Showrooms
044 Car Supermarkets
045 Car Washes (Stand Alone)
Car/Caravan
046 Sales/Display/Hiring Sites
114 Garden Centres
757 Plant Nurseries
133 Hospital Let Outs
Motorway Service Area Let
193 Outs
Motorway and Major Road
194 Service Areas
Petrol Filling Stations (National
209 Scheme)
211 Photographic Booths
250 Showhouses (National Scheme)
266 Station Let Outs
419 Land Used for Display
Pitches for Stalls Sales or
427 Promotions
432 Sales Offices
Residential Institutions Subsector
Nursing Homes (Inc. Old
201 Peoples Homes)
220 Prison Service Hereditaments

286 Training Centre (Residential)
Storage & Distribution Subsector
119 Grain Silos
Granaries and Intervention
120 Stores
Liquid Bulk Storage (Incl Petrol
157 and Oil) (National Scheme)
404 Archives
Cold Stores (Contractors
412 Valuation)

O
X

Public administration
J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services

K
G
G
G
G
G
G

Financial Services
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail

G
G
G
G

Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail

G

Wholesale and Retail

G

Wholesale and Retail

G
G
G
G
G

Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail

L

Real Estate Activities

Q

Health

O
X

Public administration
J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services

Z
Z

Storage and Distribution
Storage and Distribution

Z

Storage and Distribution

O
Z

Public administration
Storage and Distribution

Page 265

413 Cold Stores (Rental Valuation)
Transport Sub-sector
Air Ports (Minor) (National
005 Scheme)
006 Air Strips (National Scheme)
036 Bus Stations
059 Civil Airports
Docks and Harbours (Non089 Statutory)
126 Heliports
161 Lorry Parks
Railways and Tramways (Non
231 Leisure)
Tolls (Ferries Roads and
282 Bridges)
287 Truck Stops
712 Rail Freight Depots
714 Rail Maintenance Depots
737 Ferry Terminal
Utilities Sub-sector
Communication Stations
066 (National Scheme)
District Heating Undertakings
088 and Networks
090 Domestic Fuel Installations
Electricity Undertakings (Non094 Statutory)
115 Gas Processing Plants
149 Landfill Gas Generator Sites
219 Power Generators
Sewage Works (National
246 Scheme)
Telecommunications Cable
275 Networks (National Scheme)
Telecommunications Switching
276
Centres
Water Undertakings (Non300 Statutory)
Telecommunications Large
726 Broadcast Sites
Renewable Generators – Mixed
729 Technologies
733 Battery Storage
741 Independent Gas Transporter
Independent Distribution
742 Network Operator
Renewable Power Generator 743 Photovoltaic

Z

Storage and Distribution

Y

Transport

Y
Y
Y
Y

Transport
Transport
Transport
Transport

Y
Y
Y

Transport
Transport
Transport

Y

Transport

G
Y
Y
Y

Wholesale and Retail
Transport
Transport
Transport

J

Information and Communication

D

Energy

O
D

Public administration
Energy

D
D
D
E

Energy
Energy
Energy
Water and Waste Management

J

Information and Communication

J

Information and Communication

E

Water and Waste Management

J

Information and Communication

D

Energy

D
D
D

Energy
Energy
Energy

D

Energy

Page 266

744
745
746
747
748

Renewable Power Generator Wind
Renewable Power Generator Other
Renewable Power Generator Hydro
Fossil Fuel Power Station
Nuclear Power Station
OFFICE SECTOR
Offices Sub-sector

203 Offices (Inc Computer Centres)
Offices
204 (Headquarters/Institutional)
INDUSTRY SECTOR
General Industrial Sub-sector
105 Food Processing Centres
110 Foundries
Vehicle Repair Workshops and
289 Garages

408 Business Units
Workshops Within/Part of
512 Specialist Property
Factories Workshops and
Warehouses (Incl Bakeries and
096 Dairies)
Large Industrials (Over 20
153
000m2)
192 Motor Vehicle Works
Newspaper Printing Works
198 (National Scheme)
207 Paper Mills
Industry - Storage &
Distribution Sub-sector
Bullion/Money Stores (National
034 Scheme)
129 High Tech Warehouses
148 Land Used For Storage
151 Large Distribution Warehouses
217 Post Office Sorting Centres
267 Storage Depots
268 Stores

D

Energy

D

Energy

D

Energy

D
D

Energy
Energy

X

J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services
J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services

X

C
C
G

Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Wholesale and Retail

X

C

J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services
Manufacturing

C

Manufacturing

C

Manufacturing

C
C

Manufacturing
Manufacturing

C

Manufacturing

Z

Storage and Distribution

Z
Z
Z
Z
Z
Z

Storage and Distribution
Storage and Distribution
Storage and Distribution
Storage and Distribution
Storage and Distribution
Storage and Distribution

Page 267

301 Wholesale Warehouses
Stores Within/Part of Specialist
510 Property
Warehouses Within/Part of
511 Specialist Property
721 Self Storage Facility
Industry Other Sub-sector
Computer Centres (Non068 Purpose Built)
Computer Centres (Purpose
069 Built)
007 Aircraft Works With Airfields
009 Aluminium Smelting Works
016 Artificial Fibre Works
017 Asphalt Plants
020 Baling Plant
023 Beet Sugar Factories
027 Boat Yards
031 Breweries (National Scheme)
Brickworks (Traditional) Clay
032 Tile/Pipe Works
033 Bulk Cement Storage Depots
037 Cable Head End Buildings
050 Cattle Breeding Centres
051 Cement Tile Works
052 Cement Works
055 Chemical Works
063 Coking and Carbonising Plants
071 Concrete Batching Plants
072 Concrete Block Works
073 Concrete Product Works
079 Creameries
087 Distilleries
Effluent Minewater Treatment
093 Plant and Premises
095 Exhaust and Tyre Centres
103 Flour Mills (National Scheme)
Garages (Transport and
113 Commercial)
Heredits Used For Primary
Treatment/Processing Of
127 Minerals
142 Iron and/or Steel Works
Livestock Markets (National
158 Scheme)
162 Maltings - Non Trad
163 Maltings - Trad
166 Mechanised Handling Depots

G
Z

Wholesale and Retail
Storage and Distribution

Z

Storage and Distribution

Z

Storage and Distribution

N

Administrative Services

N

Administrative Services

C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C

Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing

C
J
A
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
E

Manufacturing
Information and Communication
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Water and Waste Management

G
C
Y

Wholesale and Retail
Manufacturing
Transport

B

Mining and Quarrying

C
C

Manufacturing
Manufacturing

C
C
Z

Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Storage and Distribution

Page 268

167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
186
187
200
205
212
218
221
222
233

Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Blockstone
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Brine
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Chalk
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- China Clay
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Clay
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Coal
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Fluorspar
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Gas
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Hardrock
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Inert
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Oil
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Other Mineral Category
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Putrescible
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Sand and Gravel
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Shale Burnt
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Shale Unburnt
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Slate
Mineral Producing Hereditament
With Batching Plant
Mineral Producing Hereditament
With Tunnel Kiln
MOD Hereditaments
Nuclear Establishments
Oil Refineries
Pipelines
Potteries
Properties Involving Extraction
Of Materials For Profit
Provender Mills (National
Scheme)
Refuse Destructor
Plants/Disposal Sites

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

E

Water and Waste Management

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

E

Water and Waste Management

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

O
E
C
Y
C
B

Public administration
Water and Waste Management
Manufacturing
Transport
Manufacturing
Mining and Quarrying

C

Manufacturing

E

Water and Waste Management

Page 269

244 Scrap Metal/Breakers Yard
Sea Dredged Aggregate
245 Processing Plants and Depots
247 Ship Building Yards
248 Ship Repair Yards
255 Spoil Heap Workings
274 Tanneries
Vehicle Testing Centres (With
290 Test Tracks)
Vehicle Testing Centres
291 (Without Test Tracks)
Wafer Fabrications (National
295 Scheme)
297 Waste Incinerator Plants
299 Waste Transfer Stations
Abattoirs and Slaughter Houses
400 (Contractors Valuation)
Abattoirs and Slaughter Houses
401 (Rental Valuation)
402 Agricultural Research Centres
Bus Garages (Contractors
406 Valuation)
407 Bus Garages (Rental Valuation)
422 Pack Houses
423 Peat Fields
430 Pumping Mines
Statutory Docks and Harbours
433 (Formula)
Statutory Docks and Harbours
434 (Non-Formula Prescribed)
Statutory Docks and Harbours
435 (Other)
441 Weighbridges
Garages Within/Part of
502 Specialist Property
994 Industrial Miscellaneous
997 Minerals Miscellaneous

E
B

Water and Waste Management
Mining and Quarrying

C
C
B
C
C

Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Mining and Quarrying
Manufacturing
Manufacturing

O

Public administration

C

Manufacturing

E
E
C

Water and Waste Management
Water and Waste Management
Manufacturing

C

Manufacturing

M
Y

Professional Services
Transport

Y
A
B
B
Y

Transport
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing
Mining and Quarrying
Mining and Quarrying
Transport

Y

Transport

Y

Transport

Y
Y

Transport
Transport

C
B

Manufacturing
Mining and Quarrying

Page 270

Annex D: Definition of Retail, Hospitality and Leisure
properties
SCat Code

4
8
11
12
14
19
22
24
25
26
28
29
30
38
42
44
45
46
47
48
49
54
56
60
61
62
70
74
75
77
81
82
83
84
85
86
91
92
97
98
99

Special category description
Agricultural Showgrounds (National Scheme)
Airport Let Outs
Amusement Arcades
Amusement Parks
Arenas
Auction Rooms
Beach Huts
Betting Offices
Bingo Halls (National Scheme)
Bird Sanctuaries
Bowling Alleys
Bowling Centres (Indoor)
Bowling Greens (Outdoor)
Car Auction Buildings/Sites
Car Showrooms
Car Supermarkets
Car Washes (Stand Alone)
Car/Caravan Sales/Display/Hiring Sites
Caravan Parks (Leisure) (National Scheme)
Caravan Sites and Pitches (National Scheme)
Casinos and Gambling Clubs
Chalet Parks (National Scheme)
Cinemas (National Scheme)
Clubhouses
Clubs and Institutions
Coaching Inns
Concert Halls (National Scheme)
Conference and Exhibition Centres
Conference Centres in Country Houses
Country House Hotels
Cricket Centres
Cricket Grounds (County)
Cricket Grounds/Pitches (Non-County)
Dance Schools and Centres
Day Nurseries/Play Schools
Departmental and Walk Round Stores (Large)
Drive-In Restaurants
Drive-Thru Restaurants
Factory Shops
Farm Shops
Field Study Activity and Adventure Centres

Page 271

104
106
107
108
109
114
116
117
118
121
122
125
128
130
131
132
136
137
138
139
140
145
152
154
155
160
164
165
188
191
195
196
199
208
209
210
211
213
214
216
225
226
227
229
234
235

Food Courts
Convenience Stores
Football Grounds
Football Pitches
Football Stadia
Garden Centres
Go Kart Rinks
Golf Courses
Golf Driving Ranges
Greyhound Racetracks
Guest and Boarding Houses
Health Farms
Heritage Railways
Holiday Centres
Holiday Homes (Self Catering)
Horse Racecourses
Hostels
Hotels (3 Star and Under)
Hotels (4 Star and Above) and Chain Op. 3 Star (National Scheme)
Hypermarkets/Superstores (over 2500m2)
Ice Rinks
Lakes With Water Sport Facilities
Large Food Stores (750 - 2500m2)
Large Shops (750 - 1850m2)
Large Shops (Over 1850m2)
Lodges (National Scheme)
Marinas (National Scheme)
Markets (Other Than Livestock)
Model Villages
Motor Racetracks
Museums and Art Galleries (Contractors)
Museums and Art Galleries (Non-Contractors)
Night Clubs and Discotheques
Pavilions
Petrol Filling Stations (National Scheme)
Pharmacies
Photographic Booths
Pleasure Piers
Point to Point and Eventing Courses
Polo Grounds
Public Halls
Public Houses/Pub Restaurants (National Scheme)
Public Houses/Pub Restaurants (Inc. Lodge) (National Scheme)
Racing Stables (National Scheme)
Restaurants
Retail Warehouses and Foodstores

Page 272

236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
249
250
251
252
253
254
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
272
273
277
278
279
280
281
283
284
293
296
303
304
403
405
409
410
416
417
421
425

Riding Schools and Livery Stables (National Scheme)
Rifle and Weapons Ranges
Roadside Restaurants (National Scheme)
Roller Skating Rinks
Royal Palaces
Rugby League Grounds
Rugby Union Grounds
Sales Kiosks
Shops
Showhouses (National Scheme)
Showrooms
Ski Centres
Snooker Halls/Clubs
Speedway Racetracks
Sporting Rights
Sports and Leisure Centres (LA) (Dry Only) (National Scheme)
Sports and Leisure Centres (LA) (Wet and Dry) (National Scheme)
Sports and Leisure Centres (Private)(Dry Only)
Sports and Leisure Centres (Private)(Wet and Dry)
Sports Grounds
Sports Stadia
Squash Courts
Stables and Loose Boxes
Stately Homes and Historic Houses (National Scheme)
Station Let Outs
Swimming Pools (Local Authority)
Swimming Pools (Private)
Tennis Centres
Tennis Courts/Clubs
Theatres (National Scheme)
Theme Parks
Timeshare Complexes (National Scheme)
Totalisators On Horse Racecourses
Tourist Attractions
Village Halls Scout Huts Cadet Huts etc
War Games Courses/Misc Ag. Use
Bars (valued on floorspace)
Zoos and Safari Parks
Aquaria
Boathouses
Cafes
Changing Rooms
Gymnasia/Fitness Suites
Hairdressing/Beauty Salons
Miniature Railways
Pharmacies Within/Adjacent to Surgery/Health Centre

Page 273

426
431
432
442
500
503
504
505
507
508
509
710
722
738
739
757
993

Pitch and Putt/Putting Greens
Religious Retreats/Study Centres (Residential)
Sales Offices
Takeaway Food Outlet (Predominantly Off Premises)
Cafes/Restaurants Within/Part of Specialist Property
Gymnasia/Fitness Suites Within/Part of Specialist Property
Kiosks Within/Part of Specialist Property
Nurseries/Creches Within/Part of Specialist Property
Salons/Clinics Within/Part of Specialist Property
Shops Within/Part of Specialist Property
Sports and Leisure Centres Within/Part of Specialist Property
Residual Malls
Serviced Apartments
Builders Merchant
Soccer Centres
Plant Nurseries
Leisure Miscellaneous

Page 274

Annex E: Definition of airports
SCat code

Special category description
005 Air Ports (Minor) (National Scheme)
059 Civil Airports

Page 275

Annex F: Definition of network supplying utilities and
associated properties
SCat code

094
115
212
275
276
300
726
729
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748

Special category description
Electricity Undertakings (Non-Statutory)
Gas Processing Plants
Pipelines
Telecommunications Cable Networks (National Scheme)
Telecommunications Switching Centres
Water Undertakings (Non-Statutory)
Telecommunications Large Broadcast Sites
Renewable Generators – Mixed Technologies
Independent Gas Transporter
Independent Distribution Network Operator
Renewable Power Generator - Photovoltaic
Renewable Power Generator - Wind
Renewable Power Generator - Other
Renewable Power Generator - Hydro
Fossil Fuel Power Station
Nuclear Power Station

Page 276

Policy for the granting of
COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund
Discretionary Non-Domestic Rate Relief

Ryedale /CARF Discretionary Business Rates Relief Policy 2022

Page 277

1

Contents
1.0
2.0

Purpose of the Policy............................................................................................................. 3
Discretionary Relief – Legislative Background....................................................................... 4
Introduction........................................................................................................................... 4
3.0 Eligibility for discretionary relief under the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) scheme
4
4.0 Discretionary Relief to be awarded under the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund. ................ 5
5.0 Excluded hereditaments........................................................................................................ 6
6.0 Subsidy Control...................................................................................................................... 6
7.0
Effect on the Council’s Finances ................................................................................ 7
8.0 Administration of Discretionary Relief .................................................................................. 7
Applications and Evidence..................................................................................................... 7
Granting of relief ................................................................................................................... 8
Variation of a decision........................................................................................................... 8
9.0 Scheme of Delegation............................................................................................................ 9
Granting, Varying, Reviewing and Revocation of Relief ........................................................ 9
Reviews.................................................................................................................................. 9
Disputes................................................................................................................................. 9
10.0 Reporting changes in circumstances ................................................................................... 10
11.0 Fraud ................................................................................................................................... 10
Appendix A Ratepayers / hereditaments excluded from the scheme EXAMPLE .......................... 11

Ryedale /CARF Discretionary Business Rates Relief Policy 2022

Page 278

2

1.0 Purpose of the Policy
1.1

The purpose of this policy is to determine the level of discretionary relief payable
under the Council’s COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) scheme.

1.2

Central Government has provided the authority with funding to assist those
ratepayers who businesses have been (and continue to be) affected by the
pandemic but that are ineligible for existing support linked to business rates.

1.3

The Government has not changed the legislation relating to the business rates
reliefs available to properties. Instead, the Government will, in line
with the eligibility criteria set out in this policy, reimburse local
authorities where relief is granted using discretionary relief powers under section
47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988.

1.4

Whilst funding is provided by Central Government, it is for the Council to decide
its own local scheme and determine in each individual case whether to grant this
particular relief.

1.5

Relief under the CARG scheme will only be available to reduce chargeable amounts
in respect of the 2021/22 financial year.

1.6

This document outlines the following areas:
• Details of the criteria for receiving Discretionary Reliefs under the COVID-19
Additional Relief Fund (CARF) scheme;
• The Council’s policy for the granting the relief;
• General guidance on granting and administering the reliefs and awards;
• Subsidy Controls applicable; and
• The Council’s Scheme of Delegation.

1.7

Where ratepayers apply for relief they will be granted (or not granted) relief under
the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) scheme in line with the following
policy.

Ryedale /CARF Discretionary Business Rates Relief Policy 2022

Page 279

3

2.0 Discretionary Relief – Legislative Background
Introduction
2.1

The original purpose of discretionary relief was to provide assistance where the
property does not qualify for mandatory relief, or to ‘top’ up cases where
ratepayers already receive mandatory relief.

2.2

Over recent years and particularly since 2011, the discretionary relief provisions
have been amended to allow authorities the flexibility to provide more assistance
to businesses and organisations.

2.3

The range of bodies, which are eligible for discretionary rate relief, is wide and not
all of the criteria laid down by the legislation will be applicable in each case.

2.4

The Council will expect all businesses provide such information and evidence as
required in order to determine whether relief should be awarded.

2.5

There is no statutory appeal process or Tribunal against any decision made by the
Council although, as with any decision of a public authority, decisions can be
reviewed by Judicial Review. The authority will however, upon request, review
decisions made. Details of the internal review process are given within this policy.

2.6

The decision to grant or not to grant discretionary relief is a matter purely for the
Council.

3.0 Eligibility for discretionary relief under the COVID-19
Additional Relief Fund (CARF) scheme
3.1

Whilst the Council has determined its own scheme, the Department for Levelling
Up, Housing and Communities has stated that, in order for the Council to receive
the allocated funding, it must:
(a) not award relief to ratepayers who for the same period of the relief either are
or would have been eligible for the Expanded Retail Discount (covering Retail,
Hospitality and Leisure), the Nursery Discount or the Airport and Ground
Operations Support Scheme (AGOSS);
(b) not award relief to a hereditament for a period when it is unoccupied (other
than hereditaments which have become closed temporarily due to the
government’s advice on COVID-19, which should be treated as occupied for the
purposes of this relief), and
(c) direct their support towards ratepayers who have been adversely affected by
the pandemic and have been unable to adequately adapt to that impact.

Ryedale /CARF Discretionary Business Rates Relief Policy 2022

Page 280

4

3.2

In line with section 47(8) of the Local Government Finance Act 1988, the Council
must not grant any relief to itself or to either local or major precepting authorities.

3.3

The relief will be applied after mandatory reliefs and other discretionary reliefs
funded by section 31 grants have been applied, excluding those where the Council
has provided relief using its wider discretionary relief powers introduced by the
Localism Act 2011 which are not funded by section 31 grants.

3.4

Where any reduction or remission is granted to a ratepayer under S49 Local
Government Finance Act 1988 (where hardship is proven to the Council), then
there will be no requirement to grant CARF Discretionary Rate Relief for that
amount.

3.5

In certain cases, the order in which relief is granted is specified. Mandatory relief
shall be granted in all cases where the relevant criteria are met irrespective of
whether discretionary relief can be granted or not.

4.0 Discretionary Relief to be awarded under the COVID-19
Additional Relief Fund.
4.1

Over the past few years, a number of schemes (such as the COVID-19 Additional
Relief Fund) have been led by Central Government but without specific legislative
changes.

4.2

The Council is keen to support such initiatives especially where they are designed
to help local businesses and will look to maximise both the reliefs given as well as
maximise any grants receivable.

4.3

In view of this, the Council has decided that where a ratepayer meets all of the
relevant criteria, relief will be 15% of the 2021/22 liability after any other reliefs
and reductions have been applied.

4.4

The criteria for the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund are as follows:
(a) the ratepayer is not eligible (or would be eligible) for the Expanded Retail
Discount (covering Retail, Hospitality and Leisure), the Nursery Discount or the
Airport and Ground Operations Support Scheme (AGOSS);
(b) the ratepayer is not entitled to either Small Business Rate Relief or Rural Rate
Relief granted at 100%;
(c) the ratepayer is not entitled to mandatory relief (80%) and discretionary (top
up) of 20% which is funded through business rates retention;
(d) the hereditament is treated as occupied by the Council;
(e) the ratepayer confirms that they have been adversely affected by the
pandemic and have been unable to adequately adapt to that impact;

Ryedale /CARF Discretionary Business Rates Relief Policy 2022

Page 281

5

(f) the ratepayer is not subject to Subsidy Control as defined within section 6; and
(g) the hereditament is not excluded under the section 5 below

5.0 Excluded hereditaments
5.1

The Council has decided that the hereditaments / ratepayers within Appendix A
will be excluded from relief under the Council’s COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund
(CARF) scheme.

6.0 Subsidy Control
6.1

The Council’s COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) scheme is subject to the
subsidies chapter within the UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement (TCA).
However, for CARF there is an exemption for subsidies under the value of
approximately £2,243,000 per economic actor (broadly speaking, for example, a
holding company and its subsidiaries).

6.2

This allowance comprises 325,000 Special Drawing Rights (at current exchange
rates about £343,000) for Small Amounts of Financial Assistance and a further
£1,900,000 for COVID-19 related subsidy.

6.3

Therefore, to be awarded CARF the ratepayer must not have claimed over the
period 2019/20 to 2021/22 more than £2,243,000 from schemes which fell within
the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance or COVID-19 related allowances.

6.4

Any COVID-19 business grants a ratepayer has received from local government
generally and the 2019/20 Retail Relief should count towards this limit, but the
ratepayer should not count any Extended Retail Discount they have received since
1 April 2020.

6.5

Further details of subsidy control can be found at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-additional-relief-fundcarf-local-authority-guidance

6.6

The ratepayer will need to indicate to the Council:
• if they have not to date received any subsidy which fell within the Small
Amounts of Financial Assistance or COVID-19 related allowances; or
• if the ratepayer has received other such subsidies, they will be required to
provide the name and total value of those subsidies.

6.7

A ratepayer must not apply for CARF if they have already exceeded the £2,243,000
allowance. However, the Council will still consider applications for support under
the CARF scheme if they have reached this limit provided you can evidence that
they:
(a) Intend to use the support to fund uncovered fixed costs (costs not covered by
profits for insurance etc) during the period of COVID-19. Economic actors may

Ryedale /CARF Discretionary Business Rates Relief Policy 2022

Page 282

6

claim for up to 70% of their uncovered costs (although this 70% limit does not
apply to small businesses with less than 50 employees and less than £9 million
turnover where the limit is instead 90%); and
(b) Have shown a decline in turnover of at least 30% within the April 2020 to
March 2021 period, compared to the same 2019 to 2020 period.
6.8

The ratepayer may claim up to a further £10 million of additional allowance (on
top of the £2,243,000) if they meet the above tests and they have not claimed any
other support from the additional allowance up to an aggregate £10 million limit
(such as from the COVID-19 business grants).

6.9

Government and the Council will not tolerate any business falsifying their records
or providing false evidence to gain this relief including claiming support above
these thresholds.

6.10

A ratepayer who falsely applies for any relief or provides false information or
makes false representation in order to gain relief may be guilty of fraud under the
Fraud Act 2006.

7.0 Effect on the Council’s Finances
7.1

As Central Government leads this initiative, funding will be provided through
section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003. This is not automatic and Central
Government will look to the Council to adopt the recommended approach when
granting in these areas.

7.2

In order to guarantee funding, the Council will ensure that the criteria in this policy
are met in full

8.0 Administration of Discretionary Relief
8.1

The following section outlines the procedures followed by officers in granting,
amending, or cancelling discretionary relief and reduction. This is essentially laid
down by legislation1

Applications and Evidence
8.2

The Council will specify how (and if) applications are to be made and received. This
may vary from time to time.

8.3

Where appropriate, ratepayers are required to provide such evidence necessary
to allow the Council to make a decision. Where insufficient information is
provided, then no relief will be granted. In some cases, it may be necessary for

1

The Non-Domestic Rating (Discretionary Relief) Regulations 1989

Ryedale /CARF Discretionary Business Rates Relief Policy 2022

Page 283

7

officers to visit premises and we would expect ratepayers claiming relief to
facilitate this where necessary.
8.4

The Council will provide this service and provide guidance free of charge.
Ratepayers are encouraged to approach the Council direct and NOT pay for such
services through third parties. Applications will be accepted from ratepayers
only.

Granting of relief
8.5

In all cases, the Council will notify the ratepayer of decisions made.

8.6

Where an application (if required) is successful, then the following will be notified
to them in writing:
• The amount of relief granted and the date from which it has been granted;
• If relief has been granted for a specified period, the date on which it will end.
• The new chargeable amount;
• The details of any planned review dates and the notice that will be given in
advance of a change to the level of relief granted; and
• A requirement that the applicant should notify the Council of any change in
circumstances that may affect entitlement to relief.

8.7

Where relief is not granted, then the following information is provided, again in
writing:
• An explanation of the decision within the context of the Council’s statutory
duty; and
• An explanation of the appeal rights (see below).

8.8

Discretionary relief is to be granted from the beginning of the financial year in
which the decision is made or when liability begins whichever is the later. Since
1997 decisions can be made up to 6 months after the end of the financial year for
which the application was made. In such cases, the Council may backdate its
decision. Given the timing of this relief, awards will only be made for the 2021/22
financial year.

Variation of a decision
8.9

Variations in any decision will be notified to ratepayers as soon as practicable and
will take effect as follows:
• Where the amount is to be increased due to a change in rate charge (excluding
rateable value increases) or a change in the Council’s decision which increases
the award – this will apply from a date determined by the Council as
appropriate;
• Where the amount is to increase for any other reason, it will take effect at the
expiry of a financial year unless it is granted for a fixed period;

Ryedale /CARF Discretionary Business Rates Relief Policy 2022

Page 284

8

•
•

8.10

Where the amount is to be reduced due to a reduction in the rate charge or
liability including any reduction in rateable value, awarding of another relief or
exemption this will apply from the date of the decrease in rate charge; and
Where the amount is to be reduced for any other reason, it will take effect
from a date determined by the Council as appropriate;

A decision may be revoked at any time and a one-year period of notice will be
given and the change will take effect at the expiry of a financial year. However, the
Council will terminate the relief at any time the ratepayer fails to meet any of the
relevant eligibility criteria.

9.0 Scheme of Delegation
Granting, Varying, Reviewing and Revocation of Relief
9.1

All powers in relation to reliefs are given under the Local Government Finance Act
1988, the Local Government and Rating Act 1997, the Local Government Act 2003
and the Localism Act 2011.However section 223 of the Local Government Act 1992
allows for delegation of decisions by the Council to Cabinet, Committees, SubCommittees or Officers.

9.2

The Council’s scheme of delegation allows for the Head of Revenues and Benefits
to award, revise or revoke any discretionary relief applications. However, any
application which is considered to be of a significant nature, will be subject to
consultation with the Council’s Section 151 Officer, prior to final determination.

9.3

Applications that are refused will, on request, be reconsidered if additional
supporting information is provided or the refusal is subsequently considered to be
based on a misinterpretation of the application.

Reviews
9.4

The policy for granting relief will be reviewed annually or where there is a
substantial change to the legislation or funding rules. At such time, a revised policy
will be brought before the relevant committee of the Council.

Disputes
9.5

Where the Council receives a dispute from the ratepayer regarding the granting,
non-granting or the amount of any discretionary relief, the case will be reviewed
by the Head of Revenues and Benefits. Where a decision is revised then the
ratepayer shall be informed, likewise if the original decision is upheld.

Ryedale /CARF Discretionary Business Rates Relief Policy 2022

Page 285

9

9.6

Where the ratepayer wishes to appeal the decision of the Head of Revenues and
Benefits, the case will be considered by the Council’s Section 151 Officer whose
decision on behalf of the Council will be final.

9.7

Ultimately the formal appeal process for the ratepayer is Judicial Review although
the Council will endeavour to explain any decision fully and openly with the
ratepayer.

10.0 Reporting changes in circumstances
10.1

Where any award is granted to a ratepayer, the Council will require any changes
in circumstances which may affect the relief, to be reported as soon as possible or
in any event within 21 days of the change. This will be important where the change
would result in the amount of the award being reduced or cancelled e.g. where
the premises comes unoccupied or is used for a purpose other than that
determined by the Council as eligible for relief.

10.2

Where a change of circumstances is reported which would cease or revise
eligibility, the relief will, if appropriate, be revised or cancelled as appropriate.
Where any award is to be reduced, the Council will look to recover the amount
from the date the change of circumstances occurred.

11.0 Fraud
11.1

Where a ratepayer falsely applies for any relief, or where the ratepayer provides
false information, makes false representation, or deliberately withholds
information in order to gain relief, prosecutions will be considered under the Fraud
Act 2006.

Ryedale /CARF Discretionary Business Rates Relief Policy 2022

Page 286

10

Appendix A Ratepayers / hereditaments excluded from the
scheme
To be determined by LA

Ryedale /CARF Discretionary Business Rates Relief Policy 2022

Page 287

11

Ryedale /CARF Discretionary Business Rates Relief Policy 2022

Page 288

12

Agenda Item 16a
URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

DESIGNATION OF INTERIM MONITORING OFFICER

OFFICER REQUESTING:

PHILLIP SPURR
PROGRAMME DIRECTOR

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

To designate an interim Monitoring Officer, as the postholder left Ryedale District
Council at the end of January 2022. This will be in effect until the Head of Corporate
Governance role is filled.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

Elizabeth Heath be designated as interim Monitoring Officer from 1 February
2022 until such time as a permanent appointment is made to the Head of
Corporate Governance role.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Article 11 of the Council’s Constitution designates the role of Monitoring Officer to the
Head of Corporate Governance. Full Council normally confirms this designation when
a new appointment is made. Currently the role of Head of Corporate Governance has
yet to be filled, so it is necessary to appoint an interim Monitoring Officer. A meeting
of Full Council is not scheduled within the timescales for appointing an interim and
therefore it is necessary to use urgency powers. Designation following a permanent
appointment to the role will be taken to Full Council.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

It is a legal requirement for the Council to have a designated Monitoring Officer, there
would therefore be legal risks around not making such a designation.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
There are no significant financial implications associated with this designation.
b)

Legal
Making this designation complies with the legal requirement for the Council to have
a Monitoring Officer.

Page 289

c)

6.0

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
There are no other implications.

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

The Chair of Policy and Resources Committee should be consulted on this decision. As
this matter would normally have been dealt with by Full Council it is recommended that all
Group Leaders are consulted.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of Consultee
Approved

Cllr D Keal

Date consultation completed

31/01/22

Name of Consultee
Approved

Cllr L Burr

Date consultation completed

31/01/22
Cllr J Frank

Approved
Date consultation completed

31/01/22

Name of Consultee
Approved

Cllr S Arnold

Date consultation completed

31/01/22

Name of Consultee

Cllr K Duncan

Date consultation completed

01/02/22

Name of Consultee
Approved

Cllr M Potter

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 290

Date consultation completed

8.0

01/02/22

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based To be completed after consultation
on consultation
Date 2 February 2022
The recommendation is approved having taken advice on
the balance of risk to the organisation; it is essential that the
Council has a Monitoring Officer in place to fulfil its statutory
responsibilities.

Page 291

This page is intentionally left blank

